
 CITY OF HAYS COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2016 – 6:30 P.M.  

AGENDA 

1. Call to order by Chairperson.

2. MINUTES: Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on
November 10, 2016. (PAGE 1)

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENT: Consider accepting the Financial Statement for the month of
October, 2016. (PAGE 5) 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  (non-agenda items).

5. CONSENT AGENDA:  (Items to be approved by the Commission in one motion, unless
objections are raised).

Mayoral Appointments for Approval: Building Trades Board and Hays Convention and
Visitors Bureau Advisory Committee (PAGE 83)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

(No business to review) 

NEW BUSINESS 

6. ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION
REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2016-A: Consider approving
Ordinance No. 3923 authorizing and providing for the issuance, payment, and security of
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A. (PAGE 87)

7. RESOLUTION FOR THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF GENERAL OBLIGATION
REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2016-A: Consider approving
Resolution No. 2016-011 authorizing and directing the sale and delivery of General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A. (PAGE 103)

8. HAYS EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT (CID) – PUBLIC HEARING: Hold a Public Hearing on the advisability of
creating the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District.
(PAGE 141)

9. HAYS EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT (CID) – DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND ORDINANCE: Consider
approving Ordinance No. 3924 authorizing the creation of the Hays Extended Stay Hotel
Partners Community Improvement District in the City of Hays, Kansas; authorizing the
making of certain economic development project improvements relating thereto;
approving the estimated costs of such economic development project improvements;
providing for the method of financing the same; and approving a Development
Agreement. (PAGE 145)



 
 
 

10. HAYS EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS II COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT (CID) – PUBLIC HEARING: Hold a Public Hearing on the advisability of 
creating the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community Improvement District. 
(PAGE 167) 

 
11. HAYS EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS II COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT (CID) – DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND ORDINANCE: Consider 
approving Ordinance No. 3925 authorizing the creation of the Hays Extended Stay Hotel 
Partners II Community Improvement District in the City of Hays, Kansas; authorizing the 
making of certain economic development project improvements relating thereto; 
approving the estimated costs of such economic development project improvements; 
providing for the method of financing the same; and approving a Development 
Agreement. (PAGE 169) 
 

12. HAYS INVESTORS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (CID) – PUBLIC 
HEARING: Hold a Public Hearing on the advisability of creating the Hays Investors 
Community Improvement District. (PAGE 177) 
 

13. HAYS INVESTORS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (CID) – DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT AND ORDINANCE: Consider approving Ordinance No. 3926 authorizing 
the creation of the Hays Investors Community Improvement District in the City of Hays, 
Kansas; authorizing the making of certain economic development project improvements 
relating thereto; approving the estimated costs of such economic development project 
improvements; providing for the method of financing the same; and approving a 
Development Agreement. (PAGE 181) 

 
14. PROGRESS REPORT 
 
15. REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER  
 
16. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS   
 
17. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED) 

 
18. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 



MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 

HELD ON NOVEMBER 10, 2016 

1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:  The Governing Body of the City of Hays,

Kansas met in regular session on Thursday, November 10, 2016 at 6:30 p.m.

Roll Call:  Present:   Shaun Musil 

James Meier 

Henry Schwaller IV 

Lance Jones 

Eber Phelps 

Chairperson Musil declared a quorum was present and called the meeting 

to order. 

2. MINUTES: There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the

regular session held on October 27, 2016; the minutes stand approved as

presented.

3. CITIZEN COMMENTS: There were no comments.

4. CONSENT AGENDA: A. Approve the Cereal Malt Beverage License for JT

Travel Plaza LLC. 

B. The following proposed mayoral appointments will be presented for approval

at the November 22, 2016 City Commission meeting:

Building Trades Board

Chris Teeter (Electrical Rep) – unexpired term to expire August 27, 2019 (1st

term)

Hays Convention and Visitors Bureau Advisory Committee

Thomas Ostrander (Pasta Jay’s) – unexpired term to expire December 1, 2018

(1st term)

Henry Schwaller IV moved, Eber Phelps seconded, to approve the 

Consent Agenda as presented. 

1



Vote: Ayes: Shaun Musil 

   James Meier 

   Henry Schwaller IV 

Lance Jones 

     Eber Phelps 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
 
5. CITY OF HAYS EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE FOR 2017:  Erin Giebler, 

Director of Human Resources, reviewed the history of health insurance for the 

City of Hays. In 2010, the City Commission set a $9,500 average per employee 

cap on health insurance. Since then, the Wage and Benefit Committee and City 

staff have been tasked with finding the best insurance within the provided 

budget.  
City staff, with the help of Julie Yarmer with Freedom Claims 

Management, requested bids for employee health insurance for fiscal year 2017. 

After 26 plan designs were reviewed, City staff, with the approval of the Wage 

and Benefit Committee, recommended providing employees with a triple option 

plan through Blue Cross Blue Shield. The High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) 

option would have a no-cost option for employee only coverage. The other two 

plans would be considered a traditional plan, with first dollar benefits. The 

employee premiums are considerably higher on the traditional plans. The 

premiums paid for by employees would keep this recommendation within the 

budget cap set by the City Commission.  

Henry Schwaller IV moved, Lance Jones seconded, to authorize the City 

Manager to sign an agreement with Blue Cross Blue Shield to provide employees 

with a triple option health insurance plan with the City paying up to $1,719,500 

and authorize $150,000 to fund employees’ Health Savings Accounts both out of 

the Employee Benefit Levy Fund. 

 

2



Vote: Ayes: Shaun Musil 

   James Meier 

   Henry Schwaller IV 

Lance Jones 

     Eber Phelps 

6. FORT HAYS MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE PRO-SHOP MANAGER 
CONTRACT:  Jeff Boyle, Director of Parks, reported that the current contract 

with Rich Guffey for management of the Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course 

(FHMGC) Pro-Shop ends December 31, 2016. City staff sent out Requests for 

Qualifications and received two resumes. The only qualifying resume for the 

position is from Rich Guffey, who has performed these duties at the FHMGC for 

16 years. Mr. Guffey is requesting an annual payment increase from $21,000 to 

$24,000 and has agreed to a one-year contract for the 2017 calendar year. 
Lance Jones moved, Eber Phelps seconded, to proceed with a one year 

contract for the 2017 calendar year with Rich Guffey to manage the Fort Hays 

Municipal Golf Course Pro-Shop for a contractual amount of $24,000, which will 

be paid from the Contractual Services line item in the 2017 Golf Course General 

Fund Budget. 

Vote: Ayes: Shaun Musil 

   James Meier 

   Henry Schwaller IV 

Lance Jones 

     Eber Phelps 

7. REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER: City Manager, Toby Dougherty, stated 

he is pleased with the work Erin Giebler, Director of Human Resources, and Julie 

Yarmer, with Freedom Claims Management, have done in keeping insurance 

costs down. He also stated the participation and feed back from the Wage and 

Benefit Committee has been very helpful in determining what the employees 

want. The committee members take their positions very seriously; they analyze 

the data to compare insurance plans and have done a great job. 

 

3



Chairperson Musil congratulated Commissioner Phelps for his recent 

election to the 111th District in the Kansas House of Representatives. 

 Due to the upcoming Commissioner vacancy, the Commission must 

appoint someone to replace Commissioner Phelps. Kansas State Statute 

requires a vacancy of the City Commission be filled within 10 days of the leaving 

Commissioner’s official written resignation. Commissioner Phelps stated he 

intends to continue serving on the City Commission until his term on the 

legislature begins on January 9, 2017.  

 It was the consensus of the Commission to begin taking applications as 

soon as possible and will accept applications until December 30, 2016. The 

Commissioners will review the applications with potential nomination at the 

January 12, 2017 City Commission meeting. 

8. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS: Commissioner Phelps thanked 

our veterans for their service. 

 Commissioners Meier, Schwaller, and Jones also congratulated 

Commissioner Phelps for his election to the Kansas House of Representatives 

and thanked him for his service to the City.  

They also thanked all of the veterans for their service.  

 Vice-Chairperson Meier, requested two items be placed on a future work 

session for discussion.  The first is looking at potential City requirements for 

bonding of home inspectors. The second item for future discussion being what is 

required for the City Commission to remove someone from a board after they 

have been appointed.  

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 

 

Submitted by: _______________________________________________  
    Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

 

4



Memo 
DATE: November 10, 2016 

TO: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 

CC: Jacob Wood, Asst City Manager 

FROM: Kim Rupp, Finance Director 

RE: October 2016 Monthly Financial 

The attached report contains the financial summaries of the revenue and expenditure 
activities of the City of Hays for the month ended October 31, 2016. 

Period to Date Financial Performance 

Revenues in October totaled $2,631,939 an increase of $176,133 compared to the same 
period as last year.  

 Notable areas of increased revenue compared to October 2015 

o Grants for Airport Improvement are up $142,122 for the FAA’s 
reimbursement on the airport snow removal equipment. 

o Golf course revenue saw a small increase of $3900 compared to this 
time last year. 

o Court fines were up $8871 from a year ago. 

 Notable areas of revenue decrease compared to October 2015 

o Parks Improvement revenue was off $44,000 as compared to October 
2015 due to donations received in 2015 for the completion of the 
shelters. 

o October residential and business water consumption fell -14% 
resulting in water and conservation revenue being down $3500 and 
$20,000 respectively. YTD water consumption is down -9.74% 
however YTD water revenue is holding its own up 3.55% while 
conservation has fallen -20.4% given the large reduction in 
consumption.  

City of Hays 
Finance Department 

5



Expenditures in October totaled $1,408,448 which is a decrease of $927,905 as compared to 
2015.    

 Notable areas of increased expenditures compared to October 2015 

o There were no significant increases in expenditures for October 2016 
to report. 

 Notable areas of decreased expenditures compared to October 2015 

o October 2015 included three payrolls therefore salaries and benefits 
were down across all funds when compared to this year amounting to 
about $386,000. 

o Parks and playground general supplies and materials dropped $7000 

o Police other contractuals was off $8400 due to the purchase of 
services to update, implement and maintain the digital copy of the PD 
policy manual. 

o Wastewater other contractuals was down $117,000 due to contract 
sewer cleaning at this time last year. 

MTD general fund sales tax collections were at $648,591 which is an increase of $53,435 as 
compared to last year.  That is the first increase in four consecutive months.YTD general fund 
collections are at $6,009,194 down  -$209,849 or   -3.37% as compared to this same time 
last year.  

The report of quarter to date (QTD) sales tax collections by industry classification was up 
$27,153 or 1.43%. That is the first increase on this report in seven months. Some 
categories leading the way included motor vehicle dealers at 7.67%, 
wholesalers/durable goods at 10.7% and accomodation at 33.6%. These top ten now 
represent 72.8% of the total QTD sales tax distribution.   
 
The Finance/City Clerk’s Office invested $4,600,000 of maturing or renewing certificates 
with a weighted average interest rate of .90%. The portfolio of certificates of deposit on 
October 31, 2016 totaled $54,000,000 with a weighted average interest rate of .66% up 
.36% from a year ago.  The total balance of the Money Market account on October 31, 
2016 was $1,000,000 with a current yield of .20%.  Total investments are down 
$600,000 when compared to this time last year. 
 

6



Total Cash in All Funds $55,478,836.52 

Checking Accounts with Banks $477,336.52 

Money Market Accounts $1,000,000.00 

Investments $54,000,000.00 

Cash in Office $1,500.00 

TOTAL $55,478,836.52 

General Obligation Bonds $10,870,000.00 

Temporary Notes $0.00 

State Revolving Loan Fund $0.00 

Revenue Bonds $2,800,000.00 

Lease Purchase Agreements $0.00 

$13,670,000.00 

STATEMENT OF CREDITS

STATEMENT OF CURRENT OBLIGATIONS

CASH BALANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS

This Document is for Internal Use and Represents Un-audited Figures

As of October 31, 2016

G:\Excel\Financial St.xls

7



Interest Interest

Commerce Bank Certificates of Deposit Date Issued Maturity Date Rate at Maturity

CD #

784 3,000,000.00                     10/30/2015 11/10/2016 0.41% 12,626.92              

860 2,000,000.00                     12/2/2015 12/23/2016 0.39% 8,217.12                

911 1,300,000.00                     12/30/2015 1/20/2017 0.62% 8,511.35                

939 1,000,000.00                     1/8/2016 2/3/2017 0.64% 6,846.58                

973 3,000,000.00                     1/22/2016 2/17/2017 0.66% 21,184.11              

974 3,000,000.00                     1/22/2016 3/3/2017 0.66% 21,940.68              

975 1,000,000.00                     1/22/2016 3/17/2017 0.66% 7,566.75                

997 1,000,000.00                     1/29/2016 3/31/2017 0.61% 7,106.92                

023 1,500,000.00                     2/6/2016 4/14/2017 0.63% 11,121.58              

062 1,500,000.00                     2/26/2016 4/28/2017 0.55% 9,563.63                

285 2,000,000.00                     6/6/2016 8/4/2017 0.76% 17,656.99              

459 1,500,000.00                     9/2/2016 10/27/2017 0.78% 13,376.71              

Sunflower Bank Certificates of Deposit

CD #

986 1,800,000.00                     4/1/2016 5/26/2017 0.65% 13,463.01              

Equity Bank Certificates of Deposit

CD #

510 1,000,000.00                     11/6/2015 11/25/2016 0.47% 4,946.99                

519 1,500,000.00                     11/13/2015 12/9/2016 0.54% 8,715.29                

816 2,200,000.00                     3/4/2016 5/12/2017 0.56% 14,518.19              

268 2,500,000.00                     4/29/2016 6/23/2017 0.60% 17,231.51              

5 1,000,000.00                     6/3/2016 7/21/2017 0.75% 8,474.99                

14 2,000,000.00                     6/10/2016 8/17/2017 0.78% 18,435.12              

23 3,000,000.00                     6/27/2016 9/4/2017 0.73% 26,004.33              

68 1,000,000.00                     7/29/2016 9/29/2017 0.72% 8,411.32                

122 3,000,000.00                     8/19/2016 10/13/2017 0.76% 26,921.10              

167 2,500,000.00                     9/30/2016 11/9/2017 0.85% 23,551.03              

212 2,600,000.00                     10/28/2016 12/8/2017 0.93% 26,867.19              

Astra Bank Certificates of Deposit

CD #

322 2,000,000.00                     12/16/2015 1/6/2017 0.41% 8,694.25                

Bank of Hays Certificates of Deposit

CD#

479 1,000,000.00                     4/15/2016 6/9/2017 0.68% 7,824.66                

481 2,600,000.00                     5/13/2016 7/7/2017 0.66% 19,745.75              

491 500,000.00                        7/8/2016 9/15/2017 0.64% 3804.93

513 2,000,000.00 10/14/2016 11/22/2017 0.86% 19,037.81              

54,000,000.00                   383,329.00            

Astra Bank

MMA 0.03%

Commerce Bank

MMA 1,000,000.00 0.20%

CITY OF HAYS

INVESTMENTS AS OF 

10/31/2016

8



SALES TAX RECEIPTS
City of Hays
General Fund 1.25%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Change from YTD % Change
actual actual actual actual actual 2015 from 2015

January $611,353 $630,469 $591,886 624,116$      588,288$      ($35,828) ‐5.74%
February $702,298 $687,316 $693,745 735,385$      696,134$      ($39,251) ‐5.52%
March $563,583 $561,055 $555,681 566,182$      550,115$      ($16,067) ‐4.73%
April $509,945 $523,623 $519,570 551,785$      513,838$      ($37,947) ‐5.21%
May  $611,234 $591,279 $597,391 600,238$      611,927$      $11,689 ‐3.81%
June $608,325 $567,547 $609,416 623,166$      557,279$      ($65,887) ‐4.95%
July  $621,448 $679,311 $649,718 635,949$      628,853$      ($7,096) ‐4.39%
August $671,019 $651,955 $617,003 642,316$      608,377$      ($33,939) ‐4.51%
September $572,295 $611,782 $647,126 644,750$      605,791$      ($38,959) ‐4.68%
October $648,340 $650,165 $643,573 595,156$      648,591$      $53,435 ‐3.37%
November $638,490 $553,637 $652,440 591,684$      ‐$              
December $555,204 $594,061 $615,074 622,376$      ‐$              

TOTALS $7,313,534 $7,302,200 $7,392,623 $7,433,103 $6,009,193 ($209,850)
5.09% ‐0.15% 1.24% 0.55%

Total Inc/dec compared to previous year

January  ‐3.02%
February ‐4.58%
March ‐5.03%
April ‐4.87%
May ‐2.98%
June ‐4.95%
July ‐4.16%
August ‐4.12%
September ‐4.65%
October ‐2.16%
November 
December

2014 ‐ 2015 ‐ 2016
6 month running avg

**General Fund revenues provide funding for City services including police, fire, street, parks, swimming pool
and golf course.  It also provides funding to outside agencies such as Economic Development, Downtown Hays
Development, United Way CARE Council and Fort Hays State Scholarships.

$7,200,000

$7,250,000

$7,300,000

$7,350,000

$7,400,000

$7,450,000

$7,313,534 $7,302,200 

$7,392,623 
$7,433,103

2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Actual

9



2015 2016 $$ inc/dec % inc/dec % of 2016 Total
452 General Merchandise Stores $467,308 $443,862 ($23,446) -5.02% 16.65%

441 Motor Vehicle and Parts Dealers $406,183 $437,327 $31,144 7.67% 16.40%

722 Food Services and Drinking Places $279,451 $251,151 ($28,300) -10.13% 9.42%

444 Building Material and Garden Supply $202,012 $211,235 $9,223 4.57% 7.92%

445 Food and Beverage $161,311 $166,475 $5,164 3.20% 6.24%

517 Telecommunications $86,766 $84,913 ($1,853) -2.14% 3.18%

448 Clothing and Clothing Accessories $77,699 $75,153 ($2,546) -3.28% 2.82%

423 Merchant Wholesalers, Durable Goods $95,765 $106,044 $10,279 10.73% 3.98%

721 Accommodation $71,455 $95,435 $23,980 33.56% 3.58%

451 Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music $53,178 $56,686 $3,508 6.60% 2.13%

$1,901,128 $1,928,281 $27,153 1.43% 72.31%

Sales Tax Collections by Industry Classification - Top Ten
QTD 2015-2016 August September October

10



MONTHLY  STATEMENT OF CITY TREASURER

10/1/2016 THROUGH 10/31/2016

BALANCE

10/1/2016 RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS

BALANCE

10/31/2016FUND

$1,500.00Cash Drawer $1,500.00

$3,953,641.98General 1,401,247.87 1,229,923.34 $4,124,966.51

$1,000.00Petty Cash $1,000.00

$3,221,180.75Reserve Budget Stabilization $3,221,180.75

$95,814.52Library 13,811.77 0.00 $109,626.29

$262,659.64Airport 11,938.64 24,623.75 $249,974.53

$478,611.84Public Safety Equipment 4,967.63 1,682.63 $481,896.84

$1,178,436.12Employee Benefit Contribution 69,232.99 277,914.41 $969,754.70

$142,059.23Special Highway 161,321.42 7,698.09 $295,682.56

$277,908.13Special Park & Recreation 0.00 4,868.87 $273,039.26

$29,764.33Special Alcohol Program $29,764.33

$875,874.27Convention & Tourism 254,853.75 32,145.90 $1,098,582.12

$3,919,563.27New Equipment Reserve 1,779.38 0.00 $3,921,342.65

$0.00Grants $0.00

$14,734.81Library Employee Benefit 2,024.05 0.00 $16,758.86

$0.00Pool Construction Fund $0.00

$0.00Risk Management Reserve $0.00

$89,442.81Golf Course Improvement 18.76 2,875.06 $86,586.51

$5,026.93Park Development - Green Space $5,026.93

$930.63DOJ Program $930.63

$1,823,137.09Sports Complex $1,823,137.09

$299,783.27Stormwater Management 77,497.78 3,403.87 $373,877.18

$8,950.71Parks Improvement Fund $8,950.71

$0.00Ellis Co. Sales Tax 151,876.01 151,876.01 $0.00

$2,603,779.39City Capital Reserve 1,487.81 0.00 $2,605,267.20

)($2,662,214.76Capital Projects 0.00 632,035.57 )($3,294,250.33

$0.002001 Projects $0.00

$0.002002 Projects $0.00

Data date & time 11/9/2016  1:54:59PM

11



BALANCE

10/1/2016 RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS

BALANCE

10/31/2016FUND

$0.00

$51,114.63Airport Improvement 144,913.66 6,889.09 $189,139.20

$245,615.92Bond & Interest 9,694.82 0.00 $255,310.74

$23,385.84TDD Sales Tax 17,490.88 23,385.84 $17,490.88

$49,714.11Home Depot Econ Dev Bds 11,661.00 0.00 $61,375.11

$117,188.90Home Depot Econ Dev Bds (Cash Restr.) $117,188.90

$21,391.2748th/Roth Ave. - CID 9,039.75 0.00 $30,431.02

$17,096.07The Mall CID 16,790.62 0.00 $33,886.69

$0.00 $0.00

$45,746.40Restricted Cash - 2009 A Bonds Water $45,746.40

$0.00Sales Tax (Cash Reserve) $0.00

)($3,470.00Water & Sewer (Capital Reserve) 0.00 )(3,470.00 $0.00

$220,870.99Water & Sewer(Reserve 2009A) 0.00 )(24,313.04 $245,184.03

$2,433,899.71Water Fund 234,225.00 160,023.58 $2,508,101.13

$471,877.10Solid Waste Fund 111,979.41 60,274.93 $523,581.58

$523,880.56Solid Waste Reserve $523,880.56

$0.00 $0.00

$19,605.60Restricted Cash - 2009A Bonds WasteWater $19,605.60

$1,912,595.21Waste Water Fund 264,276.52 68,917.60 $2,107,954.13

$94,658.95Waste Water(Reserve 2009A) 0.00 )(10,419.88 $105,078.83

$2,007,898.80Water Conserv / WA SLS TX 283,753.65 7,615.55 $2,284,036.90

$352,491.91Water Reserve Fund $352,491.91

$705,846.47Wastewater Reserve Fund $705,846.47

$28,917,960.59Water Sales Tax Reserve 0.00 91,186.07 $28,826,774.52

$0.00Fire Insurance Trust $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$115,568.60Municipal Court Agency Fund 78,878.50 73,310.50 $121,136.60

$55,478,836.52$54,966,522.59 $3,334,761.67 $2,822,447.74

Data date & time 11/9/2016  1:54:59PM

12



City of Hays Revenues
Month of  October   2016

Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

General

CULTURE & RECREATION REVENUES

Total Revenues $438,390.00 $11,080.88 $374,497.12 )($63,892.88

GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENUES

Total Revenues $11,464,783.00 $800,220.62 $7,933,081.22 )($3,531,701.78

PUBLIC SAFETY REVENUES

Total Revenues $613,000.00 $54,570.50 $529,778.06 )($83,221.94

PUBLIC WORKS REVENUES

Total Revenues $10,300.00 $550.00 $9,825.00 )($475.00

Library

LIBRARY FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues $1,295,143.00 $13,811.77 $1,343,733.99 $48,590.99

Airport

AIRPORT FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues $357,269.00 $11,938.64 $343,586.84 )($13,682.16

Public Safety Equipment

PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIP REVENUES

Total Revenues $458,208.00 $4,967.63 $479,569.68 $21,361.68

Employee Benefit

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT REVENUES

Total Revenues $3,580,598.00 $30,661.70 $3,208,022.29 )($372,575.71

Special Highway

SPECIAL HIGHWAY REVENUES

Total Revenues $1,089,920.00 $161,321.42 $1,103,837.87 $13,917.87

Special Park & Rec

SPECIAL PRK & REC REVENUES

Total Revenues $131,390.00 $0.00 $98,255.86 )($33,134.14

Special Alcohol Fund

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues $131,390.00 $0.00 $98,255.87 )($33,134.13

Convention & Visitors Bureau

CONVENTION & VISITOR'S REVENUE

Total Revenues $832,058.00 $254,853.75 $946,464.83 $114,406.83

New Equipment Reserve

NEW EQUIP RESERVE REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $1,779.38 $319,943.50 $319,943.50

Library Employee Benefit

LIBRARY EMP. BENEFIT REVENUES

Total Revenues $198,361.00 $2,024.05 $205,669.76 $7,308.76

Risk Management

RISK MANAGEMENT REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Golf Course Improvement

GOLF COURSE IMPR. FUND REVENUE

Total Revenues $0.00 $18.76 $24,642.60 $24,642.60

Park Development

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND-REVENUE

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DOJ Program

DOJ PROGRAM-REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Period (Month) = 10.00

13



Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

Sports Complex

SPORTS COMPLEX-REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $66,000.00 $66,000.00

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REVENUES

Total Revenues $789,140.00 $77,496.44 $750,845.30 )($38,294.70

PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND-REVENUE

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $6,156.80 $6,156.80

ELLIS CO. SALES TAX-REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $151,876.01 $1,414,727.93 $1,414,727.93

City Commission Capital Reserve

CITY COMMISSION CPTL RESRV REV

Total Revenues $0.00 $1,487.81 $8,036.44 $8,036.44

Airport Improvement

AIRPORT IMPR.FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $144,913.66 $682,519.57 $682,519.57

Bond & Interest

BOND & INTEREST REVENUES

Total Revenues $1,322,421.00 $9,694.82 $1,385,860.16 $63,439.16

TDD Sales Tax

TDD SLS TAX   REVENUES

Total Revenues )($56,562.92 $17,490.88 $190,324.37 $246,887.29

Home Depot Economic Dev Bonds

H DEPOT-ECON DEV BND-REVENUES

Total Revenues $219,317.00 $11,661.00 $189,914.61 )($29,402.39

48th/Roth Ave. - CID

48TH/ROTH AVE CID-REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $9,039.75 $82,442.24 $82,442.24

Mall CID

THE MALL CID-REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $16,790.62 $163,576.08 $163,576.08

Water Fund

WATER  FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues $3,406,299.00 $330,450.68 $2,745,172.87 )($661,126.13

Solid Waste

SOLID WASTE FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues $1,301,950.00 $111,939.39 $1,244,374.67 )($57,575.33

Waste Water Fund

WASTE WATER FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues $2,622,168.00 $265,224.87 $2,370,458.74 )($251,709.26

Water Conservation

 WA CONSERV REVENUES

Total Revenues $3,380,293.00 $287,949.85 $2,638,714.23 )($741,578.77

Water Reserve Fund

WATER RESERVE REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WASTEWATER RESERVE REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Water Sales Tax

WATER SLS TX RESERVE REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $1,408.52 $1,408.52

Period (Month) = 10.00

14



Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

Fire Insurance Trust

FIRE INS TRUST REVENUES

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Grand Totals $33,585,835.08 $2,783,814.88 $30,959,697.02 )($2,626,138.06

Period (Month) = 10.00

15



City of Hays Expenditures
Month of  October  2016

Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

General

BALLFIELD MAINTENANCE

Total Expenditures $38,300.00 $510.47 $25,052.40 $13,247.60

BICKLE-SCHMIDT SPORTS COMPLEX

Total Expenditures $227,658.00 $7,334.78 $103,974.97 $123,683.03

BUILDINGS & GROUNDS

Total Expenditures $503,935.00 $36,122.43 $377,465.42 $126,469.58

CEMETERIES

Total Expenditures $17,500.00 $2,587.13 $10,492.00 $7,008.00

CITY ATTORNEY

Total Expenditures $101,000.00 $7,487.50 $115,207.99 )($14,207.99

CITY COMMISSION

Total Expenditures $2,173,045.00 $1,305.76 $13,105.86 $2,159,939.14

CITY MANAGER

Total Expenditures $511,593.00 $26,978.41 $354,247.48 $157,345.52

DISPATCH

Total Expenditures $573,784.00 $41,067.77 $404,361.56 $169,422.44

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Total Expenditures $229,378.00 $575.00 $219,495.28 $9,882.72

FINANCE/CITY CLERK

Total Expenditures $381,011.00 $25,938.69 $311,910.24 $69,100.76

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Total Expenditures $1,404,167.00 $97,635.75 $1,126,705.79 $277,461.21

FLEET MAINTENANCE

Total Expenditures $801,073.00 $46,279.12 $402,506.02 $398,566.98

GOLF COURSE

Total Expenditures $366,618.00 $25,251.89 $313,081.60 $53,536.40

HUMAN RESOURCES

Total Expenditures $195,750.00 $22,504.90 $133,888.85 $61,861.15

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Total Expenditures $558,022.00 $39,749.22 $451,513.85 $106,508.15

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNT

Total Expenditures $334,300.00 $4,572.04 $306,162.52 $28,137.48

MUNICIPAL COURT

Total Expenditures $163,465.00 $10,642.33 $118,284.28 $45,180.72

P.W.-GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Total Expenditures $293,540.00 $18,954.17 $206,132.15 $87,407.85

PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS

Total Expenditures $900,641.00 $59,791.63 $719,971.12 $180,669.88

PLANNING INSPECTION ENFORCEMEN

Total Expenditures $426,039.00 $24,458.98 $255,402.41 $170,636.59

POLICE DEPARTMENT

Total Expenditures $2,138,223.00 $138,561.79 $1,601,890.92 $536,332.08

PUBLIC WORKS-SERVICE DIVISION

Total Expenditures $926,200.00 $56,467.71 $627,400.02 $298,799.98

QUALITY OF LIFE

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SOCIAL SERVICES

Total Expenditures $164,000.00 $0.00 $164,000.00 $0.00

SWIMMING POOL

Total Expenditures $100,700.00 $320.00 $55,216.24 $45,483.76

Library

LIBRARY FUND EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $1,343,962.00 $0.00 $1,344,264.78 )($302.78

Airport

AIRPORT FUND EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $423,434.00 $24,623.75 $215,415.10 $208,018.90

Period (Month) = 10.00

16



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

Public Safety Equipment

PUBLIC SAFETY  EQUIP.-EXPENDIT

Total Expenditures $486,768.00 $1,682.63 $69,080.80 $417,687.20

Employee Benefit

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $4,139,740.00 $239,343.12 $3,216,008.63 $923,731.37

Special Highway

SPECIAL HIGHWAY EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $1,172,237.00 $7,698.09 $1,054,746.75 $117,490.25

Special Park & Rec

SPECIAL PRK & REC EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $336,915.00 $4,868.87 $38,542.97 $298,372.03

Special Alcohol Fund

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND EXPENDITU

Total Expenditures $206,151.00 $0.00 $132,826.00 $73,325.00

Convention & Visitors Bureau

CVB EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $1,340,675.00 $32,145.90 $622,698.81 $717,976.19

New Equipment Reserve

NEW EQUP. RESERVE EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $475,716.24 )($475,716.24

Library Employee Benefit

LIBRARY EMP. BENEFIT EXPENDITU

Total Expenditures $205,348.00 $0.00 $205,393.62 )($45.62

Risk Management

RISK MGT. FUND EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Golf Course Improvement

GOLF COURSE IMPR. EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $2,875.06 $8,384.72 )($8,384.72

Park Development

PARK DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $5,027.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,027.00

DOJ Program

DOJ-EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $279.88 )($279.88

Sports Complex

SPORTS COMPLEX-EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $17,836.00 )($17,836.00

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT EXPENDIT

Total Expenditures $861,300.00 $3,402.53 $409,062.78 $452,237.22

PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND-EXPEND

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $19,658.48 )($19,658.48

ELLIS CO. SALES TAX-EXPENDITUR

Total Expenditures $0.00 $151,876.01 $1,414,727.93 )($1,414,727.93

City Commission Capital Reserve

CTY COMMISSION CPTL RSRV EXPEN

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $894,078.62 )($894,078.62

Airport Improvement

AIRPORT IMPR. FUND EXPENDITURE

Total Expenditures $8,443,989.42 $0.00 $188,442.50 $8,255,546.92

Bond & Interest

BOND & INTEREST EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $1,377,880.00 $0.00 $1,318,073.39 $59,806.61

TDD Sales Tax

TDD SLS TAX   EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $23,385.84 $210,238.69 )($210,238.69

Period (Month) = 10.00

17



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

Home Depot Economic Dev Bonds

H DEPOT ECON DEV BND-EXPENDITU

Total Expenditures $213,805.00 $0.00 $213,805.00 $0.00

48th/Roth Ave. - CID

48TH/ ROTH AVE CID-EXPENDITURE

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $101,146.88 )($101,146.88

Mall CID

THE MALL CID-EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $239,150.42 )($239,150.42

Water Fund

DEBT SERVICE

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DEBT SERVICE - SALES TAX

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

UTILITIES DEPT./WATER CONSERV.

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

W/S NON-OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WASTEWATER TREATMENT & COLL.

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $3,602,454.00 $141,908.50 $1,616,020.50 $1,986,433.50

WATER PRODUCTION & DIST.

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $263.60 )($263.60

Solid Waste

SOLID WASTE FUND EXPENDITURE

Total Expenditures $1,392,364.00 $60,234.91 $997,074.35 $395,289.65

Waste Water Fund

WASTE WATER FUND EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $2,582,474.00 $69,865.95 $807,524.78 $1,774,949.22

Water Conservation / Water Sales Tax

WA CONSERV EXPENDITU

Total Expenditures $3,380,293.00 $11,811.75 $357,739.53 $3,022,553.47

Water Reserve Fund

WATER RESERVE EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $378,667.50 )($378,667.50

Stormwater Reserve Fund

WASTEWATER RESERVE EXPENDITURE

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $25,312.94 )($25,312.94

Water Sales Tax Reserve

WA SLS TX RESERVE EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $91,186.07 $547,560.89 )($547,560.89

Fire Insurance Trust

FIRE INS TRUST EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$45,044,758.42 $1,562,006.45 $25,557,212.05 $19,487,546.37Grand Totals

Period (Month) = 10.00

18



ASSETS:

Cash 4,124,966.51

Petty Cash 1,000.00

Cash Drawer 1,500.00

Reserve-Budget Stabilization 3,221,180.75

Accts. Receivable-Police Court 73,671.85

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 7,422,319.11

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Control Pay Payable 0.00

Accrued Payroll 244,835.71

Accrued Vacation/PTO 459,045.29

Accrued Sick Leave Payout 31,764.21

Accrued Comp Time 0.00

W/H -Payable

State W/H Payable

FICA/Med Payable

KPERS-Payable

Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00

Lease Purchase Agreements 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 735,645.21

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 8,845,378.40

Expenditures -9,226,148.05

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 12,101.77

Fund Balance Unreserved 3,834,161.03

Bdgt Stabilization Reserved Fund Bl 3,221,180.75

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 6,686,673.90

TOTAL LIABILITIES

& FUND BALANCE 7,422,319.11

GENERAL FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

19



ASSETS:

Cash 109,626.29

Taxes Receivable 1,164,271.00

TOTAL ASSETS 1,273,897.29

LIABILITIES

Deferred Revenue 1,164,271.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,164,271.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 1,346,948.29

Expenditures -1,347,479.08

Fund Balance Unreserved 110,157.08
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,273,897.29

LIBRARY FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

20



ASSETS:

Cash 249,974.53

Accts. Receivable 0.00

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

Taxes Receivable 205,777.00

TOTAL ASSETS 455,751.53

LIABILITIES

Control Pay Payable 0.00

Accounts Payable 0.00

Deferred Revenue 205,777.00

Accrued Payroll 2,852.26

Accrued Vacation/PTO 5,630.73

Accrued Sick Leave Payout

Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 214,259.99

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 344,155.10

Expenditures -215,703.36

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 113,039.80

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 241,491.54

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 455,751.53

AIRPORT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

21



ASSETS:

Cash 481,896.84

Taxes Receivable 411,554.00

TOTAL ASSETS 893,450.84

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable 0.00

Deferred Revenue 411,554.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 411,554.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 480,706.16

Expenditures -70,217.28

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 71,407.96
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 893,450.84

 PUBLIC SAFETY  EQUIPMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

22



ASSETS:

Cash 969,754.70

Accts. Receivable 0.00

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

Taxes Receivable 2,459,189.00

TOTAL ASSETS 3,428,943.70

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Deferred Revenue 2,459,189.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,459,189.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 3,214,810.95

Expenditures -3,069,444.68

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 824,388.43

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 969,754.70

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 3,428,943.70

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

23



ASSETS:

Cash 295,682.56

Grants Receivable 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 295,682.56

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Control Pay Payable 0.00

Due To Other Funds 0.00

Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 1,103,837.87

Expenditures -1,054,286.75

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 4,053.61

Fund Balance Unreserved 242,077.83

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 295,682.56

TOTAL LIABILITIES

& FUND BALANCE 295,682.56

SPECIAL HIGHWAY FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

24



ASSETS:

Cash 273,039.26

TOTAL ASSETS 273,039.26

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 98,255.86

Expenditures -37,966.97

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 90.39

Fund Balance Unreserved 212,659.98

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 273,039.26

TOTAL LIABILITIES

& FUND BALANCE 273,039.26

SPECIAL PARK & RECREATION FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

25



ASSETS:

Cash 29,764.33

TOTAL ASSETS 29,764.33

LIABILITIES

Accrued Payroll 0.00

Accrued Vacation 0.00

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 98,255.87

Expenditures -132,826.00

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 1,000.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 63,334.46

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 29,764.33

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 29,764.33

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

26



ASSETS:

Cash 1,098,582.12

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 1,098,582.12

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Accrued Payroll 6,353.05

Accrued Vacation/PTO 5,987.10

Accrued Comp Time 0.00

Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,340.15

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 946,464.83

Expenditures -621,145.51

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 760,922.65

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,086,241.97

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 1,098,582.12

CONVENTION & VISITOR'S BUREAU FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

27



ASSETS:

Cash 3,921,342.65

TOTAL ASSETS 3,921,342.65

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 319,943.50

Expenditures -475,716.24

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 4,077,115.39

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 3,921,342.65

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 3,921,342.65

NEW EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

28



ASSETS:

Cash 0.00

Loan Receivable 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 0.00

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 0.00

Expenditures 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES
 & FUND BALANCE 0.00

GRANTS- MULTI FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

29



ASSETS:

Cash 16,758.86

Taxes Receivable 178,910.00

TOTAL ASSETS 195,668.86

LIABILITIES

Deferred Revenue 178,910.00

178,910.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 206,164.08

Expenditures -205,887.94

Fund Balance Unreserved 16,482.72
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 195,668.86

LIBRARY EMPLOYEE BENEFIT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

30



ASSETS:

Cash 86,586.51

TOTAL ASSETS 86,586.51

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 24,642.60

Expenditures -8,384.72

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 70,328.63

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 86,586.51

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 86,586.51

GOLF COURSE IMPROVEMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

31



ASSETS:

Cash 5,026.93

TOTAL ASSETS 5,026.93

FUND BALANCE

Revenues

Expenditures

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 5,026.93
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 5,026.93

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

32



ASSETS:

Cash 930.63

TOTAL ASSETS 930.63

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues

Expenditures -279.88

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 1,210.51
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 930.63

DEPT. OF JUSTICE

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

33



ASSETS:

Cash 1,823,137.09

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 1,823,137.09

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 66,000.00

Expenditures -17,836.00

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 1,774,973.09

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,823,137.09

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 1,823,137.09

SPORTS COMPLEX FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

34



ASSETS:

Cash 373,877.18

Consumers Accts. Receivable 122,234.38

Due From Other Funds 58,673.63

TOTAL ASSETS 554,785.19

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Control Pay Payable 0.00

Accrued Payroll 1,741.50

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,741.50

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 741,677.38

Expenditures -409,062.78

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 220,429.09

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 553,043.69

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 554,785.19

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

35



ASSETS:

Cash 8,950.71

Accts. Receivable 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 8,950.71

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Due To Other Accounts 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 6,156.80

Expenditures -19,358.48

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 5,806.60

Fund Balance Unreserved 16,345.79

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 8,950.71

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 8,950.71

PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

36



ASSETS:

Cash 0.00

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 0.00

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 1,414,727.93

Expenditures -1,414,727.93

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 0.00

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 0.00

ELLIS COUNTY SALES TAX

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

37



ASSETS:

Cash 2,605,267.20

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 2,605,267.20

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 8,036.44

Expenditures -825,278.62

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 3,422,509.38

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 2,605,267.20

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 2,605,267.20

CITY COMMISSION CAPITAL RESERVE

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

38



ASSETS:

Cash -3,294,250.33

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources

Due From Other Funds 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS -3,294,250.33

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 0.00

Expenditures -625,419.01

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 1,074,096.85

Fund Balance Unreserved -3,742,928.17

TOTAL FUND BALANCE -3,294,250.33

TOTAL LIABILITIES

 & FUND BALANCE -3,294,250.33

CAPITAL PROJECTS  FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

39



ASSETS:

Cash 0.00

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 0.00

LIABILITIES

Due To Other Funds 0.00

Accounts  Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 0.00

Expenditures

Fund Balance Unreserved 0.00

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 0.00

CAPITAL PROJECTS 2001 FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

40



ASSETS:

Cash 189,139.20

Accts. Receivable 108,774.00

Grants Receivable 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 297,913.20

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Due To Other Accounts 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 682,519.57

Expenditures -188,442.50

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 95,203.67

Fund Balance Unreserved -291,367.54

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 297,913.20

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 297,913.20

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

41



ASSETS:

Cash 255,310.74

Due From Other Funds 0.00

Taxes Receivable 724,677.00

TOTAL ASSETS 979,987.74

LIABILITIES

Lease Purchase Agreements 0.00

Deferred Revenue 724,677.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 724,677.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 1,387,861.23

Expenditures -1,320,074.46

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 187,523.97

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 255,310.74

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 979,987.74

BOND & INTEREST  FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

42



ASSETS:

Cash 17,490.88

Due From Other Funds 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 17,490.88

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 19,914.32

TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,914.32

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 190,324.37

Expenditures -192,747.81

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 0.00

TOTAL FUND BALANCE -2,423.44

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 17,490.88

TRANSPORTATION  DD SALES TAX FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

43



ASSETS:

Cash 61,375.11

Cash-Restricted 117,188.90

TOTAL ASSETS 178,564.01

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 189,914.61

Expenditures -213,805.00

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 202,454.40

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 178,564.01

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 178,564.01

HOME DEPOT-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BONDS

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

44



ASSETS:

Cash 30,431.02

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 30,431.02

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 82,442.24

Expenditures -75,978.70

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 23,967.48

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 30,431.02

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 30,431.02

48th & ROTH AVE.-CID

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

45



ASSETS:

Cash 33,886.69

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 33,886.69

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 163,576.08

Expenditures -239,150.42

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 109,461.03

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 33,886.69

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 33,886.69

THE MALL CID

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

46



ASSETS:

Cash- 2,508,101.13
Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources
Cash-Water Sales Tax 0.00
Reserve-Capital Improvement 0.00
Reserve Bond & Int. Sales Tax
Reserve Bond & Interest W/S 0.00
Consumers Accounts Receivable 237,963.43
Misc. Mdse Accts. Receivable 0.00
Issuance Cost-Sales Tax Fund 0.00
Issuance Costs Water /Sewer 0.00
Restricted Cash-2009A Bond 45,746.40
Reserve-W/S Revenue Bond 2009A 245,184.03
Due From Other Funds 0.00
Land 139,109.47
Land-R-9 Ranch 4,262,039.65
Accum Depreciation- R-9 Ranch -1,378,314.05
Infrastructure 14,662,846.80
Accum Depreciation-Infrastruct -8,839,291.42
Buildings 1,790,520.31
Accum Depreciation-Bldgs. -2,551,238.90
Machinery & Equipment 10,606,349.25
Accum Dep-Machinery/Equipment -8,330,570.38
Work in Progress-Big Creek 2,082,833.90
Water Sales Tax Expenditures 0.00
R-9 Ranch Expenditures 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 15,481,279.62

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable -1,500.00
Control Pay Payble 0.00
Due To Other Funds
Accrued Payroll 36,670.79
Accrued Vacation/PTO 39,321.71
Sales Tax -4,976.88
State Water Fee 13,723.59
Meter Deposit Payable 268,900.56
Refuse Collection -63,728.26
Accrued Int. Payable-Bonds 25,363.15
State Rev. Loan Payment 0.00
G O Bond Payable-Serv. Bldg. 0.00
Bonds Payable-W/S Rev. Bonds 0.00
Bonds Payable-Sales Tax Fund 0.00
Accrued Int. Pybl-Revolv Loan 0.00
Contributed Capital 2,250,573.24
Reserve for Bad Debts -721.56
Bonds Payable-W/S 2009 A 2,890,000.00
Advance Developer Fee 0.00
Stormwater Fee 128.25
Over & Short 33.38
Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00
Monitoring Well Deposit 4,500.00
Overpayment-Water Sales 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,458,287.97

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 2,675,150.90
Expenditures -1,593,876.52
Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 145,157.58
Fund Balance Unreserved 8,796,559.69
Capital Imprv. Reserve Fund Balance 0.00

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 10,022,991.65

TOTAL LIABILITIES

15,481,279.62

WATER  FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

47



ASSETS:

Cash 523,581.58

Reserve Account 523,880.56

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

Due From Other Funds 43,380.39

Buildings 294,594.00

Machinery & Equipment 1,806,335.00

Accum Dep-Machinery/Equipment -1,453,594.37

TOTAL ASSETS 1,738,177.16

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Control Pay Payble 0.00

Accrued Payroll 11,582.53

Accrued Vacation/PTO 24,111.63

Contributed Capital 115,383.00

Lease Purchase Obligation 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 151,077.16

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 1,214,400.17

Expenditures -997,074.35

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 845,893.62

Solid Waste Reserve 523,880.56

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,587,100.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 1,738,177.16

SOLID WASTE FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

48



ASSETS:

Cash 2,107,954.13

Consumers Accounts Receivable 112,338.24

Restricted Cash-2009 A Bond 19,605.60

Reserve W/S Rev Bond 2009A 105,078.83

Infrastructure 1,741,372.64

Accum Depreciation-Infrastructure -861,232.09

Buildings 9,992,389.23

Accum Depreciation-Bldgs -4,527,917.84

Machinery & Equipment 1,013,659.79

Accum Dep -Machinery/Equipment -1,010,474.46

TOTAL ASSETS 8,692,774.07

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Accrued Vacation 29,644.21

Accrued Int. Payable-Bonds -6,519.78

Contributed Capital 964,531.39

Bonds Payable -90,000.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 897,655.82

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 2,310,939.67

Expenditures -804,846.08

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 6,289,024.66

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 7,795,118.25

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 8,692,774.07

WASTE WATER FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

49



ASSETS:

Cash 2,284,036.90

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 2,284,036.90

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 1,500.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,500.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 2,638,714.23

Expenditures -356,177.33

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc

Fund Balance Unreserved 0.00

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 2,282,536.90

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 2,284,036.90

WATER CONSERVATION / WATER  SALES TAX

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

50



ASSETS:

Cash 352,491.91

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 352,491.91

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues

Expenditures -378,667.50

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc

Fund Balance Unreserved 731,159.41

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 352,491.91

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 352,491.91

WATER RESERVE FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

51



ASSETS:

Cash 705,846.47

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 705,846.47

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 0.00

Expenditures -25,312.94

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc

Fund Balance Unreserved 731,159.41

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 705,846.47

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 705,846.47

WASTE WATER RESERVE FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

52



ASSETS:

Cash 28,826,774.52

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 28,826,774.52

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 1,408.52

Expenditures -531,720.67

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 29,357,086.67

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 28,826,774.52

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 28,826,774.52

WATER SALES TAX RESERVE

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

53



ASSETS:

Cash 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 0.00

Expenditures 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 0.00
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 0.00

FIRE INSURANCE TRUST FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

54



ASSETS:

Cash 121,136.60

TOTAL ASSETS 121,136.60

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Due To Other Accounts 41,446.00

Bonds Payable 27,791.00

Over & Short -0.50

TOTAL LIABILITIES 69,236.50

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 151,969.94

Expenditures -116,511.77

Fund Balance Reserved  for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 16,441.93

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 51,900.10

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 121,136.60

MUNICIPAL COURT AGENCY FUND

BALANCE SHEET

10/31/2016

55



City of Hays Revenues
Month of October 2016

Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

% Collected 
YTD

General

CULTURE & RECREATION REVENUES

GOLF COURSE REVENUE )(30,758.74307,000.00 11,080.88 276,241.26 %89.98

LOCAL ALCOHOL LIQUOR TAX )(33,134.14131,390.00 0.00 98,255.86 %74.78

Total Revenues $438,390.00 $11,080.88 $374,497.12 )($63,892.88 %85.43

GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUILDING PERMITS )(22,410.4380,000.00 3,759.36 57,589.57 %71.99

BUSINESS LICENSES )(225.0017,000.00 717.50 16,775.00 %98.68

CITY-COUNTY REVENUE SHARING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CMB & LIQUOR LICENSES )(975.0010,000.00 900.00 9,025.00 %90.25

DELINQUENT TAXES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AID/GRANT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

FRANCHISE FEES )(178,357.071,380,000.00 135,887.05 1,201,642.93 %87.08

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 22,466.5230,000.00 8,551.61 52,466.52 %174.89

LOCAL AD VALOREM TAX REDUCTION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LOCAL SALES TAX )(1,588,016.727,597,211.00 648,591.13 6,009,194.28 %79.10

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 14,859.32140,000.00 1,189.97 154,859.32 %110.61

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER LICENSES 492.00500.00 90.00 992.00 %198.40

PET LICENSES )(4,761.0018,000.00 434.00 13,239.00 %73.55

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS )(200.001,200.00 100.00 1,000.00 %83.33

STATE GOVERNMENT AID/GRANT 6,684.600.00 0.00 6,684.60 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM AIRPORT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM CVB 0.0067,325.00 0.00 67,325.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM POOL CONSTRUCTIO 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM SOLID WASTE FUND 0.00228,600.00 0.00 228,600.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL ALCOHOL 0.0048,014.00 0.00 48,014.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL HIGHWAY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPORTS COMPLEX )(227,658.00227,658.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM STORMWATER MGT 0.0065,674.00 0.00 65,674.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER SLS TAX )(555,353.00555,353.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND )(998,248.00998,248.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $11,464,783.00 $800,220.62 $7,933,081.22 )($3,531,701.78 %69.20

PUBLIC SAFETY REVENUES

ANIMAL CONTROL REVENUE 240.003,000.00 535.00 3,240.00 %108.00

COURT APPOINTED REIMBURSEMENT 682.000.00 135.00 682.00 %0.00

COURT COSTS 8,090.5880,000.00 9,260.35 88,090.58 %110.11

COURT FINES )(92,234.52530,000.00 44,640.15 437,765.48 %82.60

LOCAL LAB FEES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $613,000.00 $54,570.50 $529,778.06 )($83,221.94 %86.42

PUBLIC WORKS REVENUES

GRAVE OPENING )(275.004,000.00 550.00 3,725.00 %93.13

SALE OF CEMETERY LOTS )(200.006,300.00 0.00 6,100.00 %96.83

Total Revenues $10,300.00 $550.00 $9,825.00 )($475.00 %95.39

Period (Month) = 10.00

56



Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

% Collected 
YTD

Library

LIBRARY FUND REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX )(5,909.026,785.00 0.00 875.98 %12.91

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX )(22,409.101,212,782.00 66.86 1,190,372.90 %98.15

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE TAX 3,667.724,465.00 41.89 8,132.72 %182.14

DELINQUENT TAXES 18,678.160.00 15.35 18,678.16 %0.00

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 54,547.5872,448.00 13,532.85 126,995.58 %175.29

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE )(113.30)(3,101.00 0.00 )(3,214.30 %103.65

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX 828.951,064.00 154.82 1,892.95 %177.91

WATERCRAFT TAX )(700.00700.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $1,295,143.00 $13,811.77 $1,343,733.99 $48,590.99 %103.75

Airport

AIRPORT FUND REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX )(1,063.261,220.00 0.00 156.74 %12.85

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX )(3,925.60214,351.00 11.82 210,425.40 %98.17

AIRPORT-FUEL SALES 11,010.0520,000.00 5,392.77 31,010.05 %155.05

BUSINESS LICENSES )(6,600.006,600.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE TAX 660.07803.00 7.54 1,463.07 %182.20

DELINQUENT TAXES 3,299.310.00 2.75 3,299.31 %0.00

FARMING (LEASES) )(6,765.0017,000.00 0.00 10,235.00 %60.21

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AID/GRANT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LANDING FEES )(4,000.004,000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE )(866.904,000.00 122.57 3,133.10 %78.33

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 9,793.7313,027.00 2,435.09 22,820.73 %175.18

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 45.74)(614.00 0.00 )(568.26 %92.55

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX 149.07191.00 27.87 340.07 %178.05

RENTALS )(15,293.3776,565.00 3,938.23 61,271.63 %80.03

WATERCRAFT TAX )(126.00126.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $357,269.00 $11,938.64 $343,586.84 )($13,682.16 %96.17

Public Safety Equipment

PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIP REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX )(2,126.702,440.00 0.00 313.30 %12.84

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX )(7,850.45428,702.00 23.64 420,851.55 %98.17

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE TAX 1,318.681,606.00 15.07 2,924.68 %182.11

DELINQUENT TAXES 6,589.040.00 5.49 6,589.04 %0.00

FEDERAL & STATE GRANTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AID/GRANT 3,729.020.00 0.00 3,729.02 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 19,565.7626,053.00 4,867.75 45,618.76 %175.10

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 91.52)(1,228.00 0.00 )(1,136.48 %92.55

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX 296.81383.00 55.68 679.81 %177.50

WATERCRAFT TAX )(252.00252.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $458,208.00 $4,967.63 $479,569.68 $21,361.68 %104.66

Period (Month) = 10.00

57



Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

% Collected 
YTD

Employee Benefit

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX )(12,574.2914,372.00 0.00 1,797.71 %12.51

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX )(47,592.642,561,655.00 141.20 2,514,062.36 %98.14

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE TAX 7,745.409,459.00 88.70 17,204.40 %181.88

DELINQUENT TAXES 37,774.210.00 31.50 37,774.21 %0.00

INSURANCE REFUNDS 17,877.000.00 0.00 17,877.00 %0.00

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS )(299.012,000.00 431.55 1,700.99 %85.05

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 28,347.830.00 976.84 28,347.83 %0.00

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 113,550.85153,458.00 28,663.99 267,008.85 %173.99

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 190.34)(6,979.00 0.00 )(6,788.66 %97.27

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX 1,720.602,254.00 327.92 3,974.60 %176.34

TRANSFER FROM AIRPORT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM CVB 0.0080,174.00 0.00 80,174.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM RISK MANAGEMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM SOLID WASTE FUND 0.00180,470.00 0.00 180,470.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL ALCOHOL 0.0024,812.00 0.00 24,812.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL HIGHWAY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPORTS COMPLEX 0.0017,836.00 0.00 17,836.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM STORMWATER MGT 0.0021,771.00 0.00 21,771.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND )(492,896.00492,896.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRNSF FRM WATER CONSERVATION )(24,938.0024,938.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

WATERCRAFT TAX )(1,482.001,482.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

XFER FRM COMM CAPITAL RESERVE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $3,580,598.00 $30,661.70 $3,208,022.29 )($372,575.71 %89.59

Special Highway

SPECIAL HIGHWAY REVENUES

CONNECTING LINK MAINTENANCE 30.8344,760.00 11,251.15 44,790.83 %100.07

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

STATE GASOLINE TAX 13,887.04545,160.00 150,070.27 559,047.04 %102.55

TRANSFER FROM CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 0.00500,000.00 0.00 500,000.00 %100.00

Total Revenues $1,089,920.00 $161,321.42 $1,103,837.87 $13,917.87 %101.28

Special Park & Rec

SPECIAL PRK & REC REVENUES

DOG PARK DONATIONS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LOCAL ALCOHOL LIQUOR TAX )(33,134.14131,390.00 0.00 98,255.86 %74.78

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $131,390.00 $0.00 $98,255.86 )($33,134.14 %74.78

Special Alcohol Fund

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND REVENUES

LOCAL ALCOHOL LIQUOR TAX )(33,134.13131,390.00 0.00 98,255.87 %74.78

Total Revenues $131,390.00 $0.00 $98,255.87 )($33,134.13 %74.78

Convention & Visitors Bureau

CONVENTION & VISITOR'S REVENUE

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE )(9,297.3640,000.00 3,044.95 30,702.64 %76.76

TRANSIENT GUEST TAX 123,704.19792,058.00 251,808.80 915,762.19 %115.62

Total Revenues $832,058.00 $254,853.75 $946,464.83 $114,406.83 %113.75

Period (Month) = 10.00

58



Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

% Collected 
YTD

New Equipment Reserve

NEW EQUIP RESERVE REVENUES

FEDERAL & STATE GRANTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 8,618.500.00 1,779.38 8,618.50 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM AIRPORT 6,830.000.00 0.00 6,830.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM CVB 2,760.000.00 0.00 2,760.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 301,735.000.00 0.00 301,735.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM PUBLIC SAFETY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL PARK 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPORTS COMPLEX 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM STORMWATER MGT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $1,779.38 $319,943.50 $319,943.50 %0.00

Library Employee Benefit

LIBRARY EMP. BENEFIT REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX )(860.58994.00 0.00 133.42 %13.42

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX )(3,283.82186,365.00 10.29 183,081.18 %98.24

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE TAX 539.36654.00 6.13 1,193.36 %182.47

DELINQUENT TAXES 2,696.330.00 2.34 2,696.33 %0.00

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 8,169.4110,610.00 1,982.61 18,779.41 %177.00

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 26.68)(521.00 0.00 )(494.32 %94.88

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX 124.38156.00 22.68 280.38 %179.73

WATERCRAFT TAX )(103.00103.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $198,361.00 $2,024.05 $205,669.76 $7,308.76 %103.68

Risk Management

RISK MANAGEMENT REVENUES

INSURANCE REFUNDS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

Golf Course Improvement

GOLF COURSE IMPR. FUND REVENUE

GOLF COURSE REVENUE 18,967.600.00 18.76 18,967.60 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 5,675.000.00 0.00 5,675.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $18.76 $24,642.60 $24,642.60 %0.00

Park Development

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND-REVENUE

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

DOJ Program

DOJ PROGRAM-REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

Sports Complex

SPORTS COMPLEX-REVENUES

LOCAL SALES TAX 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 66,000.000.00 0.00 66,000.00 %0.00

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $66,000.00 $66,000.00 %0.00

Period (Month) = 10.00

59



Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

% Collected 
YTD

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

STORMWATER FEE )(38,294.70772,640.00 77,496.44 734,345.30 %95.04

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 0.0016,500.00 0.00 16,500.00 %100.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $789,140.00 $77,496.44 $750,845.30 )($38,294.70 %95.15

PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND-REVENUE

DOG PARK DONATIONS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 6,156.800.00 0.00 6,156.80 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $6,156.80 $6,156.80 %0.00

ELLIS CO. SALES TAX-REVENUES

LOCAL SALES TAX 1,414,727.930.00 151,876.01 1,414,727.93 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $151,876.01 $1,414,727.93 $1,414,727.93 %0.00

City Commission Capital Resrv

CITY COMMISSION CPTL RESRV REV

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 8,036.440.00 1,487.81 8,036.44 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRNSF FRM  FIN POLICY PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $1,487.81 $8,036.44 $8,036.44 %0.00

Airport Improvement

AIRPORT IMPR.FUND REVENUES

FEDERAL & STATE GRANTS 656,699.000.00 142,122.00 656,699.00 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NOTE/BOND PROCEEDS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE 25,820.570.00 2,791.66 25,820.57 %0.00

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TEMPORARY NOTES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TEMPORARY NOTES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TEMPORARY NOTES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM AIRPORT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRNSF FRM  FIN POLICY PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $144,913.66 $682,519.57 $682,519.57 %0.00

Bond & Interest

BOND & INTEREST REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX )(4,049.184,688.00 0.00 638.82 %13.63

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX )(14,073.81754,872.00 41.62 740,798.19 %98.14

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE TAX 2,547.153,085.00 28.94 5,632.15 %182.57

DELINQUENT TAXES 14,977.550.00 11.19 14,977.55 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 38,846.3050,056.00 9,351.11 88,902.30 %177.61

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 105.93)(2,107.00 0.00 )(2,001.07 %94.97

RECEIVED FROM  TIF  PROCEEDS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX 593.27735.00 106.96 1,328.27 %180.72

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT TAX 24,975.95510,608.00 155.00 535,583.95 %104.89

TRANSFER FROM CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL HIGHWAY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

WATERCRAFT TAX )(484.00484.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $1,322,421.00 $9,694.82 $1,385,860.16 $63,439.16 %104.80

Period (Month) = 10.00

60



Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

% Collected 
YTD

TDD Sales Tax

TDD SLS TAX   REVENUES

LOCAL SALES TAX 246,887.29)(56,562.92 17,490.88 190,324.37 %-336.48

Total Revenues )($56,562.92 $17,490.88 $190,324.37 $246,887.29 %-336.48

Home Depot Economic Dev Bonds

H DEPOT-ECON DEV BND-REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RECEIVED FROM  TIF  PROCEEDS )(29,402.39219,317.00 11,661.00 189,914.61 %86.59

Total Revenues $219,317.00 $11,661.00 $189,914.61 )($29,402.39 %86.59

48th/Roth Ave. - CID

48TH/ROTH AVE CID-REVENUES

LOCAL SALES TAX 82,237.490.00 8,913.28 82,237.49 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 204.750.00 126.47 204.75 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $9,039.75 $82,442.24 $82,442.24 %0.00

Mall CID

THE MALL CID-REVENUES

LOCAL SALES TAX 162,594.660.00 16,790.62 162,594.66 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 981.420.00 0.00 981.42 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $16,790.62 $163,576.08 $163,576.08 %0.00

Water Fund

WATER  FUND REVENUES

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

FEDERAL & STATE GRANTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 3,867.2210,500.00 1,207.84 14,367.22 %136.83

INTEREST-SALES TAX COLLECTION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LOCAL SALES TAX 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 18,579.207,000.00 6,137.99 25,579.20 %365.42

NOTE/BOND PROCEEDS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PENALTY 105.1012,500.00 945.65 12,605.10 %100.84

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

R-9 RANCH REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SEWER SERVICE CHARGES )(105.680.00 0.00 )(105.68 %0.00

STORMWATER FEE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TAPS-TURN ONS 31,861.0635,000.00 20,644.00 66,861.06 %191.03

TRANSFER FROM SOLID WASTE FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL HIGHWAY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER SLS TAX 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

WATER SALES )(687,163.423,035,299.00 254,654.21 2,348,135.58 %77.36

WATER SALES-CONSERVATION RATE )(29,119.61306,000.00 46,860.99 276,880.39 %90.48

WATER VIOLATION 850.000.00 0.00 850.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $3,406,299.00 $330,450.68 $2,745,172.87 )($661,126.13 %80.59

Solid Waste

SOLID WASTE FUND REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 381.91750.00 215.66 1,131.91 %150.92

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE )(388.2530,000.00 3,982.20 29,611.75 %98.71

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

REFUSE COLLECTION )(57,644.741,270,000.00 107,731.03 1,212,355.26 %95.46

YARD WASTE TAGS 75.751,200.00 10.50 1,275.75 %106.31

Total Revenues $1,301,950.00 $111,939.39 $1,244,374.67 )($57,575.33 %95.58

Waste Water Fund

WASTE WATER FUND REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 931.854,500.00 1,045.86 5,431.85 %120.71

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 3,188.203,000.00 1,293.20 6,188.20 %206.27

PENALTY 87.3112,500.00 942.49 12,587.31 %100.70

SEWER SERVICE CHARGES )(255,916.622,602,168.00 261,943.32 2,346,251.38 %90.17

Total Revenues $2,622,168.00 $265,224.87 $2,370,458.74 )($251,709.26 %90.40

Period (Month) = 10.00

61



Collections 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Collections 
To Date Balance

% Collected 
YTD

Water Conservation

 WA CONSERV REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 16,494.5345,000.00 14,450.15 61,494.53 %136.65

LOCAL SALES TAX )(630,863.003,085,293.00 264,101.00 2,454,430.00 %79.55

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 474.000.00 10.00 474.00 %0.00

R-9 RANCH REVENUE )(127,684.30250,000.00 9,388.70 122,315.70 %48.93

Total Revenues $3,380,293.00 $287,949.85 $2,638,714.23 )($741,578.77 %78.06

Water Reserve Fund

WATER RESERVE REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

Wastewater Reserve Fund

WASTEWATER RESERVE REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

Water Sales Tax

WATER SLS TX RESERVE REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 1,408.520.00 0.00 1,408.52 %0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $1,408.52 $1,408.52 %0.00

Fire Insurance Trust

FIRE INS TRUST REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

Grand Totals $33,585,835.08 $2,783,814.88 $30,959,697.02 )($2,626,138.06 %92.18

Period (Month) = 10.00

62



City of Hays Expenditures
Month of  October   2016

Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

General

BALLFIELD MAINTENANCE
BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CHEMICALS 0.006,500.00 4,081.25 2,418.75 %62.79

COMMUNICATION 21.19600.00 207.90 392.10 %34.65

ELECTRICITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 157.095,000.00 1,769.69 3,230.31 %35.39

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 1,121.29 )(1,121.29 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 1,579.23 )(1,579.23 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 265.987,200.00 5,138.90 2,061.10 %71.37

NATURAL GAS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.006,500.00 6,420.00 80.00 %98.77

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 45.685,000.00 2,437.34 2,562.66 %48.75

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS 0.00300.00 0.00 300.00 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 20.537,000.00 2,296.80 4,703.20 %32.81

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.00200.00 0.00 200.00 %0.00

UNIFORMS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $38,300.00 $510.47 $25,052.40 $13,247.60 %65.41

BICKLE-SCHMIDT SPORTS COMPLEX
BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CHEMICALS 0.0016,000.00 10,694.92 5,305.08 %66.84

COMMUNICATION 18.831,600.00 177.55 1,422.45 %11.10

CONTINGENCY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

ELECTRICITY 1,961.2655,000.00 17,739.10 37,260.90 %32.25

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 92.037,000.00 3,260.54 3,739.46 %46.58

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 265.10 )(265.10 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 180.86 )(180.86 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 175.73 )(175.73 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 4.400.00 1,287.40 )(1,287.40 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 4.390.00 1,338.24 )(1,338.24 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 14.660.00 236.06 )(236.06 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE )(52.967,000.00 )(198.03 7,198.03 %-2.83

FUEL EXPENSE 56.640.00 192.97 )(192.97 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE 31.820.00 157.99 )(157.99 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE 8.270.00 54.78 )(54.78 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE 22.990.00 185.49 )(185.49 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE 70.070.00 438.28 )(438.28 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE 165.140.00 452.25 )(452.25 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE 20.850.00 251.02 )(251.02 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE 65.840.00 222.54 )(222.54 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

FUEL EXPENSE 52.960.00 198.03 )(198.03 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 193.0235,000.00 8,089.37 26,910.63 %23.11

NATURAL GAS 30.471,200.00 337.16 862.84 %28.10

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.002,500.00 1,110.00 1,390.00 %44.40

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00300.00 44.61 255.39 %14.87

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 178.8610,000.00 2,485.46 7,514.54 %24.85

OVERTIME 0.002,000.00 79.22 1,920.78 %3.96

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS 0.001,200.00 308.00 892.00 %25.67

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 37.9813,000.00 10,241.55 2,758.45 %78.78

SALARIES 2,177.8426,233.00 22,570.35 3,662.65 %86.04

SEASONAL/PART TIME 2,127.0028,900.00 20,987.50 7,912.50 %72.62

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.0019,525.00 0.00 19,525.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.00400.00 0.00 400.00 %0.00

Period (Month) = 10.0063



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

UNIFORMS 52.42800.00 410.93 389.07 %51.37

Total Expenditures $227,658.00 $7,334.78 $103,974.97 $123,683.03 %45.67

BUILDINGS & GROUNDS
COMMUNICATION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

ELECTRICITY 33,262.93435,000.00 333,585.06 101,414.94 %76.69

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 223.064,000.00 2,043.44 1,956.56 %51.09

NATURAL GAS 337.3528,875.00 17,113.56 11,761.44 %59.27

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,099.0926,060.00 21,544.50 4,515.50 %82.67

PROJECTS 0.000.00 397.66 )(397.66 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 200.0010,000.00 2,781.20 7,218.80 %27.81

Total Expenditures $503,935.00 $36,122.43 $377,465.42 $126,469.58 %74.90

CEMETERIES
BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CHEMICALS 0.002,500.00 867.28 1,632.72 %34.69

COMMUNICATION 13.72200.00 118.30 81.70 %59.15

ELECTRICITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 34.761,700.00 712.99 987.01 %41.94

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 301.45 )(301.45 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 47.670.00 92.56 )(92.56 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 2,490.985,500.00 4,306.14 1,193.86 %78.29

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.00700.00 502.00 198.00 %71.71

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00900.00 119.50 780.50 %13.28

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS 0.00200.00 0.00 200.00 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 0.005,500.00 3,471.78 2,028.22 %63.12

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.00300.00 0.00 300.00 %0.00

UNIFORMS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $17,500.00 $2,587.13 $10,492.00 $7,008.00 %59.95

CITY ATTORNEY
LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.001,000.00 35.00 965.00 %3.50

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 7,487.50100,000.00 115,172.99 )(15,172.99 %115.17

Total Expenditures $101,000.00 $7,487.50 $115,207.99 )($14,207.99 %114.07

CITY COMMISSION
COMMUNICATION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

FINANCIAL POLICY PROJ-CAPITAL 0.002,141,545.00 0.00 2,141,545.00 %0.00

FINANCIAL POLICY PROJ-CAPITAL 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 166.991,500.00 395.34 1,104.66 %26.36

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.00500.00 0.00 500.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00500.00 50.00 450.00 %10.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 750.009,000.00 7,500.00 1,500.00 %83.33

TRAVEL & TRAINING 388.7720,000.00 5,160.52 14,839.48 %25.80

Total Expenditures $2,173,045.00 $1,305.76 $13,105.86 $2,159,939.14 %0.60

CITY MANAGER
COMMUNICATION 177.633,700.00 1,897.97 1,802.03 %51.30

CONTINGENCY 46.98100,000.00 48,335.83 51,664.17 %48.34

EXPENSE ALLOWANCE-CAR 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 22.502,200.00 218.86 1,981.14 %9.95

INTERNSHIP 0.0020,000.00 9,965.00 10,035.00 %49.83

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 250.0035,000.00 24,416.15 10,583.85 %69.76

OVERTIME 0.003,500.00 737.23 2,762.77 %21.06

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 23,232.95318,193.00 252,326.64 65,866.36 %79.30

TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,248.3529,000.00 16,349.80 12,650.20 %56.38

Total Expenditures $511,593.00 $26,978.41 $354,247.48 $157,345.52 %69.24

Period (Month) = 10.0064



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

DISPATCH
COMMUNICATION 169.672,200.00 1,471.64 728.36 %66.89

CONTINGENCY 58.345,000.00 315.57 4,684.43 %6.31

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.002,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.001,000.00 214.34 785.66 %21.43

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 856.002,100.00 1,355.08 744.92 %64.53

OVERTIME 2,395.9247,165.00 47,340.52 )(175.52 %100.37

SALARIES 37,512.84504,819.00 352,135.82 152,683.18 %69.75

TRAVEL & TRAINING 75.009,500.00 1,528.59 7,971.41 %16.09

UNIFORMS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $573,784.00 $41,067.77 $404,361.56 $169,422.44 %70.47

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT CORP. 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

JOB  BOUNTY 0.0015,000.00 2,400.00 12,600.00 %16.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 575.00214,378.00 217,095.28 )(2,717.28 %101.27

Total Expenditures $229,378.00 $575.00 $219,495.28 $9,882.72 %95.69

FINANCE/CITY CLERK
COMMUNICATION 106.001,400.00 761.73 638.27 %54.41

CONTINGENCY 94.505,000.00 94.50 4,905.50 %1.89

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 440.96700.00 640.92 59.08 %91.56

INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 265.2012,000.00 4,228.61 7,771.39 %35.24

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,662.047,800.00 5,394.46 2,405.54 %69.16

OVERTIME 0.00500.00 351.30 148.70 %70.26

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.0041,000.00 42,131.00 )(1,131.00 %102.76

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 22,988.56305,611.00 255,944.93 49,666.07 %83.75

TRAVEL & TRAINING 381.437,000.00 2,362.79 4,637.21 %33.75

Total Expenditures $381,011.00 $25,938.69 $311,910.24 $69,100.76 %81.86

Period (Month) = 10.0065



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

FIRE DEPARTMENT
COMMUNICATION 543.606,600.00 4,792.61 1,807.39 %72.62

CONTINGENCY 0.005,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 637.7552,000.00 12,379.69 39,620.31 %23.81

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 3,426.510.00 12,739.39 )(12,739.39 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 1,687.850.00 13,471.00 )(13,471.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 116.950.00 1,085.22 )(1,085.22 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 3,453.140.00 15,006.53 )(15,006.53 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 8.220.00 8.22 )(8.22 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 21.950.00 69.95 )(69.95 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 121.750.00 4,900.87 )(4,900.87 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 112.84 )(112.84 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 146.950.00 3,936.62 )(3,936.62 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 123.410.00 1,136.05 )(1,136.05 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 432.00 )(432.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 1,898.4246,000.00 31,504.90 14,495.10 %68.49

GRANT FUNDING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 163.69500.00 235.69 264.31 %47.14

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 194.704,400.00 4,411.36 )(11.36 %100.26

OVERTIME 5,603.42121,000.00 101,416.55 19,583.45 %83.82

PAID PER CALL 139.2322,000.00 16,034.32 5,965.68 %72.88

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 1,312.8737,000.00 21,771.93 15,228.07 %58.84

SALARIES 77,588.421,052,467.00 853,032.91 199,434.09 %81.05

TRAINING CERTIFICATION 0.0014,600.00 0.00 14,600.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 241.2433,200.00 23,165.07 10,034.93 %69.77

UNIFORMS 205.689,400.00 5,062.07 4,337.93 %53.85

Total Expenditures $1,404,167.00 $97,635.75 $1,126,705.79 $277,461.21 %80.24

FLEET MAINTENANCE

Total Expenditures $801,073.00 $46,279.12 $402,506.02 $398,566.98 %50.25

Period (Month) = 10.0066



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

GOLF COURSE
BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CHEMICALS 350.4471,500.00 48,917.44 22,582.56 %68.42

COMMUNICATION 146.862,800.00 1,296.49 1,503.51 %46.30

ELECTRICITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 56.977,000.00 1,080.82 5,919.18 %15.44

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 164.21 )(164.21 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 7.66 )(7.66 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 165.08 )(165.08 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 145.93 )(145.93 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 610.53 )(610.53 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 628.16 )(628.16 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 740.85 )(740.85 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 751.46 )(751.46 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 882.60 )(882.60 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 905.69 )(905.69 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 179.57 )(179.57 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 3,358.3131,100.00 22,877.56 8,222.44 %73.56

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NATURAL GAS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.003,900.00 1,999.99 1,900.01 %51.28

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00400.00 117.99 282.01 %29.50

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,826.5032,900.00 21,224.41 11,675.59 %64.51

OVERTIME 1,026.189,000.00 13,764.73 )(4,764.73 %152.94

PRO SHOP CR CARD ACTIVITY 278.520.00 )(819.30 819.30 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS 316.541,500.00 411.04 1,088.96 %27.40

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 71.0915,500.00 14,913.44 586.56 %96.22

SALARIES 10,190.98136,618.00 114,648.49 21,969.51 %83.92

SEASONAL/PART TIME 7,494.7550,000.00 66,854.25 )(16,854.25 %133.71

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.003,400.00 90.00 3,310.00 %2.65

UNIFORMS 134.751,000.00 522.51 477.49 %52.25

Total Expenditures $366,618.00 $25,251.89 $313,081.60 $53,536.40 %85.40

HUMAN RESOURCES
COMMUNICATION 51.951,000.00 555.70 444.30 %55.57

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 452.9115,000.00 5,219.40 9,780.60 %34.80

ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMENT 5,617.2229,500.00 13,379.58 16,120.42 %45.35

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.001,717.00 517.66 1,199.34 %30.15

OVERTIME 0.00250.00 0.00 250.00 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 9,241.2540,800.00 25,245.00 15,555.00 %61.88

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 7,063.14104,483.00 87,217.48 17,265.52 %83.48

TRAVEL & TRAINING 78.433,000.00 1,754.03 1,245.97 %58.47

Total Expenditures $195,750.00 $22,504.90 $133,888.85 $61,861.15 %68.40

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
COMMUNICATION 251.533,550.00 2,297.78 1,252.22 %64.73

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 882.569,250.00 5,000.67 4,249.33 %54.06

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 255.473,500.00 2,511.46 988.54 %71.76

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 6,464.7622,060.00 20,108.69 1,951.31 %91.15

OFFICE SUPPLIES 67.9414,950.00 6,099.11 8,850.89 %40.80

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 9,336.40196,130.00 169,670.64 26,459.36 %86.51

OVERTIME 45.181,200.00 869.25 330.75 %72.44

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 21,250.83289,772.00 234,980.97 54,791.03 %81.09

TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,194.5517,610.00 9,975.28 7,634.72 %56.65

Total Expenditures $558,022.00 $39,749.22 $451,513.85 $106,508.15 %80.91

Period (Month) = 10.0067



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNT
COMMUNICATION 3,034.8157,000.00 49,779.52 7,220.48 %87.33

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS 0.00240,000.00 220,758.00 19,242.00 %91.98

OFFICE SUPPLIES 335.2624,500.00 19,192.56 5,307.44 %78.34

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,201.9712,800.00 16,432.44 )(3,632.44 %128.38

Total Expenditures $334,300.00 $4,572.04 $306,162.52 $28,137.48 %91.58

MUNICIPAL COURT
INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 106.961,200.00 419.86 780.14 %34.99

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 301.056,700.00 2,732.87 3,967.13 %40.79

OVERTIME 0.003,000.00 223.82 2,776.18 %7.46

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,120.0035,000.00 21,047.00 13,953.00 %60.13

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SAFE RIDE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 8,114.32116,565.00 93,760.73 22,804.27 %80.44

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.001,000.00 100.00 900.00 %10.00

Total Expenditures $163,465.00 $10,642.33 $118,284.28 $45,180.72 %72.36

P.W.-GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
COMMUNICATION 234.143,650.00 2,042.16 1,607.84 %55.95

CONTINGENCY 144.635,000.00 487.63 4,512.37 %9.75

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 425.245,000.00 3,277.20 1,722.80 %65.54

OFFICE SUPPLIES 162.965,000.00 1,401.71 3,598.29 %28.03

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.002,200.00 310.00 1,890.00 %14.09

OVERTIME 0.00500.00 54.50 445.50 %10.90

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.0030,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 17,669.34234,190.00 195,683.44 38,506.56 %83.56

TRAVEL & TRAINING 317.868,000.00 2,875.51 5,124.49 %35.94

Total Expenditures $293,540.00 $18,954.17 $206,132.15 $87,407.85 %70.22

PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS
BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CHEMICALS 0.0018,000.00 15,904.76 2,095.24 %88.36

COMMUNICATION 186.632,500.00 1,657.50 842.50 %66.30

CONTINGENCY 46.985,000.00 842.28 4,157.72 %16.85

ELECTRICITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 161.0112,000.00 6,988.31 5,011.69 %58.24

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 253.38 )(253.38 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 484.70 )(484.70 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 785.31 )(785.31 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 934.40 )(934.40 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 492.49 )(492.49 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 1,096.43 )(1,096.43 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 899.3348,500.00 34,994.42 13,505.58 %72.15

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NATURAL GAS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.007,600.00 5,241.46 2,358.54 %68.97

OFFICE SUPPLIES 4.40800.00 456.45 343.55 %57.06

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,560.0824,000.00 20,479.86 3,520.14 %85.33

OVERTIME 543.8210,000.00 10,605.92 )(605.92 %106.06

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS 0.00800.00 135.54 664.46 %16.94

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 44.0617,400.00 9,136.11 8,263.89 %52.51

SALARIES 47,405.03647,041.00 518,233.91 128,807.09 %80.09

SEASONAL/PART TIME 8,370.5096,300.00 86,131.00 10,169.00 %89.44

TRAVEL & TRAINING 26.654,000.00 846.11 3,153.89 %21.15

UNIFORMS 543.146,700.00 4,270.78 2,429.22 %63.74

Total Expenditures $900,641.00 $59,791.63 $719,971.12 $180,669.88 %79.94

Period (Month) = 10.0068



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

PLANNING INSPECTION ENFORCEMEN
COMMUNICATION 29.367,500.00 2,863.55 4,636.45 %38.18

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.003,800.00 1,549.54 2,250.46 %40.78

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 0.001,500.00 357.71 1,142.29 %23.85

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,083.5510,000.00 4,477.77 5,522.23 %44.78

OVERTIME 453.098,000.00 2,940.50 5,059.50 %36.76

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 20,930.00357,449.00 224,482.38 132,966.62 %62.80

SEASONAL/PART TIME 1,398.8411,590.00 13,441.56 )(1,851.56 %115.98

TRAVEL & TRAINING 564.1425,000.00 5,203.40 19,796.60 %20.81

UNIFORMS 0.001,200.00 86.00 1,114.00 %7.17

Total Expenditures $426,039.00 $24,458.98 $255,402.41 $170,636.59 %59.95

Period (Month) = 10.0069



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

POLICE DEPARTMENT
COMMUNICATION 1,009.6315,600.00 6,671.78 8,928.22 %42.77

CONTINGENCY 217.005,000.00 1,767.15 3,232.85 %35.34

ELECTRICITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE )(3,052.6214,750.00 5,882.74 8,867.26 %39.88

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 381.4623,000.00 18,124.86 4,875.14 %78.80

GRANT FUNDING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 75.486,300.00 3,171.80 3,128.20 %50.35

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 31.392,000.00 1,723.01 276.99 %86.15

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 4,828.0852,800.00 35,810.34 16,989.66 %67.82

OVERTIME 7,313.51145,000.00 114,758.22 30,241.78 %79.14

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 150.0022,500.00 8,082.05 14,417.95 %35.92

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 125,446.211,799,773.00 1,378,959.16 420,813.84 %76.62

TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,632.0436,000.00 19,186.12 16,813.88 %53.29

UNIFORMS 529.6115,500.00 7,753.69 7,746.31 %50.02

Total Expenditures $2,138,223.00 $138,561.79 $1,601,890.92 $536,332.08 %74.92

Period (Month) = 10.0070



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

PUBLIC WORKS-SERVICE DIVISION
COMMUNICATION 133.771,400.00 1,187.87 212.13 %84.85

ELECTRICITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 3,366.0948,000.00 36,370.04 11,629.96 %75.77

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 9,262.97250,000.00 116,422.90 133,577.10 %46.57

GRANT FUNDING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NATURAL GAS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.005,100.00 0.00 5,100.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 105.0015,000.00 4,893.71 10,106.29 %32.62

OVERTIME 712.4515,900.00 10,139.08 5,760.92 %63.77

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 2,070.0025,000.00 16,866.00 8,134.00 %67.46

RENTALS 180.002,500.00 3,445.53 )(945.53 %137.82

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 39,887.08549,780.00 431,390.45 118,389.55 %78.47

SEASONAL/PART TIME 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.006,700.00 1,982.25 4,717.75 %29.59

UNIFORMS 750.356,820.00 4,702.19 2,117.81 %68.95

Total Expenditures $926,200.00 $56,467.71 $627,400.02 $298,799.98 %67.74

QUALITY OF LIFE
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

SOCIAL SERVICES
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00164,000.00 164,000.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $164,000.00 $0.00 $164,000.00 $0.00 %100.00

SWIMMING POOL
BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CHEMICALS 0.0035,000.00 18,662.25 16,337.75 %53.32

ELECTRICITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.0010,000.00 5,624.91 4,375.09 %56.25

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 0.008,000.00 3,910.43 4,089.57 %48.88

INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NATURAL GAS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.001,100.00 668.50 431.50 %60.77

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 320.0029,000.00 13,980.41 15,019.59 %48.21

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 0.0017,600.00 12,369.74 5,230.26 %70.28

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $100,700.00 $320.00 $55,216.24 $45,483.76 %54.83

Library

LIBRARY FUND EXPENDITURES
NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.001,330,000.00 1,330,000.00 0.00 %100.00

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST 0.0013,962.00 14,264.78 )(302.78 %102.17

Total Expenditures $1,343,962.00 $0.00 $1,344,264.78 )($302.78 %100.02

Airport

Period (Month) = 10.0071



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

AIRPORT FUND EXPENDITURES
COMMUNICATION 193.793,000.00 1,732.80 1,267.20 %57.76

CONTINGENCY 0.0050,000.00 4,510.30 45,489.70 %9.02

ELECTRICITY 2,522.6135,320.00 25,961.00 9,359.00 %73.50

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 8,227.5234,000.00 26,009.51 7,990.49 %76.50

GRANT FUNDING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.00200.00 1,000.28 )(800.28 %500.14

NATURAL GAS 150.407,665.00 3,387.31 4,277.69 %44.19

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 1,685.0027,000.00 18,477.65 8,522.35 %68.44

OVERTIME 28.072,000.00 2,132.31 )(132.31 %106.62

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 242.501,000.00 242.50 757.50 %24.25

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROMOTIONS 6,526.7340,000.00 26,198.06 13,801.94 %65.50

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 0.0024,600.00 17,534.63 7,065.37 %71.28

SALARIES 2,994.0285,807.00 71,073.84 14,733.16 %82.83

SEASONAL/PART TIME 1,296.005,000.00 5,300.76 )(300.76 %106.02

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST 0.002,524.00 2,521.77 2.23 %99.91

TRANSFER TO AIRPORT IMPROVEMEN 0.0094,608.00 0.00 94,608.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO BOND & INTEREST 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.006,830.00 6,830.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 725.763,000.00 2,094.97 905.03 %69.83

UNIFORMS 31.35880.00 407.41 472.59 %46.30

Total Expenditures $423,434.00 $24,623.75 $215,415.10 $208,018.90 %50.87

Public Safety Equipment

PUBLIC SAFETY  EQUIP.-EXPENDIT
CONTINGENCY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUNDING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GRANT FUNDING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 59.95101,260.00 136.91 101,123.09 %0.14

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 25,305.28 )(25,305.28 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 1,622.680.00 38,595.08 )(38,595.08 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST 0.005,049.00 5,043.53 5.47 %99.89

TRANSFER TO BOND & INTEREST 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.00380,459.00 0.00 380,459.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $486,768.00 $1,682.63 $69,080.80 $417,687.20 %14.19

Employee Benefit

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENDITURES
CONTINGENCY 0.00100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 %0.00

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 77,533.761,327,300.00 891,416.19 435,883.81 %67.16

HEALTH INSURANCE 109,044.441,719,500.00 1,531,965.24 187,534.76 %89.09

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 3,432.6445,676.00 34,432.76 11,243.24 %75.38

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SOCIAL SECURITY 46,086.07695,149.00 523,466.79 171,682.21 %75.30

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST 0.0030,738.00 30,127.45 610.55 %98.01

TRANSFER TO BOND & INTEREST 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO RISK MANAGEMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 3,246.2119,991.00 14,407.20 5,583.80 %72.07

WORKERS COMPENSATION 0.00201,386.00 190,193.00 11,193.00 %94.44

Total Expenditures $4,139,740.00 $239,343.12 $3,216,008.63 $923,731.37 %77.69

Special Highway

Period (Month) = 10.0072



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

SPECIAL HIGHWAY EXPENDITURES
2001 SIDEWALK RAMPS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 4,375.001,122,237.00 1,033,882.40 88,354.60 %92.13

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,303.700.00 5,069.75 )(5,069.75 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CONTINGENCY 2,019.3950,000.00 15,794.60 34,205.40 %31.59

CORR MGT - GENERAL HAYS RD. 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CORR MGT-REVERSE ACCESS 48-55 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO BOND & INTEREST 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO WATER/SEWER FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

VINE ST.-MILL & OVERLAY--13/27 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $1,172,237.00 $7,698.09 $1,054,746.75 $117,490.25 %89.98

Special Park & Rec

SPECIAL PRK & REC EXPENDITURES
BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CONTINGENCY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 4,868.87336,915.00 38,542.97 298,372.03 %11.44

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $336,915.00 $4,868.87 $38,542.97 $298,372.03 %11.44

Special Alcohol Fund

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND EXPENDITU
CONTINGENCY 0.0073,325.00 0.00 73,325.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0060,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.0024,812.00 24,812.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.0048,014.00 48,014.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $206,151.00 $0.00 $132,826.00 $73,325.00 %64.43

Convention & Visitors Bureau

Period (Month) = 10.0073



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

CVB EXPENDITURES
COMMUNICATION 189.576,000.00 1,776.25 4,223.75 %29.60

CONTINGENCY 0.00509,252.00 7,000.00 502,252.00 %1.37

ELECTRICITY 829.699,000.00 7,817.71 1,182.29 %86.86

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 0.000.00 )(43.17 43.17 %0.00

GRANT FUNDING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

INTERNSHIP 500.5020,000.00 5,265.00 14,735.00 %26.33

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 1,972.95110,000.00 57,615.44 52,384.56 %52.38

NATURAL GAS 36.701,500.00 581.36 918.64 %38.76

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 580.155,000.00 3,251.52 1,748.48 %65.03

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 9,955.90100,000.00 75,063.83 24,936.17 %75.06

OUTSIDE AGENCIES 0.0059,131.00 59,130.00 1.00 %100.00

OVERTIME 228.831,500.00 816.91 683.09 %54.46

PROJECTS 0.0029,000.00 419.00 28,581.00 %1.44

PROMOTIONS 6,702.66110,000.00 72,733.48 37,266.52 %66.12

RENTALS 82.380.00 93.21 )(93.21 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 187.5910,000.00 6,453.64 3,546.36 %64.54

SALARIES 9,994.56204,883.00 157,902.16 46,980.84 %77.07

SEASONAL/PART TIME 663.008,150.00 8,087.51 62.49 %99.23

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.0080,174.00 80,174.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.0067,325.00 67,325.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.002,760.00 2,760.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 221.427,000.00 8,475.96 )(1,475.96 %121.09

TRNSFR TO SPECIAL PARK/RECREAT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $1,340,675.00 $32,145.90 $622,698.81 $717,976.19 %46.45

New Equipment Reserve

NEW EQUP. RESERVE EXPENDITURES
CONTINGENCY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 458,534.08 )(458,534.08 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 17,182.16 )(17,182.16 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $475,716.24 )($475,716.24 %0.00

Library Employee Benefit

LIBRARY EMP. BENEFIT EXPENDITU
NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00203,200.00 203,200.00 0.00 %100.00

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST 0.002,148.00 2,193.62 )(45.62 %102.12

Total Expenditures $205,348.00 $0.00 $205,393.62 )($45.62 %100.02

Risk Management

RISK MGT. FUND EXPENDITURES
CONTINGENCY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

Golf Course Improvement

GOLF COURSE IMPR. EXPENDITURES
GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 2,875.060.00 5,724.00 )(5,724.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 2,660.72 )(2,660.72 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $2,875.06 $8,384.72 )($8,384.72 %0.00

Park Development

PARK DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES
CONTINGENCY 0.005,027.00 0.00 5,027.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $5,027.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,027.00 %0.00

DOJ Program

Period (Month) = 10.0074



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

DOJ-EXPENDITURES
NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 279.88 )(279.88 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $279.88 )($279.88 %0.00

Sports Complex

SPORTS COMPLEX-EXPENDITURES
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.000.00 17,836.00 )(17,836.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $17,836.00 )($17,836.00 %0.00

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT EXPENDIT
COMMUNICATION 31.50900.00 514.97 385.03 %57.22

CONTINGENCY 0.0050,000.00 500.00 49,500.00 %1.00

DEBT SERVICES 0.00250,000.00 250,000.00 0.00 %100.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 221.9657,500.00 17,301.61 40,198.39 %30.09

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0010,000.00 9,106.32 893.68 %91.06

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.0055,000.00 900.00 54,100.00 %1.64

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 2,609.0753,663.00 37,040.87 16,622.13 %69.02

SEASONAL/PART TIME 540.000.00 5,872.50 )(5,872.50 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.0021,771.00 21,771.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.0065,674.00 65,674.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0.00294,092.00 0.00 294,092.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.002,500.00 208.51 2,291.49 %8.34

UNIFORMS 0.00200.00 173.00 27.00 %86.50

Total Expenditures $861,300.00 $3,402.53 $409,062.78 $452,237.22 %47.49

PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND-EXPEND
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 7,149.00 )(7,149.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 12,509.48 )(12,509.48 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $19,658.48 )($19,658.48 %0.00

ELLIS CO. SALES TAX-EXPENDITUR
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 151,876.010.00 1,414,727.93 )(1,414,727.93 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $151,876.01 $1,414,727.93 )($1,414,727.93 %0.00

City Commission Capital Reserve

CTY COMMISSION CPTL RSRV EXPEN
NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 894,078.62 )(894,078.62 %0.00

TRANSFER TO AIRPORT IMPROVEMEN 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $894,078.62 )($894,078.62 %0.00

Airport Improvement

Period (Month) = 10.0075



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

AIRPORT IMPR. FUND EXPENDITURE
-17 GRANT 0.00277,800.00 0.00 277,800.00 %0.00

-18 GRANT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

-19 GRANT 0.00571,269.07 0.00 571,269.07 %0.00

-20 GRANT (ARFF BLDG-DESIGN) 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

-21 GRANT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

-22 ARFF FACILITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

-23 ARFF VEHICLE 0.001,684.00 0.00 1,684.00 %0.00

-24 GRANT 0.009,636.00 0.00 9,636.00 %0.00

-25 GRANT 0.0071,062.35 0.00 71,062.35 %0.00

-26 GRANT 0.00106,335.00 0.00 106,335.00 %0.00

-27 GRANT 0.003,715.00 0.00 3,715.00 %0.00

-28 GRANT RECONSTRUCT 16/34 0.007,402,488.00 0.00 7,402,488.00 %0.00

-29 GRANT (SNOW REMOVAL EQUIP) 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

-30 GRANT(TERMINAL BLDG DESGN) 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

-31 GRANT(TERM. BLDG. RENOV) 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

-32 GRANT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

-33 GRANT 0.000.00 170,662.50 )(170,662.50 %0.00

-34 GRANT-WILDLIFE FENCE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

-35 GRANT (TAXIWAY I) 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

COMMUNICATION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 17,780.00 )(17,780.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $8,443,989.42 $0.00 $188,442.50 $8,255,546.92 %2.23

Bond & Interest

BOND & INTEREST EXPENDITURES
BOND PRINCIPAL 0.00940,000.00 940,000.00 0.00 %100.00

CASH BASIS RESERVE 0.0060,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 %0.00

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BONDS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

INTEREST COUPONS 0.00369,194.00 369,192.93 1.07 %100.00

INTEREST ON TEMPORARY NOTE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

INTEREST ON TIF 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEVY STABILIZATION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST 0.008,686.00 8,880.46 )(194.46 %102.24

TRANSFER TO RESERVE FOR TIF 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $1,377,880.00 $0.00 $1,318,073.39 $59,806.61 %95.66

TDD Sales Tax

TDD SLS TAX   EXPENDITURES
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 23,385.840.00 210,238.69 )(210,238.69 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $23,385.84 $210,238.69 )($210,238.69 %0.00

Home Depot Economic Dev Bonds

H DEPOT ECON DEV BND-EXPENDITU
BOND PRINCIPAL 0.00130,000.00 130,000.00 0.00 %100.00

INTEREST COUPONS 0.0083,805.00 83,805.00 0.00 %100.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $213,805.00 $0.00 $213,805.00 $0.00 %100.00

48th/Roth Ave. - CID

48TH/ ROTH AVE CID-EXPENDITURE
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 101,146.88 )(101,146.88 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $101,146.88 )($101,146.88 %0.00

Mall CID

THE MALL CID-EXPENDITURES
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 239,150.42 )(239,150.42 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $239,150.42 )($239,150.42 %0.00

Water Fund

Period (Month) = 10.0076



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

DEBT SERVICE
INT-REVENUE BND PAYMENT 2009A 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

INTEREST-REVENUE BOND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PRINCIPAL & INT. REVOLVING LOA 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PRINCIPAL PAYMENT-SLS TX  BOND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PWWSD #15 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

REV BOND PAYMENT 2009-A 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

REVENUE BOND PAYMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALES TAX BOND ISSUE-INTEREST 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

UNAMORITIZED 1996 BOND IS.COST 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

WATER EXPLORATION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

DEBT SERVICE - SALES TAX
PRINCIPAL PAYMENT-SLS TX  BOND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PWWSD #15 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALES TAX BOND ISSUE-INTEREST 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER-SALES TAX RESERVE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

UNAMORITIZED 1996 BOND IS.COST 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

WATER EXPLORATION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

UTILITIES DEPT./WATER CONSERV.

COMMUNICATION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GRANT FUNDING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OVERTIME 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

UNIFORMS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

W/S NON-OPERATING EXPENDITURES
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CLEAN DRINKING WATER FEE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

CONTINGENCY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GRANT FUNDING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

INTEREST ON METER DEPOSITS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

R-9  RANCH EXPENDITURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO BOND & INTEREST 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO STORMWATER MGT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER-SALES TAX RESERVE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRNSF TO GEN.  FROM WA SLS TX 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

WATER TAPS, HYDRANTS, METERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

Period (Month) = 10.0077



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

WASTEWATER TREATMENT & COLL.

CHEMICALS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

COMMUNICATION 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

ELECTRICITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NATURAL GAS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OVERTIME 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SEASONAL/PART TIME 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

UNIFORMS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

WATER FUND EXPENDITURES
CHEMICALS 18,663.62525,213.00 318,887.08 206,325.92 %60.72

CLEAN DRINKING WATER FEE 4,407.8720,000.00 16,134.87 3,865.13 %80.67

COMMUNICATION 309.795,490.00 3,932.31 1,557.69 %71.63

CONTINGENCY 232.0025,000.00 2,959.71 22,040.29 %11.84

ELECTRICITY 20,544.97286,728.00 200,540.62 86,187.38 %69.94

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 11,950.0699,424.00 125,818.79 )(26,394.79 %126.55

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 5,070.1642,000.00 41,661.26 338.74 %99.19

INT-REVENUE BND PAYMENT 2009A 6,521.3884,767.00 69,553.80 15,213.20 %82.05

INTEREST ON METER DEPOSITS 122.10250.00 1,078.50 )(828.50 %431.40

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.002,000.00 728.86 1,271.14 %36.44

NATURAL GAS 62.5612,575.00 3,891.11 8,683.89 %30.94

OFFICE SUPPLIES 108.671,150.00 1,518.55 )(368.55 %132.05

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 5,955.1253,178.00 62,067.21 )(8,889.21 %116.72

OVERTIME 349.8822,000.00 20,986.43 1,013.57 %95.39

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.0015,540.00 2,638.00 12,902.00 %16.98

PROJECTS 0.0010,000.00 8,700.00 1,300.00 %87.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 2,058.314,775.00 6,396.48 )(1,621.48 %133.96

REV BOND PAYMENT 2009-A 17,791.66210,000.00 175,583.32 34,416.68 %83.61

SALARIES 40,953.80590,099.00 469,042.08 121,056.92 %79.49

SEASONAL/PART TIME 798.8415,163.00 7,943.52 7,219.48 %52.39

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 0.00500,000.00 0.00 500,000.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.00345,027.00 0.00 345,027.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.00546,354.00 0.00 546,354.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.0025,721.00 0.00 25,721.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 164.945,000.00 3,750.96 1,249.04 %75.02

UNIFORMS 658.285,000.00 4,381.88 618.12 %87.64

WATER TAPS, HYDRANTS, METERS 5,184.49150,000.00 67,825.16 82,174.84 %45.22

Total Expenditures $3,602,454.00 $141,908.50 $1,616,020.50 $1,986,433.50 %44.86

Period (Month) = 10.0078



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

WATER PRODUCTION & DIST.

CHEMICALS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

COMMUNICATION 0.000.00 263.60 )(263.60 %0.00

ELECTRICITY 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

NATURAL GAS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OVERTIME 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SALARIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

SEASONAL/PART TIME 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

UNIFORMS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $263.60 )($263.60 %0.00

Solid Waste

SOLID WASTE FUND EXPENDITURE
COMMUNICATION 76.351,300.00 720.53 579.47 %55.43

CONTINGENCY 0.0050,000.00 5,559.00 44,441.00 %11.12

DEBT SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

ELECTRICITY 343.814,500.00 3,120.48 1,379.52 %69.34

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 787.5910,900.00 4,171.45 6,728.55 %38.27

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 1,191.6523,240.00 7,393.56 15,846.44 %31.81

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 420.002,200.00 420.00 1,780.00 %19.09

NATURAL GAS 31.052,200.00 1,024.38 1,175.62 %46.56

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00550.00 106.64 443.36 %19.39

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 30,769.34398,692.00 276,569.28 122,122.72 %69.37

OVERTIME 264.285,500.00 2,695.45 2,804.55 %49.01

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

RENTALS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 55.733,600.00 1,297.80 2,302.20 %36.05

SALARIES 25,917.06365,102.00 280,972.72 84,129.28 %76.96

SEASONAL/PART TIME 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.00180,470.00 180,470.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.00228,600.00 228,600.00 0.00 %100.00

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 0.00109,900.00 0.00 109,900.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO WATER/SEWER FUND 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRANSFERS 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.00800.00 46.12 753.88 %5.77

UNIFORMS 315.554,400.00 3,590.62 809.38 %81.61

UTILITY-WATER 62.50410.00 316.32 93.68 %77.15

Total Expenditures $1,392,364.00 $60,234.91 $997,074.35 $395,289.65 %71.61

Waste Water Fund

Period (Month) = 10.0079



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

WASTE WATER FUND EXPENDITURES
CHEMICALS 2,923.4569,572.00 44,370.59 25,201.41 %63.78

COMMUNICATION 173.363,100.00 2,776.04 323.96 %89.55

CONTINGENCY 52.7125,000.00 742.31 24,257.69 %2.97

ELECTRICITY 15,236.26199,732.00 147,396.36 52,335.64 %73.80

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 4,219.73112,400.00 52,490.32 59,909.68 %46.70

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 654.7830,000.00 18,646.09 11,353.91 %62.15

INT-REVENUE BND PAYMENT 2009A 2,794.8836,329.00 29,808.72 6,520.28 %82.05

NATURAL GAS 813.9227,780.00 10,941.19 16,838.81 %39.39

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00650.00 464.86 185.14 %71.52

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,454.19156,000.00 20,749.41 135,250.59 %13.30

OVERTIME 217.6717,000.00 9,784.89 7,215.11 %57.56

PRINCIPAL & INT. REVOLVING LOA 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 499.5030,198.00 16,978.70 13,219.30 %56.22

PROJECTS 0.0030,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 %0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES 85.0030,000.00 4,645.85 25,354.15 %15.49

REV BOND PAYMENT 2009-A 7,625.0090,000.00 75,250.00 14,750.00 %83.61

SALARIES 30,691.32446,580.00 359,659.71 86,920.29 %80.54

SEASONAL/PART TIME 785.8126,153.00 6,337.78 19,815.22 %24.23

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 0.00600,000.00 0.00 600,000.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.00147,869.00 0.00 147,869.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 0.00468,390.00 0.00 468,390.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.0025,721.00 0.00 25,721.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 181.145,000.00 3,509.97 1,490.03 %70.20

UNIFORMS 457.235,000.00 2,971.99 2,028.01 %59.44

Total Expenditures $2,582,474.00 $69,865.95 $807,524.78 $1,774,949.22 %31.27

Water Conservation

WA CONSERV EXPENDITU
COMMUNICATION 31.46500.00 642.52 )(142.52 %128.50

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 457.152,500.00 2,492.63 7.37 %99.71

GRANT FUNDING 0.005,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 %0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING 0.002,000.00 613.71 1,386.29 %30.69

NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.002,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 %0.00

OVERTIME 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 3,038.00223,000.00 89,753.32 133,246.68 %40.25

R-9  RANCH EXPENDITURES 4,196.20230,000.00 218,349.18 11,650.82 %94.93

SALARIES 4,088.9454,178.00 44,978.39 9,199.61 %83.02

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 0.0024,938.00 0.00 24,938.00 %0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE 0.001,345.00 0.00 1,345.00 %0.00

TRANSFER-SALES TAX RESERVE 0.002,276,779.00 0.00 2,276,779.00 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 0.002,000.00 909.78 1,090.22 %45.49

TRNSF TO GEN.  FROM WA SLS TX 0.00555,353.00 0.00 555,353.00 %0.00

UNIFORMS 0.00200.00 0.00 200.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $3,380,293.00 $11,811.75 $357,739.53 $3,022,553.47 %10.58

Water Reserve Fund

WATER RESERVE EXPENDITURES
NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 378,667.50 )(378,667.50 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $378,667.50 )($378,667.50 %0.00

Wastewater Reserve Fund

WASTEWATER RESERVE EXPENDITURE
NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

PROJECTS 0.000.00 25,312.94 )(25,312.94 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $25,312.94 )($25,312.94 %0.00

Water Sales Tax

Period (Month) = 10.0080



Expenses 
Current Mo.

Budgeted 
2016

Expenses 
To Date Balance

% Spent
YTD

WA SLS TX RESERVE EXPENDITURES
NEW EQUIPMENT 0.000.00 7,169.15 )(7,169.15 %0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 7,898.280.00 78,734.41 )(78,734.41 %0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 81,639.840.00 447,885.92 )(447,885.92 %0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,647.950.00 13,771.41 )(13,771.41 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $91,186.07 $547,560.89 )($547,560.89 %0.00

Fire Insurance Trust

FIRE INS TRUST EXPENDITURES
OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 %0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00

$45,044,758.42 $1,562,006.45 $25,557,212.05 $19,487,546.37Grand Totals %56.74

Period (Month) = 10.0081



82



 

CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
       COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 5              MEETING DATE: 11-22-16 
 

 

 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Mayoral Appointments for Approval 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Consider approving proposed appointments to the Building Trades Board and Hays Convention and Visitors 
Bureau Advisory Committee. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The following appointments were recommended at the November 10, 2016 City Commission meeting and are 
now being presented for approval. 
 
Building Trades Board 
 
Chris Teeter (Electrical Rep) – unexpired term to expire 8-27-19 (1st term) 
 
Hays Convention and Visitors Bureau Advisory Committee 
 
Thomas Ostrander (Pasta Jay’s) – unexpired term to expire 12-1-18 (1st term) 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Mayor Musil 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Applications 

83



 
CITY OF HAYS 

APPLICATION FOR SERVING ON A CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
Email: christeeter20@hotmail.com  
 
Date: 10/31/2016  
 
Name: Chris Teeter  
 
Address: 1276 Fairground Rd  
 
Day Time Phone Number: 785-656-1683  
 
Evening Phone Number: 785-656-1683  
 
Place of Employment: CT Electric LLC  
 
How long have you been a Resident of Hays: 12 Years  
 
Name of Board(s) you are interested in serving on: Building Trades Board - Electrical  
 
How much time could you devote per month: As needed  
 
Are you related to anyone who is currently serving on a Board/Committee?: No  
 
If Yes, Explain:  
 
Briefly describe why you are interested in serving on a Board/Committee for the City of 
Hays: I would be able to give insight on any electrical issues/concerns. I would also be 
able to stay informed with any code changed/updates.  
 
Please list any groups or activities that you participate in, or have previously participated 
in, that demonstrates your involvement in the community: I have served as an 
electrician for 11 years  
 

84



 
CITY OF HAYS 

APPLICATION FOR SERVING ON A CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
Email: tom@pastajays.com   
 
Date: 11-4-16 
 
Name: Thomas Ostrander  
 
Address: 1318 Federal St  
 
Day Time Phone Number: 785-420-0194  
 
Evening Phone Number: 785-420-0194  
 
Place of Employment: Pasta Jay’s  
 
How long have you been a Resident of Hays: 22 Years  
 
Name of Board(s) you are interested in serving on: Convention and Visitors Bureau 
Advisory Committee  
 
How much time could you devote per month: Varies (with notice can devote 2 hours a 
week)  
 
Are you related to anyone who is currently serving on a Board/Committee?: No  
 
If Yes, Explain:  
 
Briefly describe why you are interested in serving on a Board/Committee for the City of 
Hays: As General Manager of the newly opened Past Jay’s in Hays, I am interested in 
bringing more businesses to Hays and believe there is potential for growth. After 20 
years of being the General Manager of Applebee’s and seeing very little local 
competition within that timeframe, I feel I can give future businesses insight on their 
potential within the Hays community.   
 
Please list any groups or activities that you participate in, or have previously participated 
in, that demonstrates your involvement in the community: My groups and activities over 
the last 20 years have dealt with the raising of my seven children. Hays Soccer Club is 
one group that I can recall.   
 

85



86



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

                     COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 6               MEETING DATE: 11-22-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2016A Ordinance 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approval of Ordinance No. 3923 authorizing and providing for the issuance, payment, and 
security of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A in the principal amount of 
$5,995,000. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Based on the presentation of the bond sale results from David Arteberry with George K Baum 
and Associates it is now necessary to approve an ordinance authorizing and providing for the 
issuance, payment, and security of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A in the 
principal amount of $5,995,000 with closing and delivery date expected on December 15, 
2016.  
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Kim Rupp, Finance Director 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Ordinance  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Memo 
Ordinance No. 3923  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

87



Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

From: Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 

Work Session: November 17, 2016 

Subject: Ordinance and Resolution to authorize the issuance 
of General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 
2016A 

Person(s) Responsible:  Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 

Summary
On November 22, 2016, the City will take bids for the purchase of approximately 
$5,995,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A (the 
"Bonds").   Attached to this memo are drafts of an ordinance and resolution to be adopted 
by the Commission to authorize the issuance of the Bonds.  Final versions of the 
ordinance and resolution, as well as final payment terms on the Bonds, will be made 
available by George K. Baum & Co., the City's Financial Advisor, and Gilmore & Bell, 
P.C., the City's Bond Counsel after the sale of the Bonds and before the Commission
meeting.  Staff recommends approval of both the ordinance and resolution for the
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A.

Background 
The City has the option to refinance the following general obligation bonds to achieve 
interest cost savings for taxpayers: 

Series Dated Date Years Amount     Average Rate 
2005-A October 15, 2005 2017 to 2021 $560,000 3.94% 
2006-A June 15, 2006 2017 to 2026 $3,525,000 4.10% 
2007-A July 15, 2007 2018 to 2022 $635,000 4.18% 
2008-A September 15, 2008 2019 to 2023 $505,000 4.22% 
2009-A October 1, 2009 2017 to 2029 $535,000 3.82% 

Based on current market conditions, it is anticipated that the City could save 
approximately $573,000 in future debt service payments by refunding the above series. 
New Bonds that are issued for refunding purposes will be structured to have final 
maturity dates identical to those listed above. 

88



Discussion 
City Staff and the Financial Advisor have been monitoring the City’s outstanding debt for 
refunding opportunities. The City’s Series 2005-A, 2006-A and 2009-A Bonds have been 
identified as ideal candidates to refund due to their relatively high interest rates and the 
ability to call the bonds on September 1, 2016.  2007-A and 2008-A are also high interest 
rate issues however, Series 2007-A doesn’t have an optional redemption date until 
September 1, 2017 and 2008-A is September 1, 2018. Therefore those two issues will be 
treated as an advance refunding. In that instance, open market investments will be 
purchased with the proceeds of the new issue and put into escrow to fund the future 
refunding of 2007-A and 2008-A.  

The City will also be applying to Standard & Poor’s for a rating on the Bonds. The last 
issue for the City received a AA- rating and has since been improved to a AA. Changing 
market conditions and investor preferences have led to the decision to seek the rating. 

If the ordinance and resolution are approved, Staff will work with the Financial Advisor 
and Bond Counsel to complete all of the necessary steps to close the bond issue.  Bond 
proceeds are expected to be available to the City on December 15, 2016. 

Legal Consideration
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City staff. 

Financial Consideration 
Final terms of the Bonds will be provided to the Commission following the sale on 
November 22, 2016.  Below is a preliminary estimate of the financial terms of the Bonds. 

Total bond issue will be approximately $5,995,000.  These bonds will be paid from 
special assessment revenues received by the City as property owners within the 
improvement districts pay their tax bills as well as the bond and interest levy fund. It is 
expected this refunding will lower the debt service on these bonds approximately $58,000 
per year for the remaining term. 

Total cost of issuance is approximately $64,218.  This covers the paying agent, Kansas 
Attorney General, CUSIP service bureau, Bond Counsel, Financial Advisor, Bond Rating 
and Publication and Printing.  More detail will be provided in a final sizing calculation 
document provided by George K Baum & Company after the sale on November 22.  

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

• Approve the attached ordinance and resolution authorizing the
issuance of Bonds.

• Provide staff with further direction.
• Do nothing.

89



Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance and resolution. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve Ordinance authorizing and providing for the issuance of General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds Series 2016A 

 
and 
 

Approve Resolution prescribing the form and details of and authorizing and directing the 
sale and delivery of General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2016A. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Excerpt of Minutes 
Ordinance 
Ordinance Summary for Publication 
Bond Resolution 

90



 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
Draft:  November 6, 2016 

Bond Ordinance and Resolution v1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SERIES 2016-A BOND ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTION 

 
 A. Excerpt of Minutes of Meeting approving sale, approving Ordinance/Bond Resolution 
 B. Ordinance 
 C. Ordinance Summary for Publication 
 D. Bond Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91



 

 

EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING 
OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
HELD ON NOVEMBER 22, 2016 

 
 The City Commission (the “Governing Body”) met in regular session at the usual meeting place 
in the City, at 6:30 p.m., the following members being present and participating, to-wit: 
 
 Present:  ___________________________________________________________________. 
 
 Absent:  ___________________________________________________________________. 
 
 The Mayor declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

(Other Proceedings) 
 
 The Finance Director reported that pursuant to the Notice of Bond Sale previously duly given, 
bids for the purchase of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A, dated December 15, 2016, 
of the City had been received.  A tabulation of said bids is set forth as EXHIBIT A hereto. 
 
 Thereupon, the Governing Body reviewed and considered the bids and it was found and 
determined that the bid of _______________, ________________, _____________________, was the 
best bid for the Bonds, a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT B. 
 
 Thereupon, there was presented an Ordinance entitled: 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016-A, OF THE CITY 
OF HAYS, KANSAS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO 
REFUND A PORTION OF THE CITY'S OUTSTANDING GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF 
AN ANNUAL TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND 
INTEREST ON SAID BONDS AS THEY BECOME DUE; AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH; AND MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS WITH RESPECT 
THERETO. 

 
 Thereupon, Commissioner ____________________ moved that said Ordinance be passed.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner ____________________.  Said Ordinance was duly read and 
considered, and upon being put, the motion for the passage of said Ordinance was carried by the vote of 
the Governing Body, the vote being as follows: 
 
 Yea:            . 
 
 Nay:            . 
 
 Thereupon, the Mayor declared said Ordinance duly passed and the Ordinance was then duly 
numbered Ordinance No. 3923 was signed and approved by the Mayor and attested by the Clerk and the 
Ordinance or a summary thereof was directed to be published one time in the official newspaper of the City. 

92



 

2 

 
 Thereupon, there was presented a Resolution entitled: 
 

A RESOLUTION PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF AND 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016-A, OF THE CITY OF HAYS, 
KANSAS, PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE NO. 3923 OF THE 
ISSUER; MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS TO PROVIDE 
FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY THEREOF; AND AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS CONNECTED THEREWITH. 

 
 Thereupon, Commissioner ____________________ moved that said Resolution be adopted.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner ____________________.  Said Resolution was duly read and 
considered, and upon being put, the motion for the adoption of said Resolution was carried by the vote of 
the Governing Body, the vote being as follows: 
 
 Yea:            . 
 
 Nay:            . 
 
 Thereupon, the Mayor declared said Resolution duly adopted and the Resolution was then duly 
numbered Resolution No. 2016-011, and was signed by the Mayor and attested by the Clerk. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

(Other Proceedings) 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

93



 

 (Signature Page to Excerpt of Minutes) 

 On motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting thereupon adjourned. 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing Excerpt of Minutes is a true and correct excerpt of the 
proceedings of the Governing Body of the City of Hays, Kansas, held on the date stated therein, and that 
the official minutes of such proceedings are on file in my office. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              
                            Clerk 
 

94



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
BID TABULATION 

 

95



 

B-1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

BID OF PURCHASER 
 
 

96



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3923 
 
 

OF 
 
 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 
 

PASSED 
 
 

NOVEMBER 22, 2016 
 

____________________ 
 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 
SERIES 2016-A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

97



 

1 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 3923 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016-A, OF THE CITY 
OF HAYS, KANSAS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO 
REFUND A PORTION OF THE CITY'S OUTSTANDING GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF 
AN ANNUAL TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND 
INTEREST ON SAID BONDS AS THEY BECOME DUE; AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH; AND MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS WITH RESPECT 
THERETO. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hays, Kansas (the “City”) is a city of the second class, duly created, 
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City previously issued and has outstanding the Refunded Bonds and is 
authorized by K.S.A. 10-427 et seq. to issue general obligation refunding bonds of the City for the 
purpose of refunding the Refunded Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to achieve interest cost savings through early redemption of the Refunded 
Bonds, and provide an orderly plan of finance for the City, it has become desirable and in the best interest 
of the City and its inhabitants to refund the Refunded Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body has advertised the sale of the Bonds in accordance with the 
law and at a meeting held in the City on this date awarded the sale of such Bonds to the best bidder. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF HAYS, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.   Definitions of Words and Terms.  In addition to words and terms defined elsewhere 
herein, the following words and terms in this Ordinance shall have the meanings hereinafter set forth.  
Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the singular number shall include the plural 
and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms, associations and corporations, including 
public bodies, as well as natural persons. 
 
 “Act” means the Constitution and statutes of the State including K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-125, 
inclusive, K.S.A. 10-427 et seq., and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., all as amended and supplemented from time 
to time. 
 

“Advance Refunded Bonds” means collectively:  (a) the Series 2007-A Bonds maturing in the 
years 2018 to 2022, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $635,000; and (b) the Series 2008-A 
Bonds maturing in the years 2019 to 2023, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $505,000. 
 
 “Bond and Interest Fund” means the Bond and Interest Fund of the City for its general 
obligation bonds. 
 
 “Bond Resolution” means the resolution to be adopted by the Governing Body prescribing the 
terms and details of the Bonds and making covenants with respect thereto. 

98



 

2 

 
 “Bonds” means the City’s General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A, dated December 
15, 2016, authorized by this Ordinance. 
 
 “City” means the City of Hays, Kansas. 
 
 “Clerk” means the duly appointed and acting Clerk of the City or, in the Clerk’s absence, the 
duly appointed Deputy Clerk or Acting Clerk. 
 

“Current Refunded Bonds” means collectively:  (a) the Series 2005-A Bonds maturing in the 
years 2017 to 2021, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $560,000; (b) the Series 2006-A 
Bonds maturing in the years 2017 to 2026, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $3,525,000; 
and (c) the Series 2009-A Bonds maturing in the years 2017 and 2023 to 2029, inclusive, in the aggregate 
principal amount of $535,000. 
 
 “Governing Body” means the City Commission of the City. 
 
 “Mayor” means the duly elected and acting Mayor of the City or, in the Mayor’s absence, the 
duly appointed and/or elected Vice Mayor or Acting Mayor of the City. 
 
 “Ordinance” means this Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Bonds. 
 

“Refunded Bonds” means collectively the Advance Refunded Bonds and the Current Refunded 
Bonds. 
 

“Series 2005-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2005-A, dated October 15, 2005. 
 

“Series 2006-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2006-A, dated June 15, 2006. 

 
“Series 2007-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 

Series 2007-A, dated July 15, 2007. 
 
“Series 2008-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 

Series 2008-A, dated September 15, 2008. 
 
“Series 2009-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 

Series 2009-A, dated October 1, 2009. 
 
 “State” means the State of Kansas. 
 
 Section 2.   Authorization of the Bonds.  There shall be issued and hereby are authorized and 
directed to be issued the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A, of the City in the principal 
amount of $[PRINCIPAL AMOUNT], for the purpose of providing funds to:  (a) refund the Refunded 
Bonds; and (b) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. 
 
 Section 3.   Security for the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be general obligations of the City payable 
as to both principal and interest in part from special assessments levied upon the property benefited by the 
construction of the Improvements and, if not so paid, from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without 
limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the 

99



 

3 

territorial limits of the City.  The balance of the principal and interest on the Bonds is payable from ad 
valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible 
property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the City.  The full faith, credit and resources of 
the City are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds as the same become due.   
 
 Section 4.   Terms, Details and Conditions of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be dated and bear 
interest, shall mature and be payable at such times, shall be in such forms, shall be subject to redemption 
and payment prior to the maturity thereof, and shall be issued and delivered in the manner prescribed and 
subject to the provisions, covenants and agreements set forth in the Bond Resolution hereafter adopted by 
the Governing Body. 
 
 Section 5.   Levy and Collection of Annual Tax.  The Governing Body shall annually make 
provision for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the same become 
due by levying and collecting the necessary taxes and/or assessments upon all of the taxable tangible 
property within the City in the manner provided by law. 
 
 The taxes and/or assessments above referred to shall be extended upon the tax rolls in each of the 
several years, respectively, and shall be levied and collected at the same time and in the same manner as 
the general ad valorem taxes of the City are levied and collected, shall be used solely for the payment of 
the principal of and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due and the fees and expenses of 
the Paying Agent.  The proceeds derived from said taxes shall be deposited in the Bond and Interest Fund. 
 
 If at any time said taxes and/or assessments are not collected in time to pay the principal of or 
interest on the Bonds when due, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal or 
interest out of the general funds of the City and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended 
when said taxes and/or assessments are collected. 
 
 Section 6.   Further Authority.  The Mayor, Director of Finance, Clerk and other City officials 
are hereby further authorized and directed to execute any and all documents and take such actions as they 
may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of the Ordinance, and to 
make alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, statements, instruments and other 
documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which they may approve, and the execution or 
taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability. 
 
 Section 7.   Governing Law.  This Ordinance and the Bonds shall be governed exclusively by 
and construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State. 
 
 Section 8.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 
its passage by the Governing Body, approval by the Mayor and publication of the Ordinance or a 
summary thereof in the official City newspaper. 
 

100



 

 (Signature Page to Bond Ordinance) 

 PASSED by the governing body of the City on November 22, 2016, and APPROVED AND 
SIGNED by the Mayor. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              
       SHAUN MUSIL 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
 
 

101



 

A-2 

(PUBLISHED IN THE HAYS DAILY NEWS ON NOVEMBER ___, 2016) 
 

SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 3923 
 
 On November 22, 2016, the governing body of the City of Hays, Kansas passed an ordinance 
entitled: 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016-A, OF THE CITY 
OF HAYS, KANSAS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO 
REFUND A PORTION OF THE CITY'S OUTSTANDING GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF 
AN ANNUAL TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND 
INTEREST ON SAID BONDS AS THEY BECOME DUE; AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH; AND MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS WITH RESPECT 
THERETO. 

 
 The Series 2016-A Bonds approved by the Ordinance are being issued in the principal amount of 
$________________, to refund previously issued general obligation bonds of the City, and constitute 
general obligations of the City payable as to both principal and interest, to the extent necessary, from ad 
valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible 
property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the City.  A complete text of the Ordinance may 
be obtained or viewed free of charge at the office of the City Clerk, 1507 Main Street, Hays, Kansas.  A 
reproduction of the Ordinance is available for not less than 7 days following the publication date of this 
Summary at http://www.haysusa.com/html/ordinances.html. 
 
 This Summary is hereby certified to be legally accurate and sufficient pursuant to the laws of the 
State of Kansas. 
 
 DATED:  November 22, 2016. 
 
              

City Attorney 
 

 

102



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

                        COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 7                MEETING DATE: 11-22-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2016A Resolution 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approval of Resolution No. 2016-011 authorizing and directing the sale and delivery of 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2016A in the principal amount of $5,995,000. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
As part of the process to sell bonds to refund Series 2005A, 2006A, 2007A, 2008A and 
2009A a resolution must be approved authorizing the sale of bonds as previously ordered by 
Ordinance.  
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Kim Rupp, Finance Director 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 2016-011 
 
 
        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

103



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-011 
 
 

OF 
 
 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 
 

ADOPTED 
 
 

NOVEMBER 22, 2016 
 
 

____________________ 
 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 
SERIES 2016-A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

104



 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS 

Section 101.  Definitions of Words and Terms. .................................................................................. 1 

ARTICLE II AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS 

Section 201.  Authorization of the Bonds. .......................................................................................... 9 
Section 201.  Authorization of the Bonds. .......................................................................................... 9 
Section 202.  Description of the Bonds. .............................................................................................. 9 
Section 203.  Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. ..................................................... 10 
Section 204.  Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds. .............................................................. 10 
Section 205.  Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. ................................................. 11 
Section 206.  Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. .......................................................... 11 
Section 207.  Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds. ............................... 12 
Section 208.  Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds. .............................................................. 13 
Section 209.  Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment. ............................................. 13 
Section 210.  Book-Entry Bonds; Securities Depository. ................................................................. 13 
Section 211.  Nonpresentment of Bonds. .......................................................................................... 14 
Section 212.  Preliminary and Final Official Statement. .................................................................. 15 
Section 213.  Sale of the Bonds ........................................................................................................ 15 
Section 214. Authorization of Escrow Agreement .......................................................................... 15 

ARTICLE III REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Section 301.  Redemption by Issuer. ................................................................................................. 16 
Section 302.  Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed............................................................................ 17 
Section 303.  Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption. ................................................................. 17 

ARTICLE IV SECURITY FOR BONDS 

Section 401.  Security for the Bonds. ................................................................................................ 19 
Section 402.  Levy and Collection of Annual Tax; Transfer to Debt Service Account. ................... 19 

ARTICLE V ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS 

Section 501.  Creation of Funds and Accounts. ................................................................................ 20 
Section 502.  Deposit of Bond Proceeds. .......................................................................................... 20 
Section 503.  Application of Moneys in the Redemption Fund. ....................................................... 21 
Section 504.  Application of Moneys in Debt Service Account. ...................................................... 21 
Section 505.  Application of Moneys in the Rebate Fund. ............................................................... 21 
Section 506.  Deposits and Investment of Moneys. .......................................................................... 22 
Section 507.  Application of Moneys in the Costs of Issuance Account. ......................................... 22 
Section 508.  Application of Moneys in the Escrow Fund. .............................................................. 22 
Section 509.  Verification of Certified Public Accountant. .............................................................. 22 

 

105



 

ii 

ARTICLE VI DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 601.  Remedies. .................................................................................................................... 23 
Section 602.  Limitation on Rights of Owners. ................................................................................. 23 
Section 603.  Remedies Cumulative. ................................................................................................ 23 

ARTICLE VII DEFEASANCE 

Section 701.  Defeasance. ................................................................................................................. 24 

ARTICLE VIII TAX COVENANTS 

Section 801.  General Covenants. ..................................................................................................... 24 
Section 802.  Survival of Covenants. ................................................................................................ 24 

ARTICLE IX CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 

Section 901.  Disclosure Requirements. ........................................................................................... 25 
Section 902.  Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements. .................................. 25 

ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 1001.  Annual Audit. .............................................................................................................. 25 
Section 1002.  Amendments. .............................................................................................................. 25 
Section 1003.  Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners. ................................................ 26 
Section 1004.  Notices. ....................................................................................................................... 27 
Section 1005.  Electronic Transactions. .............................................................................................. 27 
Section 1006.  Further Authority. ....................................................................................................... 27 
Section 1007.  Severability. ................................................................................................................ 27 
Section 1008.  Governing Law. .......................................................................................................... 27 
Section 1009.  Effective Date. ............................................................................................................ 27 

 
EXHIBIT A – FORM OF BONDS ............................................................................................................ A-1 
 

 [BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

106



 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-011 
 

A RESOLUTION PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF AND 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016-A, OF THE CITY OF HAYS, 
KANSAS, PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE NO. 3923 OF THE 
ISSUER; MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS TO PROVIDE 
FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY THEREOF; AND AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS CONNECTED THEREWITH. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hays, Kansas (the “Issuer”) has previously passed the Ordinance 
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the City Commission of the Issuer (the “Governing 
Body”) to adopt a resolution prescribing certain details and conditions and to make certain covenants with 
respect to the issuance of the Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to provide for the payment of the Advance Refunded Bonds it is desirable 
to enter into the Escrow Agreement, by and between the Issuer and the Escrow Agent; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines that it is necessary for the Issuer 
to authorize the issuance and delivery of the Bonds in the principal amount of $[PRINCIPAL AMOUNT] 
to refund the Refunded Bonds. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF HAYS, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms.  In addition to words and terms defined 
elsewhere herein, the following words and terms as used in this Bond Resolution shall have the meanings 
hereinafter set forth.  Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the singular number 
shall include the plural and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms, associations and 
corporations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons. 
 
 “Act” means the Constitution and statutes of the State including K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-125, 
inclusive, K.S.A. 10-427 et seq., and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., all as amended and supplemented from time 
to time. 
 

“Advance Refunded Bonds” means collectively:  (a) the Series 2007-A Bonds maturing in the 
years 2018 to 2022, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $635,000; and (b) the Series 2008-A 
Bonds maturing in the years 2019 to 2023, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $505,000. 
 
 “Authorized Denomination” means $5,000 or any integral multiples thereof. 
 

107



 

2 

 “Beneficial Owner” of the Bonds includes any Owner of the Bonds and any other Person who, 
directly or indirectly has the investment power with respect to such Bonds. 
 
 “Bond and Interest Fund” means the Bond and Interest Fund of the Issuer for its general 
obligation bonds.  
 “Bond Counsel” means the firm of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., or any other attorney or firm of 
attorneys whose expertise in matters relating to the issuance of obligations by states and their political 
subdivisions is nationally recognized and acceptable to the Issuer. 
 
 “Bond Payment Date” means any date on which principal of or interest on any Bond is payable. 
 
 “Bond Register” means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds kept at the 
office of the Bond Registrar. 
 
 “Bond Registrar” means the State Treasurer, and any successors and assigns. 
 
 “Bond Resolution” means this resolution relating to the Bonds. 
 
 “Bonds” means the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A, authorized and issued 
by the Issuer pursuant to the Ordinance and this Bond Resolution. 
 
 “Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or any day designated as a holiday 
by the Congress of the United States or by the Legislature of the State and on which the Paying Agent is 
scheduled in the normal course of its operations to be open to the public for conduct of its operations. 
 
 “Cede & Co.” means Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC and any successor nominee of DTC. 
 
 “City” means the City of Hays, Kansas. 
 
 “Clerk” means the duly appointed and/or elected Clerk or, in the Clerk’s absence, the duly 
appointed Deputy Clerk or Acting Clerk of the Issuer. 
 
 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder by the United States Department of the Treasury. 
 
 “Costs of Issuance” means all costs of issuing the Bonds, including but not limited to all 
publication, printing, signing and mailing expenses in connection therewith, registration fees, financial 
advisory fees, all legal fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and other legal counsel, expenses incurred in 
connection with compliance with the Code, all expenses incurred in connection with receiving ratings on 
the Bonds, and any premiums or expenses incurred in obtaining municipal bond insurance on the Bonds. 
 
 “Costs of Issuance Account” means the Costs of Issuance Account for General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A, created pursuant to Section 501 hereof. 
 

“Current Refunded Bonds” means collectively:  (a) the Series 2005-A Bonds maturing in the 
years 2017 to 2021, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $560,000; (b) the Series 2006-A 
Bonds maturing in the years 2017 to 2026, inclusive, in the aggregate principal amount of $3,525,000; 
and (c) the Series 2009-A Bonds maturing in the years 2017 and 2023 to 2029, inclusive, in the aggregate 
principal amount of $535,000. 
 
 “Dated Date” means December 15, 2016. 

108



 

3 

 
 “Debt Service Account” means the Debt Service Account for General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2016-A, created within the Bond and Interest Fund pursuant to Section 501 hereof. 
 
 “Debt Service Requirements” means the aggregate principal payments (whether at maturity or 
pursuant to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements) and interest payments on the 
Bonds for the period of time for which calculated; provided, however, that for purposes of calculating 
such amount, principal and interest shall be excluded from the determination of Debt Service 
Requirements to the extent that such principal or interest is payable from amounts deposited in trust, 
escrowed or otherwise set aside for the payment thereof with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank 
or trust company located in the State and having full trust powers. 
 
 “Defaulted Interest” means interest on any Bond which is payable but not paid on any Interest 
Payment Date. 
 
 “Defeasance Obligations” means any of the following obligations: 
 
 (a) United States Government Obligations that are not subject to redemption in advance of 
their maturity dates; or 
 
 (b) obligations of any state or political subdivision of any state, the interest on which is 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and which meet the following conditions: 
 

 (1) the obligations are (i) not subject to redemption prior to maturity or (ii) the 
trustee for such obligations has been given irrevocable instructions concerning their calling and 
redemption and the issuer of such obligations has covenanted not to redeem such obligations 
other than as set forth in such instructions; 

 
 (2) the obligations are secured by cash or United States Government Obligations that 
may be applied only to principal of, premium, if any, and interest payments on such obligations; 

 
 (3) such cash and the principal of and interest on such United States Government 
Obligations (plus any cash in the escrow fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the 
obligations; 

 
 (4) such cash and United States Government Obligations serving as security for the 
obligations are held in an escrow fund by an escrow agent or a trustee irrevocably in trust; 

 
 (5) such cash and United States Government Obligations are not available to satisfy 
any other claims, including those against the trustee or escrow agent; and 

 
 (6) such obligations are rated in a rating category by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s 
that is no lower than the rating category then assigned by that Rating Agency to United States 
Government Obligations. 

 
 “Derivative” means any investment instrument whose market price is derived from the 
fluctuating value of an underlying asset, index, currency, futures contract, including futures, options and 
collateralized mortgage obligations. 
 
 “Disclosure Undertaking” means the Issuer’s Continuing Disclosure Instructions relating to 
certain obligations contained in the SEC Rule. 

109



 

4 

 
 “DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, a limited-purpose trust company organized under 
the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns, including any successor securities 
depository duly appointed. 
 
 “DTC Representation Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representation from the Issuer and the 
Paying Agent to DTC which provides for a book-entry system, or any agreement between the Issuer and 
Paying Agent and a successor securities depository duly appointed. 
 
 “Escrow Agent” means Security Bank of Kansas City, Kansas City, Kansas, and its successors 
and assigns. 
 
 “Escrow Agreement” means the Escrow Trust Agreement, dated as of the Dated Date, between 
the Issuer and the Escrow Agent. 
 
 “Escrow Fund” means the Escrow Fund for Refunded Bonds referred to in Section 501 hereof. 
 
 “Escrowed Securities” means the direct, noncallable obligations of the United States of 
America, as described in the Escrow Agreement. 
 

“Event of Default” means each of the following occurrences or events: 
 
 (a) Payment of the principal and of the redemption premium, if any, of any of the Bonds 
shall not be made when the same shall become due and payable, either at Stated Maturity or by 
proceedings for redemption or otherwise; 
 
 (b) Payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds shall not be made when the 
same shall become due; or 
 
 (c) The Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the 
covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in this Bond Resolution 
(other than the covenants relating to continuing disclosure requirements contained herein and in the 
Disclosure Undertaking) on the part of the Issuer to be performed, and such default shall continue for 
thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such default and requiring same to be remedied shall have 
been given to the Issuer by the Owner of any of the Bonds then Outstanding. 
 
 “Federal Tax Certificate” means the Issuer’s Federal Tax Certificate dated as of the Issue Date, 
as the same may be amended or supplemented in accordance with the provisions thereof. 
 
 “Fiscal Year” means the twelve month period ending on December 31. 
 
 “Funds and Accounts” means funds and accounts created pursuant to or referred to in 
Section 501 hereof. 
 
 “Governing Body” means the City Commission of the City. 
 
 “Independent Accountant” means an independent certified public accountant or firm of 
independent certified public accountants at the time employed by the Issuer for the purpose of carrying 
out the duties imposed on the Independent Accountant by this Bond Resolution. 
 

110



 

5 

 “Interest Payment Date(s)” means the Stated Maturity of an installment of interest on any Bond 
which shall be March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2017. 
 
 “Issue Date” means the date when the Issuer delivers the Bonds to the Purchaser in exchange for 
the Purchase Price. 
 
 “Issuer” means the City and any successors or assigns. 
 
 “Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond means the date on which the principal of such 
Bond becomes due and payable as therein and herein provided, whether at the Stated Maturity thereof or 
call for redemption or otherwise. 
 
 “Mayor” means the duly elected and acting Mayor, or in the Mayor’s absence, the duly 
appointed and/or elected Vice Mayor or Acting Mayor of the Issuer. 
 
 “Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, a corporation organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of Delaware, and its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved 
or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Moody’s” shall be 
deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the Issuer. 
 
 “Notice Address” means with respect to the following entities: 
 
 (a) To the Issuer at: 
 

 City of Hays, Kansas 
 Attn.: Clerk 
 1507 Main Street 
 Hays, Kansas 67601 
 Phone No.:  (785) 628-7300 
 Fax No.:  (785) 628-7323 
 

 (b) To the Paying Agent at: 
 
   State Treasurer of the State of Kansas 
   Landon Office Building 
   900 Southwest Jackson, Suite 201 
   Topeka, Kansas  66612-1235 
   Fax:  (785) 296-6976 
 
 (c) To the Purchaser: 
 
   ________________ 

________________ 
________________ 

   ________________ 
 
 (d) To the Rating Agency(ies): 
 
   S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc. 
   55 Water Street, 38th Floor 
   New York, New York  10004 

111



 

6 

 
 (e) To the Escrow Agent at: 
    

[Security Bank of Kansas City 
   Corporate Trust Department 
   701 Minnesota Avenue 
   Suite 206, P.O. Box 171297 
   Kansas City, Kansas  66117 
   Fax:  (913) 279-7960] 
 
 
or such other address as is furnished in writing to the other parties referenced herein. 
 
 “Notice Representative” means: 
 
 (a) With respect to the Issuer, the Clerk. 
 
 (b) With respect to the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, the Director of Bond Services. 
 
 (c) With respect to any Purchaser, the manager of its Municipal Bond Department. 
 
 (d) With respect to any Rating Agency, any Vice President thereof. 
 
 “Official Statement” means Issuer’s Official Statement relating to the Bonds. 
 
 “Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 3923 of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, as 
amended from time to time. 
 
 “Outstanding” means, when used with reference to the Bonds, as of a particular date of 
determination, all Bonds previously authenticated and delivered, except the following Bonds: 
 
 (a) Bonds previously canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying Agent for 
cancellation; 
 
 (b) Bonds deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Article VII hereof; and 
 
 (c) Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated and 
delivered hereunder. 
 
 “Owner” when used with respect to any Bond means the Person in whose name such Bond is 
registered on the Bond Register.  Whenever consent of the Owners is required pursuant to the terms of 
this Bond Resolution, and the Owner of the Bonds, as set forth on the Bond Register, is Cede & Co., the 
term Owner shall be deemed to be the Beneficial Owner of the Bonds. 
 
 “Participants” means those financial institutions for whom the Securities Depository effects 
book-entry transfers and pledges of securities deposited with the Securities Depository, as such listing of 
Participants exists at the time of such reference. 
 
 “Paying Agent” means the State Treasurer, and any successors and assigns. 
 

112



 

7 

 “Permitted Investments” shall mean the investments hereinafter described, provided, however, 
no moneys or funds shall be invested in a Derivative:  (a) investments authorized by K.S.A. 12-1675 and 
amendments thereto; (b) the municipal investment pool established pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1677a, and 
amendments thereto; (c) direct obligations of the United States Government or any agency thereof; (d) the 
Issuer’s temporary notes issued pursuant to K.S.A. 10-123 and amendments thereto; (e) interest-bearing 
time deposits in commercial banks or trust companies located in the county or counties in which the 
Issuer is located; (f) obligations of the federal national mortgage association, federal home loan banks, 
federal home loan mortgage corporation or government national mortgage association; (g) repurchase 
agreements for securities described in (c) or (f); (h) investment agreements or other obligations of a 
financial institution the obligations of which at the time of investment are rated in either of the three 
highest rating categories by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s; (i) investments and shares or units of a 
money market fund or trust, the portfolio of which is comprised entirely of securities described in (c) or 
(f); (j) receipts evidencing ownership interests in securities or portions thereof described in (c) or (f); (k) 
municipal bonds or other obligations issued by any municipality of the State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 
which are general obligations of the municipality issuing the same; or (l) bonds of any municipality of the 
State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 which have been refunded in advance of their maturity and are fully 
secured as to payment of principal and interest thereon by deposit in trust, under escrow agreement with a 
bank, of securities described in (c) or (f), all as may be further restricted or modified by amendments to 
applicable State law. 
 
 “Person” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, firm, 
joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political 
subdivision thereof or other public body. 
 
 “Purchase Price” means the principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of 
delivery, plus a premium of $[________], less an underwriting discount of $[________], less an original 
issue discount of $[________]. 
 
 “Purchaser” means _______________, ________________, _____________________, the 
original purchaser of the Bonds, and any successor and assigns. 
 
 “Rating Agency” means any company, agency or entity that provides, pursuant to request of the 
Issuer, financial ratings for the Bonds. 
 

“Rebate Fund” means the Rebate Fund for General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A, 
created pursuant to Section 501 hereof. 
 
 “Record Dates” for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date means the fifteenth day 
(whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date. 
 
 “Redemption Date” means, when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed, the date fixed 
for the redemption of such Bond pursuant to the terms of this Bond Resolution. 
 

“Redemption Fund” means the Redemption Fund for Refunded Bonds, created pursuant to 
Section 501 hereof.  
 

“Redemption Price” means, when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed, the price at 
which such Bond is to be redeemed pursuant to the terms of this Bond Resolution, including the 
applicable redemption premium, if any, but excluding installments of interest whose Stated Maturity is on 
or before the Redemption Date. 
 

113



 

8 

“Refunded Bonds” means collectively the Advance Refunded Bonds and the Current Refunded 
Bonds. 
 
 “Refunded Bonds Paying Agent” means the respective paying agent for each series of the 
Refunded Bonds as designated in the respective Refunded Bonds Resolution, and any successor or 
successors at the time acting as paying agent for any of the Refunded Bonds. 
 
 “Refunded Bonds Redemption Date” means collectively, (a) December 30, 2016, for the Series 
2005-A Bonds; (b) December 30, 2016, for the Series 2006-A Bonds; (c) September 1, 2017, for the 
Series 2007-A Bonds; (d) September 1, 2018, for the Series 2008-A Bonds; and (e) December 30, 2016, 
for the Series 2009-A Bonds.  
 
 “Refunded Bonds Resolution” means each ordinance and resolution which authorized the 
Refunded Bonds. 
 
 “Replacement Bonds” means Bonds issued to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds in accordance 
with Section 210 hereof. 
 
 “SEC Rule” means Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
 
 “Securities Depository” means, initially, DTC, and its successors and assigns. 
 

“Series 2005-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2005-A, dated October 15, 2005. 
 

“Series 2006-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2006-A, dated June 15, 2006. 

 
“Series 2007-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 

Series 2007-A, dated July 15, 2007. 
 
“Series 2008-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 

Series 2008-A, dated September 15, 2008. 
 
“Series 2009-A Bonds” means the City’s the General Obligation Internal Improvement Bonds, 

Series 2009-A, dated October 1, 2009. 
 
 “Special Record Date” means the date fixed by the Paying Agent pursuant to Article II hereof 
for the payment of Defaulted Interest. 
 
 “Standard & Poor's” or “S&P” means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns, 
and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a 
securities rating agency, Standard & Poor's shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized 
securities rating agency designated by the Issuer. 
 
 “State” means the state of Kansas. 
 
 “State Treasurer” means the duly elected Treasurer or, in the Treasurer’s absence, the duly 
appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the State. 

114



 

9 

 
 “Stated Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond or any installment of interest thereon 
means the date specified in such Bond and this Bond Resolution as the fixed date on which the principal 
of such Bond or such installment of interest is due and payable. 
 
[ “20__ Term Bonds” means the Bonds scheduled to mature in the year 20__.] 
 
[ “20__ Term Bonds” means the Bonds scheduled to mature in the year 20__.] 
 
[ “Term Bonds” means collectively the 20__ Term Bonds and the 20__ Term Bonds.] 
 
 “Treasurer” means the duly appointed and/or elected Treasurer of the Issuer or, in the 
Treasurer’s absence, the duly appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the Issuer. 
 
 “United States Government Obligations” means bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, 
treasury bills or other securities constituting direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and 
interest on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by, the United 
States of America, including evidences of a direct ownership interest in future interest or principal 
payment on obligations issued by the United States of America (including the interest component of 
obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation), or securities which represent an undivided interest in 
such obligations, which obligations are rated in the highest rating category by a nationally recognized 
rating service and such obligations are held in a custodial account for the benefit of the Issuer. 
 

“Verification Report” means the verification report referenced in Article V hereof relating to the 
sufficiency of money and obligations deposited in the Escrow Fund to be applied in accordance with the 
Escrow Agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS 
 

Section 201.  Authorization of the Bonds.  Authorization of the Bonds.  The Bonds have 
been heretofore authorized and directed to be issued pursuant to the Ordinance in the principal amount of 
$[PRINCIPAL AMOUNT], for the purpose of providing funds to:  (a) refund the Refunded Bonds; and 
(b) pay Costs of Issuance 
 

Section 202. Description of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall consist of fully registered bonds in 
an Authorized Denomination, and shall be numbered in such manner as the Bond Registrar shall 
determine.  All of the Bonds shall be dated as of the Dated Date, shall become due in the amounts, on the 
Stated Maturities, subject to redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturities as provided in 
Article III hereof, and shall bear interest at the rates per annum as follows: 
 
 

SERIAL BONDS 
 

Stated Maturity 
September 1 

Principal 
Amount 

Annual Rate 
of Interest  

Stated Maturity 
September 1 

Principal 
Amount 

Annual Rate 
of Interest 

2017 $ _______%  2022 $ _______% 
2018    2023   

115



 

10 

2019    2024   
2020    2025   
2021    2026   

 
[TERM BONDS 

 
Stated Maturity 

September 1 
Principal 
Amount 

Annual Rate 
of Interest 

20__ $_______ _____%] 
 
 
 The Bonds shall bear interest at the above specified rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day 
year of twelve 30-day months) from the later of the Dated Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date 
to which interest has been paid on the Interest Payment Dates in the manner set forth in Section 204 
hereof. 
 
 Each of the Bonds, as originally issued or issued upon transfer, exchange or substitution, shall be 
printed in accordance with the format required by the Attorney General of the State and shall be 
substantially in the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT A or as may be required by the Attorney General 
pursuant to the Notice of Systems of Registration for Kansas Municipal Bonds, 2 Kan. Reg. 921 (1983), 
in accordance with the Kansas Bond Registration Law, K.S.A. 10-620 et seq. 
 

Section 203. Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar.  The State Treasurer is 
hereby designated as the Paying Agent for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds and Bond 
Registrar with respect to the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds.  The Mayor of the Issuer is 
hereby authorized and empowered to execute on behalf of the Issuer an agreement with the Bond 
Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. 
 
 The Issuer will at all times maintain a Paying Agent and Bond Registrar meeting the 
qualifications herein described for the performance of the duties hereunder.  The Issuer reserves the right 
to appoint a successor Paying Agent or Bond Registrar by (a) filing with the Paying Agent or Bond 
Registrar then performing such function a certified copy of the proceedings giving notice of the 
termination of such Paying Agent or Bond Registrar and appointing a successor, and (b) causing notice of 
appointment of the successor Paying Agent and Bond Registrar to be given by first class mail to each 
Owner.  No resignation or removal of the Paying Agent or Bond Registrar shall become effective until a 
successor has been appointed and has accepted the duties of Paying Agent or Bond Registrar.   
 
 Every Paying Agent or Bond Registrar appointed hereunder shall at all times meet the 
requirements of K.S.A. 10-501 et seq. and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., respectively. 
 

Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds.  The principal of, or Redemption 
Price, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency which, on the respective dates of 
payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 
 
 The principal or Redemption Price of each Bond shall be paid at Maturity to the Person in whose 
name such Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the Maturity thereof, upon presentation and 
surrender of such Bond at the principal office of the Paying Agent. 
 
 The interest payable on each Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the Owner of 
such Bond as shown on the Bond Register at the close of business on the Record Date for such interest (a) 
by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such Owner shown on the Bond Register 

116



 

11 

or at such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Owner; or (b) in the case of 
an interest payment to Cede & Co. or any Owner of $500,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of 
Bonds, by electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Bond Registrar by such 
Owner, not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the electronic transfer 
instructions including the bank ABA routing number and account number to which such Owner wishes to 
have such transfer directed. 
 
 Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, any Defaulted Interest with respect to 
any Bond shall cease to be payable to the Owner of such Bond on the relevant Record Date and shall be 
payable to the Owner in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of business on the Special 
Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special Record Date shall be fixed as 
hereinafter specified in this paragraph.  The Issuer shall notify the Paying Agent in writing of the amount 
of Defaulted Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed payment (which date 
shall be at least 30 days after receipt of such notice by the Paying Agent) and shall deposit with the 
Paying Agent at the time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to 
be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Paying Agent 
for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment.  Following receipt of such funds the Paying 
Agent shall fix a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more 
than 15 nor less than 10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment.  The Paying Agent shall promptly 
notify the Issuer of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the Issuer, shall 
cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefore to 
be mailed, by first class mail, postage prepaid, to each Owner of a Bond entitled to such notice at the 
address of such Owner as it appears on the Bond Register not less than 10 days prior to such Special 
Record Date. 
 
 The Paying Agent shall keep a record of payment of principal and Redemption Price of and 
interest on all Bonds and at least annually shall forward a copy or summary of such records to the Issuer. 
 

Section 205. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays.  In any case where a 
Bond Payment Date is not a Business Day, then payment of principal, Redemption Price or interest need 
not be made on such Bond Payment Date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the 
same force and effect as if made on such Bond Payment Date, and no interest shall accrue for the period 
after such Bond Payment Date. 
 

Section 206. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds.  The Issuer covenants that, as 
long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, it will cause the Bond Register to be kept at the office of 
the Bond Registrar as herein provided.  Each Bond when issued shall be registered in the name of the 
Owner thereof on the Bond Register. 
 
 Bonds may be transferred and exchanged only on the Bond Register as provided in this Section.  
Upon surrender of any Bond at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, the Bond Registrar shall 
transfer or exchange such Bond for a new Bond or Bonds in any Authorized Denomination of the same 
Stated Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bond that was presented for transfer or 
exchange.  
 
 Bonds presented for transfer or exchange shall be accompanied by a written instrument or 
instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature 
satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the Owner thereof or by the Owner’s duly authorized 
agent. 
 

117



 

12 

 In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Bonds is exercised, the Bond 
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Bond Resolution.  
The Issuer shall pay the fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar for the registration, transfer and 
exchange of Bonds provided for by this Bond Resolution and the cost of printing a reasonable supply of 
registered bond blanks.  Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other 
than fees of the Bond Registrar, are the responsibility of the Owners of the Bonds.  In the event any 
Owner fails to provide a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent 
may make a charge against such Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a 
result of such failure.  In compliance with Code § 3406, such amount may be deducted by the Paying 
Agent from amounts otherwise payable to such Owner hereunder or under the Bonds. 
 
 The Issuer and the Bond Registrar shall not be required (a) to register the transfer or exchange of 
any Bond that has been called for redemption after notice of such redemption has been mailed by the 
Paying Agent pursuant to Article III hereof and during the period of 15 days next preceding the date of 
mailing of such notice of redemption; or (b) to register the transfer or exchange of any Bond during a 
period beginning at the opening of business on the day after receiving written notice from the Issuer of its 
intent to pay Defaulted Interest and ending at the close of business on the date fixed for the payment of 
Defaulted Interest pursuant to this Article II. 
 
 The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Bond is 
registered on the Bond Register as the absolute Owner of such Bond, whether such Bond is overdue or 
not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price of and 
interest on said Bond and for all other purposes.  All payments so made to any such Owner or upon the 
Owner’s order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the 
extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. 
 
 At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Bond Registrar, the Bond 
Register may be inspected and copied by the Owners (or a designated representative thereof) of 10% or 
more in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or any designated representative of such Owners 
whose authority is evidenced to the satisfaction of the Bond Registrar. 
 

Section 207. Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds.  Each of the 
Bonds, including any Bonds issued in exchange or as substitutions for the Bonds initially delivered, shall 
be executed for and on behalf of the Issuer by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, attested by 
the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk, and the seal of the Issuer shall be affixed thereto or 
imprinted thereon.  The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the 
Bonds in the manner herein specified, and to cause the Bonds to be registered in the office of the Clerk, 
which registration shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk with the seal of 
the Issuer affixed thereto or imprinted thereon.  The Bonds shall also be registered in the office of the 
State Treasurer, which registration shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the State 
Treasurer with the seal of the State Treasurer affixed thereto or imprinted thereon. In case any officer 
whose signature appears on any Bonds ceases to be such officer before the delivery of such Bonds, such 
signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, as if such person had remained in 
office until delivery.  Any Bond may be signed by such persons who at the actual time of the execution of 
such Bond are the proper officers to sign such Bond although at the date of such Bond such persons may 
not have been such officers. 
 
 The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Bonds as 
herein specified, and when duly executed, to deliver the Bonds to the Bond Registrar for authentication. 
 

118



 

13 

 The Bonds shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form 
attached hereto as EXHIBIT A hereof, which shall be manually executed by an authorized officer or 
employee of the Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer or employee sign the 
certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds that may be issued hereunder at any one time.  No Bond 
shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Bond Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any 
purpose unless and until such certificate of authentication has been duly executed by the Bond Registrar.  
Such executed certificate of authentication upon any Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond 
has been duly authenticated and delivered under this Bond Resolution.  Upon authentication, the Bond 
Registrar shall deliver the Bonds to the Purchaser upon instructions of the Issuer or its representative. 
 

Section 208. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds.  If (a) any mutilated Bond is 
surrendered to the Bond Registrar or the Bond Registrar receives evidence to its satisfaction of the 
destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and (b) there is delivered to the Issuer and the Bond Registrar such 
security or indemnity as may be required by each of them, then, in the absence of notice to the Issuer or 
the Bond Registrar that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the Issuer shall execute 
and, upon the Issuer’s request, the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu 
of any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same Stated Maturity and of like 
tenor and principal amount. 
 
 If any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond has become or is about to become due and 
payable, the Issuer, in its discretion, may pay such Bond instead of issuing a new Bond. 
 
 Upon the issuance of any new Bond under this Section, the Issuer and the Paying Agent may 
require the payment by the Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that 
may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying 
Agent) connected therewith. 
 
 Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section shall constitute a replacement of the prior 
obligation of the Issuer, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Bond Resolution equally and 
ratably with all other Outstanding Bonds. 
 

Section 209. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment.  All Bonds that have 
been paid or redeemed or that otherwise have been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or before 
Maturity, shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent immediately upon the payment, redemption and 
surrender thereof to the Paying Agent and subsequently destroyed in accordance with the customary 
practices of the Paying Agent.  The Paying Agent shall execute a certificate in duplicate describing the 
Bonds so cancelled and destroyed and shall file an executed counterpart of such certificate with the Issuer. 
 

Section 210. Book-Entry Bonds; Securities Depository.  The Issuer and Paying Agent have 
entered into a DTC Representation Letter with DTC.  The Bonds shall initially be registered to Cede & 
Co., the nominee for the Securities Depository, and no Beneficial Owner will receive certificates 
representing their respective interests in the Bonds, except in the event the Bond Registrar issues 
Replacement Bonds as provided in this Section.  It is anticipated that during the term of the Bonds, the 
Securities Depository will make book-entry transfers among its Participants and receive and transmit 
payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds to the Participants until and unless 
the Bond Registrar authenticates and delivers Replacement Bonds to the Beneficial Owners as described 
in the following paragraph. 
 
 The Issuer may decide, subject to the requirements of the Operational Arrangements of DTC (or a 
successor Securities Depository), and the following provisions of this section to discontinue use of the 
system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor Securities Depository): 

119



 

14 

 
 (a) If the Issuer determines (1) that the Securities Depository is unable to properly discharge 
its responsibilities, or (2) that the Securities Depository is no longer qualified to act as a securities 
depository and registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or 
(3) that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of any Bonds being issued to any Owner 
other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; or  
 
 (b) if the Bond Registrar receives written notice from Participants having interests in not less 
than 50% of the Bonds Outstanding, as shown on the records of the Securities Depository (and certified to 
such effect by the Securities Depository), that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of 
any Bonds being issued to any Owner other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, then the Bond Registrar shall notify the Owners of such determination or 
such notice and of the availability of certificates to Owners requesting the same, and the Bond Registrar 
shall register in the name of and authenticate and deliver Replacement Bonds to the Beneficial Owners or 
their nominees in principal amounts representing the interest of each, making such adjustments as it may 
find necessary or appropriate as to accrued interest and previous calls for redemption; provided, that in 
the case of a determination under (a)(1) or (a)(2) of this paragraph, the Issuer, with the consent of the 
Bond Registrar, may select a successor securities depository in accordance with the following paragraph 
to effect book-entry transfers. 
 
 In such event, all references to the Securities Depository herein shall relate to the period of time 
when the Securities Depository has possession of at least one Bond.  Upon the issuance of Replacement 
Bonds, all references herein to obligations imposed upon or to be performed by the Securities Depository 
shall be deemed to be imposed upon and performed by the Bond Registrar, to the extent applicable with 
respect to such Replacement Bonds.  If the Securities Depository resigns and the Issuer, the Bond 
Registrar or Owners are unable to locate a qualified successor of the Securities Depository in accordance 
with the following paragraph, then the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and cause delivery of 
Replacement Bonds to Owners, as provided herein.  The Bond Registrar may rely on information from 
the Securities Depository and its Participants as to the names of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  The 
cost of printing, registration, authentication, and delivery of Replacement Bonds shall be paid for by 
the Issuer. 
 
 In the event the Securities Depository resigns, is unable to properly discharge its responsibilities, 
or is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository and registered clearing agency under the 
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Issuer may appoint a successor Securities 
Depository provided the Bond Registrar receives written evidence satisfactory to the Bond Registrar with 
respect to the ability of the successor Securities Depository to discharge its responsibilities.  Any such 
successor Securities Depository shall be a securities depository which is a registered clearing agency 
under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation that 
operates a securities depository upon reasonable and customary terms.  The Bond Registrar upon its 
receipt of a Bond or Bonds for cancellation shall cause the delivery of Bonds to the successor Securities 
Depository in an Authorized Denominations and form as provided herein. 
 

Section 211. Nonpresentment of Bonds.  If any Bond is not presented for payment when the 
principal thereof becomes due at Maturity, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond have been made available 
to the Paying Agent all liability of the Issuer to the Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond shall 
forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Paying 
Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Bond, 
who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part 
under this Bond Resolution or on, or with respect to, said Bond.  If any Bond is not presented for payment 
within four (4) years following the date when such Bond becomes due at Maturity, the Paying Agent shall 

120



 

15 

repay, without liability for interest thereon, to the Issuer the funds previously held by it for payment of 
such Bond, and such Bond shall, subject to the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter 
be an unsecured obligation of the Issuer, and the Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the Issuer 
for payment, and then only to the extent of the amount so repaid to it by the Paying Agent, and the Issuer 
shall not be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money. 
 

Section 212. Preliminary and Final Official Statement.  For the purpose of enabling the 
Purchaser to comply with the requirements of Section (b)(1) of the SEC Rule, the Issuer hereby deems the 
information regarding the Issuer contained in the Preliminary Official Statement to be “final” as of its 
date, except for the omission of such information as is permitted by Section (b)(1) of the SEC Rule, and 
the appropriate officers of the Issuer are hereby authorized, if requested, to provide the Purchaser a letter 
or certification to such effect and to take such other actions or execute such other documents as such 
officers in their reasonable judgment deem necessary to enable the Purchaser to comply with the 
requirement of the SEC Rule. 
 
 The Official Statement is hereby authorized to be prepared by supplementing, amending and 
completing the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes and additions thereto as are necessary 
to conform to and describe the transaction.  The Mayor and Clerk of the Issuer are hereby authorized to 
execute the Official Statement as so supplemented, amended and completed, and the use and public 
distribution of the Official Statement by the Purchaser in connection with the reoffering of the Bonds is 
hereby authorized.  The proper officials of the Issuer are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a 
certificate pertaining to such Official Statement as prescribed therein, dated as of the Issue Date. 
 
 The Issuer agrees to provide to the Purchaser within seven business days of the date of the sale of 
Bonds sufficient copies of the Official Statement to enable the Purchaser to comply with the requirements 
of the SEC Rule and Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 

Section 213. Sale of the Bonds.  The sale of the Bonds to the Purchaser is hereby approved.  
The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the official bid form submitted by the Purchaser.  
Delivery of the Bonds shall be made to the Purchaser on the Issue Date (which shall be as soon as 
practicable after the adoption of this Bond Resolution), upon payment of the Purchase Price. 
 

Section 214. Authorization of Escrow Agreement.  The Issuer is hereby authorized to enter 
into the Escrow Agreement and the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the 
Escrow Agreement with such changes therein as such officials may deem appropriate, for and on behalf 
of and as the act and deed of the Issuer.  The Escrow Agent is hereby authorized to carry out, on behalf of 
the Issuer, the duties, terms and provisions of the Escrow Agreement, and the Escrow Agent, the 
Purchaser and Bond Counsel are authorized to take all necessary actions for the subscription and purchase 
of the Escrowed Securities described therein, including the subscription for United States Treasury 
Securities – State and Local Government Series. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

121



 

16 

ARTICLE III 
 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS 
 

Section 301. Redemption by Issuer.   
 

Optional Redemption. At the option of the Issuer, Bonds maturing on September 1 in the years 
2024, and thereafter, will be subject to redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturity on 
September 1, 2023, and thereafter, as a whole or in part (selection of maturities and the amount of Bonds 
of each maturity to be redeemed to be determined by the Issuer in such equitable manner as it may 
determine) at any time, at the Redemption Price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the principal 
amount), plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date.  

 
[ Mandatory Redemption.  (a) 20__ Term Bonds.  The 20__ Term Bonds shall be subject to 
mandatory redemption and payment prior to Stated Maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption 
requirements of this Section at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus 
accrued interest to the Redemption Date.  The taxes levied in Article IV hereof which are to be deposited 
into the Debt Service Account shall be sufficient to redeem, and the Issuer shall redeem on September 1 
in each year, the following principal amounts of such 20__ Term Bonds:  
 

Principal 
Amount Year 

$   
   
  * 

 _______________ 
    *Final Maturity 
 
[ (b) 20__ Term Bonds.  The 20__ Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption and 
payment prior to Stated Maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption requirements of this Section at a 
Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the Redemption 
Date.  The taxes levied in Article IV hereof which are to be deposited into the Debt Service Account shall 
be sufficient to redeem, and the Issuer shall redeem on September 1 in each year, the following principal 
amounts of such 20__ Term Bonds: 
 

Principal 
Amount Year 

$   
   
  [____]* 

 _______________ 
    *Final Maturity] 
 
 [At its option, to be exercised on or before the 45th day next preceding any mandatory 
Redemption Date, the Issuer may:  (1) deliver to the Paying Agent for cancellation Term Bonds subject to 
mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date, in any aggregate principal amount desired; 
or (2) furnish the Paying Agent funds, together with appropriate instructions, for the purpose of 
purchasing any Term Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date from 
any Owner thereof whereupon the Paying Agent shall expend such funds for such purpose to such extent 
as may be practical; or (3) receive a credit with respect to the mandatory redemption obligation of the 

122



 

17 

Issuer under this Section for any Term Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory 
Redemption Date which, prior to such date, have been redeemed (other than through the operation of the 
mandatory redemption requirements of this subsection) and cancelled by the Paying Agent and not 
theretofore applied as a credit against any redemption obligation under this subsection.  Each Term Bond 
so delivered or previously purchased or redeemed shall be credited at 100% of the principal amount 
thereof on the obligation of the Issuer to redeem Term Bonds of the same Stated Maturity on such 
mandatory Redemption Date, and any excess of such amount shall be credited on future mandatory 
redemption obligations for Term Bonds of the same Stated Maturity as designated by the Issuer, and the 
principal amount of Term Bonds to be redeemed by operation of the requirements of this Section shall be 
accordingly reduced.  If the Issuer intends to exercise any option granted by the provisions of clauses (1), 
(2) or (3) above, the Issuer will, on or before the 45th day next preceding each mandatory Redemption 
Date, furnish the Paying Agent a written certificate indicating to what extent the provisions of said 
clauses (1), (2) and (3) are to be complied with, with respect to such mandatory redemption payment.] 
 

Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed.  Bonds shall be redeemed only in an 
Authorized Denomination.  When less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed and paid prior to their 
Stated Maturity, such Bonds shall be redeemed in such manner as the Issuer shall determine.  Bonds of 
less than a full Stated Maturity shall be selected by the Bond Registrar in a minimum Authorized 
Denomination of principal amount in such equitable manner as the Bond Registrar may determine. 
 
 In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of denominations greater than a 
minimum Authorized Denomination are then Outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such 
redemption a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value shall be treated as though it were a 
separate Bond of the denomination of a minimum Authorized Denomination.  If it is determined that one 
or more, but not all, of a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value represented by any Bond is 
selected for redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem a minimum Authorized Denomination, 
the Owner or the Owner’s duly authorized agent shall forthwith present and surrender such Bond to the 
Bond Registrar:  (1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the Redemption Date of a 
minimum Authorized Denomination of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange, without 
charge to the Owner thereof, for a new Bond or Bonds of the aggregate principal amount of the 
unredeemed portion of the principal amount of such Bond.  If the Owner of any such Bond fails to present 
such Bond to the Paying Agent for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Bond shall, nevertheless, 
become due and payable on the redemption date to the extent of a minimum Authorized Denomination of 
face value called for redemption (and to that extent only). 
 

Section 303. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption.  In the event the Issuer desires to 
call the Bonds for redemption prior to maturity, written notice of such intent shall be provided to the 
Bond Registrar in accordance with K.S.A. 10-129, as amended, not less than 45 days prior to the 
Redemption Date.  The Bond Registrar shall call Bonds for redemption and payment and shall give notice 
of such redemption as herein provided upon receipt by the Bond Registrar at least 45 days prior to the 
Redemption Date of written instructions of the Issuer specifying the principal amount, Stated Maturities, 
Redemption Date and Redemption Prices of the Bonds to be called for redemption.  [The foregoing 
provisions of this paragraph shall not apply in the case of any mandatory redemption of Term Bonds 
hereunder, and Term Bonds shall be called by the Paying Agent for redemption pursuant to such 
mandatory redemption requirements without the necessity of any action by the Issuer and whether or not 
the Paying Agent holds moneys available and sufficient to effect the required redemption.] 
 
 Unless waived by any Owner of Bonds to be redeemed, if the Issuer shall call any Bonds for 
redemption and payment prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, the Issuer shall give written notice of its 
intention to call and pay said Bonds to the Bond Registrar and the State Treasurer.  In addition, the Issuer 
shall cause the Bond Registrar to give written notice of redemption to the Owners of said Bonds.  Each of 

123



 

18 

said written notices shall be deposited in the United States first class mail not less than 30 days prior to 
the Redemption Date. 
 
 All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following information: 
 
 (a) the Redemption Date; 
 
 (b) the Redemption Price; 
 
 (c) if less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in the case 
of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be redeemed; 
 
 (d) a statement that on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become due and 
payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease 
to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and 
 
 (e) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price, 
which shall be the principal office of the Paying Agent. 
 
 The failure of any Owner to receive notice given as heretofore provided or an immaterial defect 
therein shall not invalidate any redemption. 
 
 Prior to any Redemption Date, the Issuer shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of 
money sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds that are to be 
redeemed on such Redemption Date. 
 
 For so long as the Securities Depository is effecting book-entry transfers of the Bonds, the Bond 
Registrar shall provide the notices specified in this Section to the Securities Depository.  It is expected 
that the Securities Depository shall, in turn, notify its Participants and that the Participants, in turn, will 
notify or cause to be notified the Beneficial Owners.  Any failure on the part of the Securities Depository 
or a Participant, or failure on the part of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner of a Bond (having been mailed 
notice from the Bond Registrar, the Securities Depository, a Participant or otherwise) to notify the 
Beneficial Owner of the Bond so affected, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of such Bond. 
 
 Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to 
be redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date, at the Redemption Price therein 
specified, and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the Issuer defaults in the payment of the 
Redemption Price) such Bonds or portion of Bonds shall cease to bear interest.  Upon surrender of such 
Bonds for redemption in accordance with such notice, the Redemption Price of such Bonds shall be paid 
by the Paying Agent.  Installments of interest due on or prior to the Redemption Date shall be payable as 
herein provided for payment of interest.  Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there 
shall be prepared for the Owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same Stated Maturity in the amount of the 
unpaid principal as provided herein.  All Bonds that have been surrendered for redemption shall be 
cancelled and destroyed by the Paying Agent as provided herein and shall not be reissued. 
 
 In addition to the foregoing notice, the Issuer shall provide such notices of redemption as are 
required by the Disclosure Undertaking.  Further notice may be given by the Issuer or the Bond Registrar 
on behalf of the Issuer as set out below, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or 
any portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if 
official notice thereof is given as above prescribed: 
 

124



 

19 

 (a) Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall contain the information required 
above for an official notice of redemption plus (1) the CUSIP numbers of all Bonds being redeemed; (2) 
the date of issue of the Bonds as originally issued; (3) the rate of interest borne by each Bond being 
redeemed; (4) the maturity date of each Bond being redeemed; and (5) any other descriptive information 
needed to identify accurately the Bonds being redeemed. 
 
 (b) Each further notice of redemption shall be sent at least one day before the mailing of 
notice to Owners by first class, registered or certified mail or overnight delivery, as determined by the 
Bond Registrar, to all registered securities depositories then in the business of holding substantial 
amounts of obligations of types comprising the Bonds and to one or more national information services 
that disseminate notices of redemption of obligations such as the Bonds. 
 
 (c) Each check or other transfer of funds issued for the payment of the Redemption Price of 
Bonds being redeemed shall bear or have enclosed the CUSIP number of the Bonds being redeemed with 
the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 
 
 The Paying Agent is also directed to comply with any mandatory standards then in effect for 
processing redemptions of municipal securities established by the State or the Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  Failure to comply with such standards shall not affect or invalidate the redemption of any 
Bond. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

SECURITY FOR BONDS 
 

Section 401. Security for the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be general obligations of the Issuer 
payable as to both principal and interest in part from special assessments levied upon the property 
benefited by the construction of certain public improvements financed by the Refunded Bonds and, if not 
so paid, from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the 
taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the Issuer.  The balance of the 
principal and interest on the Bonds is payable from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without 
limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the 
territorial limits of the Issuer.   The full faith, credit and resources of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably 
pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due. 
 

Section 402. Levy and Collection of Annual Tax; Transfer to Debt Service Account.  The 
Governing Body of the Issuer shall annually make provision for the payment of principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on the Bonds as the same become due by, to the extent necessary, levying and collecting 
the necessary taxes and/or assessments upon all of the taxable tangible property within the Issuer in the 
manner provided by law. 
 
 The taxes and/or assessments referred to above shall be extended upon the tax rolls in each of the 
several years, respectively, and shall be levied and collected at the same time and in the same manner as 
the other ad valorem taxes of the Issuer are levied and collected.  The proceeds derived from said taxes 
shall be deposited in the Bond and Interest Fund, shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of 
the Issuer shall thereafter be transferred to the Debt Service Account and shall be used solely for the 
payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due, taking into 
account any scheduled mandatory redemptions, and the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent.  
 

125



 

20 

 If at any time said taxes and/or assessments are not collected in time to pay the principal of or 
interest on the Bonds when due, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal or 
interest out of the general funds of the Issuer and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended 
when said taxes are collected.  
 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 
DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS  

 
 

Section 501. Creation of Funds and Accounts. 
 

Simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds, there shall be created within the Treasury of the 
Issuer the following Funds and Accounts: 
 
 (a) Redemption Fund for Current Refunded Bonds.   
 
 (b) Debt Service Account for General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A (within 
the Bond and Interest Fund). 
 
 (c) Rebate Fund for General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A. 
 
 The Funds and Accounts established herein shall be administered in accordance with the 
provisions of this Bond Resolution so long as the Bonds are Outstanding. 
 
 In addition to the Funds and Accounts described above, the Escrow Agreement establishes the 
following Funds and Accounts to be held and administered by the Escrow Agent in accordance with the 
provisions of the Escrow Agreement: 
 
 (a) Escrow Fund for Advance Refunded Bonds. 
 
 (b) Costs of Issuance Account for General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A. 
 

Section 502. Deposit of Bond Proceeds. 
 

The net proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds shall be deposited simultaneously with the 
delivery of the Bonds as follows: 
 
 (a) All accrued interest (if any) received from the sale of the Bonds shall be deposited in the 
Debt Service Account. 
 
 (b) The sum of $[________] shall be transferred to the Escrow Agent for deposit in the Costs 
of Issuance Account and applied in accordance with the Escrow Agreement. 
 

(c) The sum of $[________] shall be deposited in the Escrow Fund for Advance Refunded 
Bonds. 

 

126



 

21 

(d) The remaining balance of the proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds shall be 
deposited to the Redemption Fund. 
 

Section 503. Application of Moneys in the Redemption Fund.   
 

Moneys and Escrowed Securities in the Redemption Fund shall be paid and transferred to the 
respective Refunded Bonds Paying Agent, with irrevocable instructions to apply such amount to the 
payment of the Current Refunded Bonds on the respective Refunded Bonds Redemption Date. The Clerk 
is authorized and instructed to provide appropriate notice of redemption in accordance with the respective 
Refunded Bonds Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Current Refunded Bonds.  Any moneys 
remaining in the Redemption Fund not needed to retire the Current Refunded Bonds shall be transferred 
to the Debt Service Account. 
 

Section 504. Application of Moneys in Debt Service Account.   
  

All amounts paid and credited to the Debt Service Account shall be expended and used by the 
Issuer for the sole purpose of paying the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds as 
and when the same become due and the usual and customary fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar and 
Paying Agent.  The Treasurer is authorized and directed to withdraw from the Debt Service Account sums 
sufficient to pay both principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds and the fees and 
expenses of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent as and when the same become due, and to forward such 
sums to the Paying Agent in a manner which ensures that the Paying Agent will receive immediately 
available funds in such amounts on or before the Business Day immediately preceding the dates when 
such principal, interest and fees of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent will become due.  If, through the 
lapse of time or otherwise, the Owners of Bonds are no longer entitled to enforce payment of the Bonds or 
the interest thereon, the Paying Agent shall return said funds to the Issuer.  All moneys deposited with the 
Paying Agent shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions 
contained in this Bond Resolution and shall be held in trust by the Paying Agent for the benefit of the 
Owners of the Bonds entitled to payment from such moneys.  
 
 Any moneys or investments remaining in the Debt Service Account after the retirement of the 
Bonds shall be transferred and paid into the Bond and Interest Fund. 
 

Section 505. Application of Moneys in the Rebate Fund. 
 
 (a) There shall be deposited in the Rebate Fund such amounts as are required to be deposited 
therein pursuant to the Federal Tax Certificate.  All money at any time deposited in the Rebate Fund shall 
be held in trust, to the extent required to satisfy the Rebate Amount (as defined in the Federal Tax 
Certificate), for payment to the United States of America, and neither the Issuer nor the Owner of any 
Bonds shall have any rights in or claim to such money.  All amounts deposited into or on deposit in the 
Rebate Fund shall be governed by this Section and the Federal Tax Certificate. 
 
 (b) The Issuer shall periodically determine the arbitrage rebate, if any, under Code § 148(f) 
in accordance with the Federal Tax Certificate, and the Issuer shall make payments to the United States of 
America at the times and in the amounts determined under the Federal Tax Certificate.  Any moneys 
remaining in the Rebate Fund after redemption and payment of all of the Bonds and payment and 
satisfaction of any Rebate Amount, or provision made therefor, shall be deposited into the Bond and 
Interest Fund. 
 
 (c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Bond Resolution, including in particular 
Article VII hereof, the obligation to pay arbitrage rebate to the United States of America and to comply 

127



 

22 

with all other requirements of this Section and the Federal Tax Certificate shall survive the defeasance or 
payment in full of the Bonds. 
 

Section 506. Deposits and Investment of Moneys.   
  

Moneys in each of the Funds and Accounts shall be deposited in accordance with laws of the 
State, in a bank, savings and loan association or savings bank organized under the laws of the State, any 
other state or the United States: (a) which has a main or branch office located in the Issuer; or (b) if no 
such entity has a main or branch office located in the Issuer, with such an entity that has a main or branch 
office located in the county or counties in which the Issuer is located.  All such depositaries shall be 
members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or otherwise as permitted by State law.  All such 
deposits shall be invested in Permitted Investments as set forth in this Article or shall be adequately 
secured as provided by the laws of the State.  All moneys held in the Funds and Accounts shall be kept 
separate and apart from all other funds of the Issuer so that there shall be no commingling with any other 
funds of the Issuer. 
 
 Moneys held in any Fund or Account may be invested in accordance with this Bond Resolution 
and the Federal Tax Certificate in Permitted Investments; provided, however, that no such investment 
shall be made for a period extending longer than to the date when the moneys invested may be needed for 
the purpose for which such fund was created.  All earnings on any investments held in any Fund or 
Account shall accrue to and become a part of such Fund or Account; provided that, during the period of 
construction of the Improvements, earnings on the investment of such funds may, at the discretion of the 
Issuer, be credited to the Debt Service Account. 
 

Section 507. Application of Moneys in the Costs of Issuance Account.   
 

Moneys in the Costs of Issuance Account shall be used by the Escrow Agent to pay the Costs of 
Issuance.  Any funds remaining in the Costs of Issuance Account, after payment of all Costs of Issuance, 
but not later than the later of 30 days prior to the first Stated Maturity of principal or one year after the 
date of issuance of the Bonds, shall be transferred to Debt Service Account. 
 

Section 508. Application of Moneys in the Escrow Fund.   
 

Under the Escrow Agreement, the Escrow Agent will apply moneys in the Escrow Fund to 
purchase the Escrowed Securities and to establish an initial cash balance in accordance with the Escrow 
Agreement.  The cash and Escrowed Securities held in the Escrow Fund will be applied by the Escrow 
Agent solely in the manner authorized by the Escrow Agreement.  All money deposited with the Escrow 
Agent shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions contained in 
the Refunded Bond Resolutions and the Escrow Agreement. 
 

Section 509. Verification of Certified Public Accountant.   
 

Prior to or concurrently with the issuance and delivery of the Bonds and the creation of the 
Escrow Fund, the Issuer shall obtain a Verification Report from an independent certified public 
accountant that such accountant has verified the accuracy of the calculations that demonstrate that the 
money and obligations required to be deposited with the Escrow Agent pursuant to this Article V and the 
Escrow Agreement, together with the earnings to accrue thereon, will be sufficient for the timely payment 
of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Advance Refunded Bonds in 
accordance with the Escrow Agreement. 
 
 

128



 

23 

ARTICLE VI 
 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

Section 601. Remedies.  The provisions of the Bond Resolution, including the covenants and 
agreements herein contained, shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the Owners of the Bonds.  
If an Event of Default occurs and shall be continuing, the Owner or Owners of not less than 10% in 
principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have the right for the equal benefit and 
protection of all Owners of Bonds similarly situated: 
 
 (a) by mandamus or other suit, action or proceedings at law or in equity to enforce the rights 
of such Owner or Owners against the Issuer and its officers, agents and employees, and to require and 
compel duties and obligations required by the provisions of the Bond Resolution or by the Constitution 
and laws of the State; 
 
 (b) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to require the Issuer, its officers, 
agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; and 
 
 (c) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to enjoin any acts or things which 
may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Owners of the Bonds. 
 

Section 602. Limitation on Rights of Owners.  The covenants and agreements of the Issuer 
contained herein and in the Bonds shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of the Owners of 
any or all of the Bonds, all of which Bonds shall be of equal rank and without preference or priority of 
one Bond over any other Bond in the application of the funds herein pledged to the payment of the 
principal of and the interest on the Bonds, or otherwise, except as to rate of interest, date of maturity and 
right of prior redemption as provided in this Bond Resolution.  No one or more Owners secured hereby 
shall have any right in any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the 
security granted and provided for herein, or to enforce any right hereunder, except in the manner herein 
provided, and all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained for the equal 
benefit of all Outstanding Bonds. 
 

Section 603. Remedies Cumulative.  No remedy conferred herein upon the Owners is 
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each such remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to 
every other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard to any other remedy 
conferred herein.  No waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Owner of any Bond shall 
extend to or affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or shall impair any rights or 
remedies thereon.  No delay or omission of any Owner to exercise any right or power accruing upon any 
default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or 
acquiescence therein.  Every substantive right and every remedy conferred upon the Owners of the Bonds 
by this Bond Resolution may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed 
expedient.  If action or proceedings taken by any Owner on account of any default or to enforce any right 
or exercise any remedy has been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined 
adversely to such Owner, then, and in every such case, the Issuer and the Owners of the Bonds shall be 
restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and 
duties of the Owners shall continue as if no such suit, action or other proceedings had been brought or 
taken. 
 
 
 

129



 

24 

ARTICLE VII 
 

DEFEASANCE 
 

Section 701. Defeasance.  When any or all of the Bonds, redemption premium, if any, or 
scheduled interest payments thereon have been paid and discharged, then the requirements contained in 
this Bond Resolution and the pledge of the Issuer’s faith and credit hereunder and all other rights granted 
hereby shall terminate with respect to the Bonds or scheduled interest payments thereon so paid and 
discharged.  Bonds, redemption premium, if any, or scheduled interest payments thereon shall be deemed 
to have been paid and discharged within the meaning of this Bond Resolution if there has been deposited 
with the Paying Agent, or other commercial bank or trust company located in the State and having full 
trust powers, at or prior to the Stated Maturity or Redemption Date of said Bonds or the interest payments 
thereon, in trust for and irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys and/or Defeasance Obligations which, 
together with the interest to be earned on any such Defeasance Obligations, will be sufficient for the 
payment of the principal of or Redemption Price of said Bonds and/or interest accrued to the Stated 
Maturity or Redemption Date, or if default in such payment has occurred on such date, then to the date of 
the tender of such payments.  If the amount to be so deposited is based on the Redemption Price of any 
Bonds, no such satisfaction shall occur until (a) the Issuer has elected to redeem such Bonds, and (b) 
either notice of such redemption has been given, or the Issuer has given irrevocable instructions, or shall 
have provided for an escrow agent to give irrevocable instructions, to the Bond Registrar to give such 
notice of redemption in compliance with Article III hereof.  Any money and Defeasance Obligations that 
at any time shall be deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company by or on 
behalf of the Issuer, for the purpose of paying and discharging any of the Bonds, shall be and are hereby 
assigned, transferred and set over to the Paying Agent or other bank or trust company in trust for the 
respective Owners of the Bonds, and such moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the 
payment and discharge thereof.  All money and Defeasance Obligations deposited with the Paying Agent 
or such bank or trust company shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the 
provisions of this Bond Resolution.   
 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

TAX COVENANTS 
 

Section 801. General Covenants.  The Issuer covenants and agrees that it will comply with:  
(a) all applicable provisions of the Code necessary to maintain the exclusion from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds; and (b) all provisions and requirements of the 
Federal Tax Certificate.  The Mayor, Clerk and Director of Finance are hereby authorized and directed to 
execute the Federal Tax Certificate in a form approved by Bond Counsel, for and on behalf of and as the 
act and deed of the Issuer.  The Issuer will, in addition, adopt such other ordinances or resolutions and 
take such other actions as may be necessary to comply with the Code and with all other applicable future 
laws, regulations, published rulings and judicial decisions, in order to ensure that the interest on the 
Bonds will remain excluded from federal gross income, to the extent any such actions can be taken by the 
Issuer. 
 

Section 802. Survival of Covenants.  The covenants contained in this Article and in the 
Federal Tax Certificate shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the defeasance of the Bonds 
pursuant to Article VII hereof or any other provision of this Bond Resolution until such time as is set 
forth in the Federal Tax Certificate. 
 

130



 

25 

ARTICLE IX 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Section 901. Disclosure Requirements.  The Issuer hereby covenants with the Purchaser and 
the Beneficial Owners to provide and disseminate such information as is required by the SEC Rule and as 
further set forth in the Disclosure Undertaking, the provisions of which are incorporated herein by 
reference.  Such covenant shall be for the benefit of and enforceable by the Purchaser and the Beneficial 
Owners. 
 

Section 902. Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements.  In the event 
the Issuer fails to comply in a timely manner with its covenants contained in the preceding section, the 
Purchaser and/or any Beneficial Owner may make demand for such compliance by written notice to the 
Issuer.  In the event the Issuer does not remedy such noncompliance within 10 days of receipt of such 
written notice, the Purchaser or any Beneficial Owner may in its discretion, without notice or demand, 
proceed to enforce compliance by a suit or suits in equity for the specific performance of such covenant or 
agreement contained in the preceding section or for the enforcement of any other appropriate legal or 
equitable remedy, as the Purchaser and/or any Beneficial Owner shall deem effectual to protect and 
enforce any of the duties of the Issuer under such preceding section.  Notwithstanding any other provision 
of this Bond Resolution, failure of the Issuer to comply with its covenants contained in the preceding 
section shall not be considered an Event of Default under this Bond Resolution. 
 
 

ARTICLE X 
 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

Section 1001. Annual Audit.  Annually, promptly after the end of the Fiscal Year, the Issuer 
will cause an audit to be made of the financial statements of the Issuer for the preceding Fiscal Year by an 
Independent Accountant.  Within 30 days after the completion of each such audit, a copy thereof shall be 
filed in the office of the Clerk.  Such audit shall at all times during the usual business hours be open to the 
examination and inspection by any taxpayer, any Owner of any of the Bonds, or by anyone acting for or 
on behalf of such taxpayer or Owner.  Upon payment of the reasonable cost of preparing and mailing the 
same, a copy of any annual audit will, upon request, be sent to any Owner or prospective Owner.  As soon 
as possible after the completion of the annual audit, the Governing Body shall review such audit, and if 
the audit discloses that proper provision has not been made for all of the requirements of this Bond 
Resolution, the Issuer shall promptly cure such deficiency. 
 

Section 1002. Amendments.  The rights and duties of the Issuer and the Owners, and the terms 
and provisions of the Bonds or of this Bond Resolution, may be amended or modified at any time in any 
respect by resolution of the Issuer with the written consent of the Owners of not less than a majority in 
principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, such consent to be evidenced by an instrument or 
instruments executed by such Owners and duly acknowledged or proved in the manner of a deed to be 
recorded, and such instrument or instruments shall be filed with the Clerk, but no such modification or 
alteration shall:  
 
 (a) extend the maturity of any payment of principal or interest due upon any Bond;  
 
 (b) effect a reduction in the amount which the Issuer is required to pay as principal of or 
interest on any Bond;  

131



 

26 

 (c) permit preference or priority of any Bond over any other Bond; or 
 
 (d) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Bonds required for the written consent to 
any modification or alteration of the provisions of this Bond Resolution.  
 
 Any provision of the Bonds or of this Bond Resolution may, however, be amended or modified 
by resolution duly adopted by the Governing Body at any time in any legal respect with the written 
consent of the Owners of all of the Bonds at the time Outstanding.  
 
 Without notice to or the consent of any Owners, the Issuer may amend or supplement this Bond 
Resolution for the purpose of curing any formal defect, omission, inconsistency or ambiguity herein, to 
grant to or confer upon the Owners any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully 
be granted to or conferred upon the Owners, to conform this Bond Resolution to the Code or future 
applicable federal law concerning tax-exempt obligations, or in connection with any other change therein 
which is not materially adverse to the interests of the Owners.   
 
 Every amendment or modification of the provisions of the Bonds or of this Bond Resolution, to 
which the written consent of the Owners is given, as above provided, shall be expressed in a resolution 
adopted by the Governing Body amending or supplementing the provisions of this Bond Resolution and 
shall be deemed to be a part of this Bond Resolution.  A certified copy of every such amendatory or 
supplemental resolution, if any, and a certified copy of this Bond Resolution shall always be kept on file 
in the office of the Clerk, and shall be made available for inspection by the Owner of any Bond or a 
prospective purchaser or owner of any Bond authorized by this Bond Resolution, and upon payment of 
the reasonable cost of preparing the same, a certified copy of any such amendatory or supplemental 
resolution or of this Bond Resolution will be sent by the Clerk to any such Owner or prospective Owner. 
 
 Any and all modifications made in the manner hereinabove provided shall not become effective 
until there has been filed with the Clerk a copy of the resolution of the Issuer hereinabove provided for, 
duly certified, as well as proof of any required consent to such modification by the Owners of the Bonds 
then Outstanding.  It shall not be necessary to note on any of the Outstanding Bonds any reference to such 
amendment or modification.  
 
 The Issuer shall furnish to the Paying Agent a copy of any amendment to the Bonds or this Bond 
Resolution which affects the duties or obligations of the Paying Agent under this Bond Resolution. 
 

Section 1003. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners.  Any notice, consent, 
request, direction, approval or other instrument to be signed and executed by the Owners may be in any 
number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such Owners in person 
or by agent appointed in writing.  Proof of the execution of any such instrument or of the writing 
appointing any such agent and of the ownership of Bonds, if made in the following manner, shall be 
sufficient for any of the purposes of this Bond Resolution, and shall be conclusive in favor of the Issuer 
and the Paying Agent with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted under any such instrument, 
namely: 
 
 (a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be proved 
by a certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take acknowledgments within 
such jurisdiction that the person signing such instrument acknowledged before such officer the execution 
thereof, or by affidavit of any witness to such execution. 
 
 (b) The fact of ownership of Bonds, the amount or amounts, numbers and other identification 
of Bonds, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Bond Register. 

132



 

27 

 
 In determining whether the Owners of the requisite principal amount of Bonds Outstanding have 
given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver under this Bond 
Resolution, Bonds owned by the Issuer shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding under this 
Bond Resolution, except that, in determining whether the Owners shall be protected in relying upon any 
such request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Bonds which the Owners 
know to be so owned shall be so disregarded.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bonds so owned which 
have been pledged in good faith shall not be disregarded as aforesaid if the pledgee establishes to the 
satisfaction of the Owners the pledgee’s right so to act with respect to such Bonds and that the pledgee is 
not the Issuer. 
 

Section 1004. Notices.  Any notice, request, complaint, demand or other communication required 
or desired to be given or filed under this Bond Resolution shall be in writing, given to the Notice 
Representative at the Notice Address and shall be deemed duly given or filed if the same shall be:  (a) duly 
mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid; or (b) communicated via fax, with electronic or 
telephonic confirmation of receipt.  Copies of such notices shall also be given to the Paying Agent.  The 
Issuer, the Paying Agent and the Purchaser may from time to time designate, by notice given hereunder to 
the others of such parties, such other address to which subsequent notices, certificates or other 
communications shall be sent. 
 
 All notices given by:  (a) certified or registered mail as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of 
the date they are so mailed; (b) fax as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the date of confirmation of 
receipt.  If, because of the temporary or permanent suspension of regular mail service or for any other 
reason, it is impossible or impractical to mail any notice in the manner herein provided, then such other form 
of notice as shall be made with the approval of the Paying Agent shall constitute a sufficient notice. 
 

Section 1005. Electronic Transactions.  The issuance of the Bonds and the transactions related 
thereto and described herein may be conducted and documents may be stored by electronic means. 
 

Section 1006. Further Authority.  The officers and officials of the Issuer, including the Mayor, 
Clerk, and Director of Finance are hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents and take such 
actions as they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of this 
Bond Resolution and to make ministerial alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, 
statements, instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which they may 
approve, and the execution or taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or 
advisability. 
 

Section 1007. Severability.  If any section or other part of this Bond Resolution, whether large 
or small, is for any reason held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect the validity of the other 
provisions of this Bond Resolution. 
 

Section 1008. Governing Law.  This Bond Resolution shall be governed exclusively by and 
construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State. 
 

Section 1009. Effective Date.  This Bond Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from 
and after its adoption by the Governing Body. 
 

133



 

(Signature Page to Bond Resolution) 

 ADOPTED by the City Commission on November 22, 2016. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              
       SHAUN MUSIL 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

134



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
(FORM OF BONDS) 

 
 
REGISTERED        REGISTERED 
NUMBER              $          
 

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The 
Depository Trust Company, a New York Corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its 
agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is 
registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to 
such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR 
OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the 
registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF KANSAS 
COUNTY OF ELLIS 

CITY OF HAYS 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND 

SERIES 2016-A 
 
 
Interest  Maturity    Dated    CUSIP:  
Rate: ___%  Date: September 1, 20__ Date:  December 15, 2016 
 
 
REGISTERED OWNER: 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 
 
 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  That the City of Hays, in the County of 
Ellis, State of Kansas (the “Issuer”), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself to be indebted and 
promises to pay to the Registered Owner shown above, or registered assigns, but solely from the source 
and in the manner herein specified, the Principal Amount shown above on the Maturity Date shown 
above, unless called for redemption prior to said Maturity Date, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest 
Rate per annum shown above (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), from 
the Dated Date shown above, or from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly 
provided for, payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 
2017 (the “Interest Payment Dates”), until the Principal Amount has been paid. 
 
 Method and Place of Payment.  The principal or redemption price of this Bond shall be paid at 
maturity or upon earlier redemption to the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the maturity or 
redemption date thereof, upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the principal office of the 
Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas (the “Paying Agent” and “Bond Registrar”).  The 
interest payable on this Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the person in whose name this 
Bond is registered on the registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on 

135



 

A-2 

the Record Date(s) for such interest, which shall be the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the 
calendar month next preceding the Interest Payment Date.  Such interest shall be payable (a) by check or 
draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such Registered Owner shown on the Bond Register or 
at such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Registered Owner; or (b) in 
the case of an interest payment to Cede & Co. or any Owner of $500,000 or more in aggregate principal 
amount of Bonds by electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Bond Registrar by 
such Registered Owner, not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the 
electronic transfer instructions including the bank, ABA routing number and account number to which 
such Registered Owner wishes to have such transfer directed.  The principal or redemption price of and 
interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency that, on the respective dates of payment 
thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  Interest not punctually paid will be 
paid in the manner established in the within defined Bond Resolution. 
 
 Definitions.  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
meanings assigned to such terms in the hereinafter defined Bond Resolution. 
 
 Authorization of Bonds.  This Bond is one of an authorized series of Bonds of the Issuer 
designated “General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A,” aggregating the principal amount of 
$[PRINCIPAL AMOUNT] (the “Bonds”) issued for the purposes set forth in the Ordinance of the Issuer 
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and the Resolution of the Issuer prescribing the form and details of 
the Bonds (collectively, the “Bond Resolution”).  The Bonds are issued by the authority of and in full 
compliance with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Kansas, K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-125, inclusive, K.S.A. 10-427 et seq., and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., all as 
amended and supplemented from time to time, and all other provisions of the laws of the State of Kansas 
applicable thereto. 
 
 General Obligations.  The Bonds constitute general obligations of the Issuer payable as to both 
principal and interest in part from special assessments levied upon the property benefited by the 
construction of improvements financed by the Refunded Bonds and, if not so paid, from ad valorem taxes 
which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real 
and personal, within the territorial limits of the Issuer.  The full faith, credit and resources of the Issuer are 
hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the 
same become due. 
 
 Redemption Prior to Maturity.  The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, as 
provided in the Bond Resolution. 
 
 Book-Entry System.  The Bonds are being issued by means of a book-entry system with no 
physical distribution of bond certificates to be made except as provided in the Bond Resolution.  One 
Bond certificate with respect to each date on which the Bonds are stated to mature or with respect to each 
form of Bonds, registered in the nominee name of the Securities Depository, is being issued and required 
to be deposited with the Securities Depository and immobilized in its custody.  The book-entry system 
will evidence positions held in the Bonds by the Securities Depository’s participants, beneficial 
ownership of the Bonds in authorized denominations being evidenced in the records of such participants.  
Transfers of ownership shall be effected on the records of the Securities Depository and its participants 
pursuant to rules and procedures established by the Securities Depository and its participants.  The Issuer 
and the Bond Registrar will recognize the Securities Depository nominee, while the Registered Owner of 
this Bond, as the owner of this Bond for all purposes, including (i) payments of principal of, and 
redemption premium, if any, and interest on, this Bond, (ii) notices and (iii) voting.  Transfer of principal, 
interest and any redemption premium payments to participants of the Securities Depository, and transfer 
of principal, interest and any redemption premium payments to beneficial owners of the Bonds by 

136



 

A-3 

participants of the Securities Depository will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees 
of such beneficial owners.  The Issuer and the Bond Registrar will not be responsible or liable for such 
transfers of payments or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by the 
Securities Depository, the Securities Depository nominee, its participants or persons acting through such 
participants.  While the Securities Depository nominee is the owner of this Bond, notwithstanding the 
provision hereinabove contained, payments of principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on 
this Bond shall be made in accordance with existing arrangements among the Issuer, the Bond Registrar 
and the Securities Depository. 
 
 Transfer and Exchange.  EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE BOND 
RESOLUTION, THIS GLOBAL BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED, IN WHOLE BUT NOT IN 
PART, ONLY TO ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A 
SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A NOMINEE OF A SUCCESSOR 
SECURITIES DEPOSITORY.  This Bond may be transferred or exchanged, as provided in the Bond 
Resolution, only on the Bond Register kept for that purpose at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, 
upon surrender of this Bond, together with a written instrument of transfer or authorization for exchange 
satisfactory to the Bond Registrar duly executed by the Registered Owner or the Registered Owner’s duly 
authorized agent, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds in any Authorized Denomination of the same 
maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor 
as provided in the Bond Resolution and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed.  The Issuer shall 
pay all costs incurred in connection with the issuance, payment and initial registration of the Bonds and 
the cost of a reasonable supply of bond blanks.  The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the 
person in whose name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register as the absolute owner hereof for the 
purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest 
due hereon and for all other purposes.  The Bonds are issued in fully registered form in Authorized 
Denominations. 
 
 Authentication.  This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be 
entitled to any security or benefit under the hereinafter defined Bond Resolution until the Certificate of 
Authentication and Registration hereon shall have been lawfully executed by the Bond Registrar. 
 
 IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND CERTIFIED that all acts, conditions, and things required 
to be done and to exist precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have been properly done and 
performed and do exist in due and regular form and manner as required by the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Kansas, and that the total indebtedness of the Issuer, including this series of bonds, does not 
exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation. 
 
  

137



 

A-4 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be executed by the manual or 
facsimile signature of its Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Clerk, and its seal 
to be affixed hereto or imprinted hereon. 
 
       CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 
 
[(Facsimile Seal)]     By:    (facsimile)    
        Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:    (facsimile)    
 Clerk 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION 
 
 This Bond is one of a series of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016-A, of the City 
of Hays, Kansas, described in the within-mentioned Bond Resolution. 
 
Registration Date     
 
       Office of the State Treasurer, 
         Topeka, Kansas, 
       as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
 
 
       By:        
 
Registration Number     
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 
 
STATE OF KANSAS  ) 
    )  SS. 
COUNTY OF ELLIS  ) 
 
 The undersigned, Clerk of the City of Hays, Kansas, does hereby certify that the within Bond has 
been duly registered in my office according to law as of December 15, 2016. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
(Facsimile Seal)      By:    (facsimile)    
        Clerk 
 

138



 

A-5 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF STATE TREASURER 
 
OFFICE OF THE TREASURER, STATE OF KANSAS 
 
 RON ESTES, Treasurer of the State of Kansas, does hereby certify that a transcript of the 
proceedings leading up to the issuance of this Bond has been filed in the office of the State Treasurer, and 
that this Bond was registered in such office according to law on ________________. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
(Seal)       By:         
        Treasurer of the State of Kansas 
 
 
 
 

BOND ASSIGNMENT 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer to 
 

__________________________________________________________ 
(Name and Address) 

 
__________________________________________________________ 

(Social Security or Taxpayer Identification No.) 
 
the Bond to which this assignment is affixed in the outstanding principal amount of $___________, 
standing in the name of the undersigned on the books of the Bond Registrar.  The undersigned do(es) 
hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint ____________________ as agent to transfer said Bond on the 
books of said Bond Registrar with full power of substitution in the premises.   
 
Dated              
      Name 
 
             
      Social Security or 
      Taxpayer Identification No. 
 
             
      Signature (Sign here exactly as name(s) 
      appear on the face of Certificate) 
 
      Signature guarantee: 
 
 
      By        
 

139



 

A-6 

 
LEGAL OPINION 

 
 The following is a true and correct copy of the approving legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., 
Bond Counsel, which was dated and issued as of the date of original issuance and delivery of such Bonds: 
 
 

GILMORE & BELL, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

2405 Grand Boulevard 
Suite 1100 

Kansas City, Missouri  64108 
 
 

(PRINTED LEGAL OPINION) 
 
 
 
 

140



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 8  MEETING DATE: 11-22-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Public Hearing on the advisability of creating the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners 
Community Improvement District and the imposition of a CID Sales Tax in that District. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Hold a Public Hearing on the creation of the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community 
Improvement District and the imposition of a CID Sales Tax in that district 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners LP seeks incentives related to construction of an 
approximately 41,000 square foot Town Place Suites hotel featuring 80 rooms (+/-), to be 
located at the northeast corner of the intersection of I-70 and Vine Street (Highway 183), 
immediately east of the Best Western, north of the Hampton Inn, and south of the JT Travel 
Plaza that is currently under construction. The first CID would impose a 1% CID sales tax on 
the hotel property only. This public hearing allows for public comment as well as advisability 
of creating the CID. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Kim Rupp, Finance Director 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Memo  
Map 
 
 

 
 
 

141



Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

From: Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 

Work Session: November 17, 2016 

Subject: Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners LP CID Request – 
Development Agreement and Adopting Ordinance 

Person(s) Responsible:  Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 

Summary
If the City Commission chooses to move forward with Hays Extended Stay Hotel 
Partners LP’s request for the creation of a Community Improvement District (CID), the 
next step in the process would be to draft a Development Agreement.  City staff has a few 
suggested inclusions for the Development Agreement that include detailed procedures 
that outline the process used to submit, review and reimburse for eligible project costs. 
City staff would also like to hear the Governing Body’s thoughts on what should be 
included in a Development Agreement.   

Background 
Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners LP seeks incentives related to construction of an 
approximately 41,000 square foot Town Place Suites hotel featuring 80 rooms (+/-), to be 
located at the northeast corner of the intersection of I-70 and Vine Street (Highway 183), 
immediately east of the Best Western, north of the Hampton Inn, and south of the JT 
Travel Plaza that is currently under construction.   

Two separate CID petitions have been submitted; one petition seeks to impose a 1% CID 
sales tax on only the hotel property, and a second petition seeks to impose an additional 
1% CID sales tax on the hotel property and the JT Travel Plaza property.   

If approved, the total sales tax at the Travel Plaza would be 10.5%, and the total sales tax 
at the Hotel would be 16.5%. 

The first step in the statutorily-outlined process is for the City Commission to hold a 
public hearing on the matter which has been scheduled for November 22, 2016.  Should 
the Commission choose to move forward with the process, the next step involves 
negotiating a development agreement, and ultimately, adopting an ordinance creating the 
Community Improvement District.   

Discussion 
As for the ordinance that creates the Community Improvement District, it is a pretty 
straight forward document that authorizes the imposition of an additional sales tax on 

142



specific pieces of property.  With regard to Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners LP’s 
request, the details to be worked out are in the Development Agreement. 

Attached to this memo is a draft Development Agreement that has been reviewed by the 
City’s bond counsel.  In addition to the standard language, City staff has included: 

• Even if the CID sales tax revenues from either of the proposed CIDs exceed
expectations, the Developer would not be reimbursed from the two CIDs
combined for more than $1,733,318 plus the Developer’s actual costs of interest
on any financing arranged by them at a rate not to exceed 7% per annum.

The City Commission will likely have thoughts and ideas of what should and should not 
be part of a Development Agreement, and City staff would like to hold discussion on the 
subject at the November 17, 2016 Work Session.  Once the City Commission determines, 
through consensus, what should be included in a Development Agreement, City staff will 
work with the attorney representing Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners LP to make sure 
both parties are accepting of the suggestions.   

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

Financial Consideration 
There are no financial implications in regard to what is being discussed.    

Action Requested 
City staff is requesting the City Commission determine if it wants to move forward with 
the CID process.  If the consensus is that they do want to move forward with the CID 
process, City staff is asking for input on the required Development Agreement.   

Supporting Documentation 
CID Map 
Proposed Development Agreement 
Ordinance 

143



CID1

CID2

I-70

I-Hop

41st St

Hampton

Home Depot

Butterfield

Townplace Suites

Travel Plaza

144



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 9  MEETING DATE: 11-22-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District – Development 
Agreement and Ordinance  
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Ordinance No. 3924 for the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community 
Improvement District. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
In order to implement the requested CID, it is required that the Commission adopt the 
presented ordinance and development agreement. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Development Agreement 
Ordinance No. 3924 
 

 
 
 

145



 

{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 } 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 

AND 
 

HAYS EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS LP 
 

FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HAYS EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS 
COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND THE HAYS EXTENDED STAY 

HOTEL PARTNERS II COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
 
 

Dated ______________, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

146



 

 1 
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HAYS 
EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

AND HAYS EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS II COMMUNITY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
  
 This Development Agreement for Implementation of the Extended Stay Hotel Partners 
Community Improvement District (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City of 
Hays, Kansas, a municipal corporation (the “City”) and Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners, LP, 
a Missouri limited partnership (the “Developer”) (collectively referred to as the “Parties”) and is 
dated and effective as of the date executed by both parties. In consideration of the mutual 
covenants and agreements contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Purpose. 
 

The Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District (the “Hotel CID 
District”) was formed on ________, 2016, by virtue of Ordinance No. ______________ enacted 
by the governing body (the “Governing Body”) of the City pursuant to the Petition for the 
Creation of a Community Improvement District, as amended, (the “Petition”) initially filed with 
the City on _______________, 2016 in accordance with the Kansas Community Improvement 
District Act, K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq., as amended (the “Act”).  The Extended Stay Hotel Partners 
II Community Improvement District (the "CID II District") was formed on ____________, 2016, 
by virtue of Ordinance No. ____________ enacted by the Governing Body of the City pursuant 
to the Petition for the Creation of a Community Improvement District, as amended (the 
"Petition") initially filed with the City on _____________, 2016 in accordance with the Act.  The 
Hotel CID District and the CID II District are hereafter collectively referred to as the "District." 

 
The purpose of the District is to undertake and finance District projects to provide 

economic development related improvements including, but not limited to, an approximately 
41,000 square foot, 80 room Towneplace Suites Hotel and ancillary improvements (the 
"Project").  

 
Additionally, this Agreement intends to outline the rights and obligations of the 

Developer and City as they relate to the District and to provide for the reimbursement to the 
Developer of certain costs which are eligible under the Act of the development of the Project 
from a one percent (1%) sales tax imposed on the selling of tangible personal property at retail or 
rendering or furnishing of taxable services within the Hotel CID District and a one percent (1%) 
sales tax imposed on the selling of tangible personal property at retail or furnishing of taxable 
service within the CID II District, all as in accordance with the Act (collectively the “CID Sales 
Tax”).   
 
 The legal description of the real property included within the Hotel CID District 
boundaries is set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.  The legal 
description of the real property included within the CID II District boundaries is set forth on 
Exhibit A-1 attached hereto and incorporated herein. 
    

147



 

 2 
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

Section 2.   The Parties. 
 

(A) The City is a municipal corporation and a city of the second class under the laws 
of the state of Kansas (the “State”), exercising governmental powers and organized and existing 
pursuant to K.S.A. 14-101 et seq. The principal office of the City is P.O. Box 490, Hays, Kansas, 
67601, Attention: City Manager.  

 
(B) The Developer is a limited partnership duly organized and existing under the laws 

of the State of Missouri. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Developer agrees to maintain 
its status as a limited partnership, in good standing and authorized to do business in the State of 
Kansas. The principal office and mailing office of the Developer is Hays Extended Stay Hotel 
Partners LP, One Victory Drive, Suite 200, Liberty, Missouri, 64068, Attention: John Ferguson. 
 
Section 3.   Project Costs. 
 
 The estimated Costs of the Project (the "Project Costs") is $9,640,925 of which 
$1,733,318, plus the City Administrative Fee (defined herein), plus actual costs of interest on any 
financing at a rate of not to exceed seven percent (7%) per annum, is proposed to be funded by 
the District (the “Reimbursable Project Costs”). The Reimbursable Project Costs shall be only 
those capital expenditures of the Developer related to the construction of the Project within the 
District, including related architectural and engineering costs (the “Reimbursable Project 
Costs”).  The estimated Project Costs and Reimbursable Project Costs, set forth on Exhibit B, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, have been prepared by the Developer. The parties agree 
that the amounts of the Reimbursable Project Costs may be adjusted among any of the stated 
categories, except as provided herein, or to pay additional Reimbursable Project Costs not 
specifically listed on Exhibit B, but which are otherwise reimbursable under the Act and the 
City's Economic Development Policy. 

  
The Project Costs will be privately financed. The Reimbursable Project Costs will be 

financed on a pay as you go basis, i.e., the Reimbursable Project Costs will be paid for by the 
Developer without the issuance of notes or bonds, and the Developer will be reimbursed for the 
Reimbursable Project Costs as moneys are deposited in the District fund through the imposition 
of the CID Sales Tax, after payment of the City Administrative Fee, all in accordance with 
Section 4 of this Agreement. 
 
Section 4.   Administration of CID Sales Tax. 
 
 (A) Subject to and as specified by the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the 
City agrees to perform or provide for the performance of the administration of the financing of 
the Reimbursable Project Costs pursuant to the Act and this Agreement. The City shall provide 
notification to the Secretary of Revenue of the State of Kansas to commence the collection and 
reporting of the CID Sales Tax within the District, at the same time and in the same manner 
provided for the collection of Kansas State Retailers’ Sales Tax.   
 
 (B) Pursuant to K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq., the City shall establish a segregated trust fund 
to be designated the “Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District Sales Tax 

148



 

 3 
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

Fund” (the “Fund”), which shall be held and administered by the City in trust for the benefit of 
the District in accordance with this Agreement. The CID Sales Tax Revenue shall not be deemed 
to be City funds and shall not be commingled with any funds of the City, except, provided that 
the City shall be entitled to withdraw 0.5% of each distribution of CID Sales Tax Revenue (the 
“City Administrative Fee”) as such revenues are received by the City from the State Department 
of Revenue, as payment for the City’s cost of administering the District.   
 
 (C) The Developer agrees to provide the City written notice of all current owners and 
occupants of the District in the Annual Report required by the City’s Economic Development 
Policy, and at all other times upon the written request of the City. Such Annual Report shall be 
submitted by each January 1 during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 (D) The Developer agrees to cause all assignees, purchasers, tenants, subtenants or any 
other entity acquiring property or occupancy rights in the District to be obligated by written contract 
to provide to the City simultaneously with submission to the Kansas Department of Revenue the 
monthly sales tax returns for their facilities in the District. The Developer also agrees to provide and 
agrees to cause all assignees, purchasers, tenants, subtenants or any other entity acquiring property 
or occupancy rights in the District to be obligated by written contract to provide to the City, 
annually by each January 1, a tax clearance letter. The obligations of this subparagraph shall be a 
covenant running with the land and shall be enforceable against all businesses operating in the 
District and shall only terminate upon the passage by the City of an ordinance terminating the 
District. The Developer hereby agrees that any written contract required under this subparagraph 
shall provide that the City is an intended third party beneficiary of such provisions and has a 
separate and independent right to enforce such provisions directly against such tenant or purchaser.   
 
 (E) To the extent it may legally do so, information obtained pursuant to this Section 
shall be kept confidential by the City in accordance with K.S.A. 79-3657. In furtherance of 
maintaining the confidentiality of the information provided in this section, the City shall take all 
reasonable steps necessary to ensure that such information is kept confidential.   
 
Section 5.   Reimbursement Procedures. 
 
 The City’s agreement to fund Reimbursable Project Costs is conditioned upon the 
following: 
 
 (A) All costs submitted for reimbursement shall be identified as Reimbursable Project 
Costs by this Agreement. 
 
 (B) The Developer shall submit to the City Manager an invoice (in substantially the 
form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit C), signed by the Developer, with supporting 
documentation identifying the Reimbursable Project Costs for which the Developer seeks 
reimbursement.  
 

The supporting documentation shall include copies of invoices reflecting amounts billed, 
copies of checks, evidence of wire transfer or other payment of cash by the Developer for the 
Reimbursable Project Costs, lien waivers or other evidence that no mechanic’s liens exist with 

149



 

 4 
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

respect to the construction of the Project, and such other documentation as the City shall 
reasonably request.    

 
The invoice shall contain a certification by the Developer that the costs submitted for 

reimbursement are for Reimbursable Project Costs under this Agreement, and that such expense 
has been incurred by the Developer and has not been previously submitted for reimbursement 
hereunder.   

 
(C) The City Manager shall determine whether the cost submitted is for an Eligible 

Project Cost within twenty (20) business days of the date the invoice is submitted by the 
Developer.  If the City Manager does not provide a response within twenty (20) business days of 
the date the invoice is submitted, the cost submitted on the invoice shall be deemed approved; 
provided said cost is permitted under the Act and the City's Economic Development Policy.  If 
the City Manager determines that such cost is not for an Eligible Project Cost under this 
Agreement, the City Manager shall notify the Developer of such determination in writing, setting 
forth in detail the basis for such denial. The Developer may appeal such denial to the Governing 
Body by filing a written request to be heard by the Governing Body with the City Clerk within 
seven (7) business days of the receipt of the written denial. The Governing Body shall conduct a 
hearing within thirty (30) days of receipt of such request and render a decision immediately upon 
the conclusion of such hearing. 
 
 (D) If money is available in the Fund, after payment of the City Administrative Fee, 
the requested reimbursement shall be paid to the Developer within ten (10) days of the approval 
by the City Manager or the Governing Body, if required. 
 
 (E) If the invoices for Reimbursable Project Costs submitted and approved exceed the 
amounts then available in the Fund after payment of the City Administrative Fee, such invoices 
shall be paid as CID Sales Tax Revenue becomes available.  Provided such CID Sales Tax 
Revenues have been received by the City from the State of Kansas, the City will make quarterly 
payments on any outstanding Reimbursable Project Costs approved by the City for 
reimbursement as CID Sales Tax Revenue becomes available, such payments being due on 
_________, _____________, ________and _______ of each year as long as the CID Sales Tax 
remains in effect, except, provided that the City shall have no obligation to make any payments 
to the Developer under this Agreement so long as the Developer is in default of any provision of 
this Agreement. 
 
Section 6.  City and Other Governmental Permits. 
 
 Before beginning construction of any aspect of the Project, the Developer shall, at its 
expense, obtain or cause to be obtained any necessary permits or licenses which may be required 
by the City, Ellis County or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction over the Project. 
The City agrees to provide all customary assistance to the Developer in obtaining construction 
permits issued by the City.  The Developer shall construct the Project in accordance with all 
applicable laws and regulations. 
 

150



 

 5 
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

Section 7.  Rights of Access. 
 
 For purposes of insuring compliance with this Agreement, representatives of the City 
shall have rights of access to the Project, without charges or fees, during normal construction 
hours during the period of construction. Representatives of the City shall have such access to 
inspect work performed or being performed in the construction of the Project. City 
representatives shall carry proper identification, insure their own safety and shall not interfere 
with construction activity unless such activity is apparently in violation of this Agreement, City 
codes, state or federal regulations, statutes or other law. The right of access granted by this 
Section shall be in addition to the City’s rights to access the Project in the exercise of its proper 
authority to regulate for and provide for public safety. 
 
Section 8. No Obligation to Build. 
 
 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall require Developer to construct the Project. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, as set out in Section 5 above, Developer shall only be entitled to 
seek funding of those Reimbursable Project Costs actually incurred. 
 
Section 9. Default and Remedies; Indemnification. 
 
 (A) The failure or delay by either of the Parties to this Agreement to perform any term 
or provision of this Agreement required of such party, shall be a default under this Agreement, 
subject to rights of cure, as specified below. 
 
 (B) Any party to this Agreement claiming a default (the “Claimant”) shall give 
written notice of such claimed default to the other party, describing such default. Such notices 
shall be given at the addresses of the Parties stated in this Agreement. 
 
 (C) A Claimant shall not institute legal proceedings against the other party nor be 
entitled to damages if, within fourteen (14) days from the receipt of a notice of claimed default, 
the other party undertakes acts to cure, correct or remedy such claimed default, proceeds with 
due diligence to complete such cure, correction or remedy and such cure correction or remedy is 
completed within thirty (30) days of the date such party received a notice of default, provided, 
however, if such default requires more than thirty (30) days to correct, the nonperforming party 
shall not be deemed in default hereunder if such party commences curing the default within 
fourteen (14) days after receipt of written notice thereof and diligently prosecutes the cure to 
completion. 
 
 (D) Developer agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its representative officers, 
governing body members, employees, agents and independent contractors and consultants 
harmless from and against any and all suits, claims, costs of defense, damages, injuries, 
liabilities, judgments, costs and/or expenses, including court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, 
resulting from, arising out of, or in any way connected with: 
 

1. The Developer's actions and undertakings in connection with the Project 
or this Agreement; and 

151



 

 6 
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

 
2. The negligence or willful misconduct of Developer, its employees, agents 

or independent contractors and consultants in connection with the 
Management, design, development, redevelopment and construction of the 
Project. 

 
Section 10. Governing Law, Jurisdiction. 
 
 (A) This Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted and enforced pursuant to the 
laws of the state of Kansas. 
 
 (B) The Parties agree that any legal actions arising out of this Agreement will be 
instituted in the District Court of Ellis County, Kansas or, in the case of federal jurisdiction, in 
the Federal District Court of the District of Kansas. 
 
Section 11. Rights and Remedies Cumulative, Waivers.  
 
 Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the 
Parties shall be cumulative, and the exercise by one party of one or more such rights shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other rights or remedies 
specified herein. Any failure or delay by either party in asserting any of its rights and remedies as 
to any default hereunder shall not operate as a waiver of such default or of any rights or remedies 
specified hereunder, or deprive either party of its right to assert and enforce any such right or 
remedy. 
 
Section 12. Amendments. 
 
 The Developer and the City agree to cooperate and consider reasonable requests for 
amendments to this Agreement, provided that, any such amendments must be approved by the 
Governing Body and the Developer, shall be in writing, and shall not substantially alter the basic 
business terms of this Agreement.  
 
Section 13. Term. 
 
 This Agreement shall commence on the effective date hereof and shall terminate on the 
earlier of twenty two (22) years from the date that the CID Sales Tax becomes effective or upon 
payment to the Developer in the amount of the total Reimbursable Project Costs, together with 
interest thereon have been paid in full, whichever is first to occur.  
 
Section 14. Transfer and Assignment. 
 
 This Developer may assign or pledge this Agreement and the rights, duties and 
obligations hereunder with the prior written consent of the City; provided however, City consent 
shall not be required for the Developer to collaterally assign its rights to reimbursement 
hereunder to its lender.   
 

152



 

 7 
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

Section 15. Notices, Demands, Communications Among Parties. 
 
 Written notices, demands and other communications between the City and Developer 
shall be deemed delivered under this Agreement if given by personal service, registered or 
certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, or by overnight courier, to the 
principal offices of the City and the Developer set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. 
 
Section 16. Entire Agreement. 
 
 This Agreement is executed in duplicate originals, each of which shall be considered an 
original. This Agreement includes pages 1 through 8, and Exhibits A, A-1, B, and C which 
constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties. 
 
 This Agreement supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parties 
or their predecessors in interest with respect to all of any part of the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 
 
Section 17. Severability. 
 
 The invalidity or inability to enforce any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or 
sections of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions 
of this Agreement. 
 
Section 18. No Liability of City Officials or Employees. 
 
 All liabilities under this Agreement on the part of the City are solely corporate liabilities 
of the City, and, no officer, employee, or agent of the City shall have any personal or individual 
liability under this Agreement for anything done or omitted to be done by the City hereunder. 
 
Section 19. No Further Incentives. 
 
 During the Term of this Agreement, the Developer shall not request any additional 
economic incentives from the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.  Signature page follows.] 

 

153



 

 8 
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on 
________, 2016 and represent that the individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
Parties have the express authority to do so. 
 
       
 
      CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

HAYS EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS, L.P. 
 

By: Ferguson Hotel Development, LLC,  
its General Partner 

 
 
 
       By: ________________________________ 

John Ferguson, Manager 
 
Attest: 
 
___________________________ 
By: 
Title: 

 
 
 

154



 

 9 
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

EXHIBIT A 
Hotel CID District Legal Description 

 
 
Lots 6 and 7, HOME DEPOT ADDITION, a subdivision located in the City of Hays, Ellis 
County, Kansas. 
 

155



 

 10
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

EXHIBIT A-1 
CID II District Legal Description 

 
 
Lots 4, 6 and 7, HOME DEPOT ADDITION, a subdivision in Hays, Ellis County, Kansas, 
according to the recorded plat thereof. 
 
 

156



 

 11
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

EXHIBIT B 
Project Costs 

 
 
 

 Cost CID Reimbursable 
 
Land $   600,000 $600,000 
Hard Costs $6,065,607  
Architect & Engineering $  160,925 $160,925 
Construction Interest $  180,000 $180,000 
Impact Fees $    15,000  
Hotel Franchise Fee $    50,000  
Land Purchase Commission $    36,000  
Legal $    73,000 $  73,000 
Project Management $  165,000  
Site Work 
- including earthwork, utilities and 

paving 

$  481,393 $481,393 

Other Expenses $1,161,318  
FF&E $1,414,000  
Contingency $   400,000 $400,000 
   
TOTAL $9,640,925 $1,733,318 

 

SOURCES 

Cost  

Equity   $   2,410,231.251  

Debt Financing  $   6,938,189.75 

CID Revenues  $      292,505.002  

TOTAL   $   9,640,925.00  
 

                                                           
1 Represents 25% of total construction cost 
2 Represents the Net Present Value of a 22-year revenue stream at a 6% Discount Rate.  

157



 

 12
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

EXHIBIT C 
[Form of Developer’s Invoice for Reimbursement] 

 
INVOICE FOR REIMBURSEMENT 

FOR REIMBURSABLE PROJECT COSTS 
 
City of Hays, Kansas 
Attention: City Manager 
 
 You are hereby requested by the undersigned, the Authorized Developer Representative, 
acting on behalf of Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners, LP (the “Developer”) to disburse funds 
held by you in the Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District  Sales Tax 
Fund created pursuant the authority in K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq. and set forth in the Development 
Agreement Between the City of Hays, Kansas and Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners, LP, for 
Implementation of the Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District, dated 
______________, 2016 (the “Agreement”) to reimburse expenditures made by the Developer for 
Reimbursable Project Costs (as defined in the Agreement) as described on and in the amounts set 
forth in the Reimbursement Schedules attached to this invoice and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the “Reimbursement Schedules”). 
 
 I hereby certify that the amounts requested in the attached Reimbursement Schedules 
have been paid by the Developer in payment of Reimbursable Project Costs, as defined in the 
Agreement. 
 
 I further certify that no part of the amounts set forth in the Payment Schedules have been 
the basis for any previous withdrawal of any moneys from the Extended Stay Hotel Partners 
Community Improvement District Sales Tax Fund. 
 
 I have attached to the Reimbursement Schedules copies of the contract, invoice or other 
billing for the Reimbursable Project Costs for which Developer seeks reimbursement, along with 
copies of the Developer’s check, evidence of wire transfers or other evidence of payment by the 
Developer of the costs of such Reimbursable Project Costs and hereby certify that such copies 
are true and accurate copies of the original documents. 
 
DATED ________________. 20____. 
 
      
 _______________________________________ 
 Developer  

158



 

 13
{30037 / 68378; 709888.7 }  

 Pursuant Section 5 of the Agreement, I hereby request reimbursement of the amounts 
specified below and I certify that the description of the purchase or nature of each payment is 
reasonable, accurate and complete and that Developer has previously paid such Reimbursable 
Project Costs: 
 

REIMBURSEMENT SCHEDULE 
 

Payee Name Date of Payment 
by Developer 

Purpose or Nature of Payment  Amount 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                              
Initials: Developer  
 
Note: Copies of bills, contracts, checks and other evidence reflecting the amounts shown above 
(as described in Section 5 of the Agreement) should be attached to this Reimbursement Schedule. 

159



 1

ORDINANCE NO. 3924 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE HAYS 
EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT IN THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS; AUTHORIZING THE MAKING 
OF CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS 
RELATING THERETO; APPROVING THE ESTIMATED COSTS OF SUCH 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS; PROVIDING 
FOR THE METHOD OF FINANCING THE SAME; AND APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq., as amended (the “Act”), cities are authorized to 
create community improvement districts as a method of financing economic development related 
improvements in a defined area within the city; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 11, 2016, a petition (the “Petition”) was filed with the City of Hays, 
Kansas (the “City”) requesting (a) that the community improvement district described therein (the 
“District”) be created, (b) that the City levy a community improvement district sales tax within the 
District in the amount of 1.0%, (c) and that the community improvement district project costs to be 
incurred within the District be financed on a pay-as-you-go basis, all in accordance with the Act. 

 
WHEREAS, said Petition was signed by the owners of record, whether resident or not, of all of 

the land area within the proposed District; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Act provides that prior to creating any community improvement district and 

imposing a community improvement district sales tax, the governing body shall, by resolution, direct and 
order a public hearing on the advisability of creating such community improvement district and the 
construction of such community improvement district projects therein, and to give notice of the hearing 
by publication at least once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in the official City newspaper and 
by certified mail to all property owners within the proposed community improvement district, the second 
publication to be at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing and such certified mail sent at least ten (10) 
days prior to such hearing; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body adopted Resolution No. 2016-005 ON October 27, 2016 

directing that a public hearing on the proposed District within the City be held on November 22, 2016, 
declaring its intent to impose a community improvement district sales tax, and requiring that the city clerk 
provide for notice of such public hearing as set forth in the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Notice of Public Hearing containing the following information: (a) the time and 

place of the hearing; (b) the general nature of the proposed community improvement district projects; (c) 
the estimated Costs of the proposed community improvement district projects; (d) the proposed method of 
financing the Costs of the community improvement district projects; (e) the proposed amount of the 
community improvement district sales tax; and (f) the map or boundary description of the proposed 
District, was mailed (by certified mail) to all property owners within the proposed District on November 
1, 2016, and published once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in The Hays Daily News, the 
official City newspaper, on October 28, 2016 and November 4, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 22, 2016, the Governing Body conducted a public hearing on the 

proposed District, the proposed community improvement district projects, and maximum Costs thereof 
and the method of financing the same; and 

160



 2

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines it to be advisable to create the 

Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District and set forth the boundaries 
thereof, authorize community improvement district projects relating thereto, approve the estimated Costs 
of such community improvement district projects and approve the method of financing the same, all in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Development Agreement between the City and the Hays Extended Stay Hotel 

Partners, L.P. (the “Development Agreement”) has been presented for consideration in connection with 
the District and the Projects. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF HAYS, KANSAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Creation of Community Improvement District; Boundaries.  That the 

Governing Body hereby finds and determines that it is advisable to create, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act, the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District within 
the City to be referred to as the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District.  A 
legal description of the boundaries of the proposed Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community 
Improvement District is set forth on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, and 
is depicted on the map set forth on Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 

 
 SECTION 2.  Authorization of Community Improvement District Projects and Maximum 
Costs.    
 
 (a) The general nature of the projects (the “Projects”) to be constructed within the District 
includes but is not limited to an approximately 41,000 square foot, 80 room hotel and ancillary 
improvements.  The Projects may be more particularly described as the construction, maintenance, and 
procurement of certain improvements and costs within the proposed CID, including but not limited to: 
land acquisition, infrastructure related items, sidewalks, parking lots, drainage improvements, buildings, 
tenant improvements, utilities, landscaping, lighting, signage, soft costs of the Projects, and the City’s 
administrative costs in establishing and maintaining the CID, and other items permitted to be financed 
within the CID under the Act. 
 
 (b) The total estimated cost of the Projects is $9,640,925, of which approximately $1,733,318 
plus the City’s administrative costs (and plus actual costs of interest on any financing at a rate not to exceed 
7.00% per annum) shall be funded by the District.  The remainder of the costs of the Projects shall be paid 
by the Developer.  Subject to the terms and conditions of a development agreement to be entered into 
between the Developer and the City, the Developer shall be reimbursed in an amount up to $1,733,318 
(plus actual costs of interest on any financing at a rate not to exceed 7.00% per annum) for those Project 
costs that are capital expenditures related to construction of real property, including related architectural 
and engineering costs (“Reimbursable Project Costs”).   

 
SECTION 3.  Method of Financing. 
 
(a) In order to provide funds to finance the Reimbursable Project Costs, it is advisable to 

impose, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, a community improvement district sales tax within 
the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District in an amount of 1.0% on the 
selling of tangible personal property at retail or rendering or furnishing services within the Hays Extended 
Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District (the “CID Sales Tax”). 

 

161



 3

             (b) There  will be no special assessments levied on property within the boundaries of the 
District to pay the Reimbursable Project Costs.     

 
(c) The proposed Community Improvement District Projects will be privately financed.  The 

Reimbursable Project Costs will be financed on a pay as you go basis, i.e., the Reimbursable Project 
Costs will be paid for by the Developer without the issuance of notes or bonds, and, subject to the terms 
and conditions of a development agreement to be entered into between the Developer and the City, the 
Developer will be reimbursed for the Reimbursable Project Costs as moneys are deposited in the District 
fund through the imposition of the CID Sales Tax. 

 
 SECTION 4.  Segregation of CID Sales Tax Revenues.  All revenues derived from the collection 
of the CID Sales Tax shall be deposited into a special fund of the City to be designated as the Hays 
Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District Revenue Fund.  Such revenues shall be 
used to pay the costs of the Project, including the City’s administrative fee of 0.5%.   
 
 SECTION 5.  Development Agreement.  The Development Agreement in substantially the form 
presented to the Governing Body of the City is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver the Development Agreement, contingent on approval of an Ordinance 
approving the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community Improvement District.   

 
SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 

after its passage by the Governing Body of the City and publication once in the official City newspaper. 
 
 

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

162



 4

 PASSED by the Governing Body this 22nd day of November, 2016. 
 
 SIGNED by the Mayor this 22nd day of November, 2016. 
 
 
 
            
      SHAUN MUSIL 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
(Seal) 
 

163



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

 
 

Lots 6 and 7 HOME DEPOT ADDITION, a subdivision in Hays, Ellis County, Kansas, according to the 
recorded plat thereof. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

164



EXHIBIT B 
Map 

 
 
 

165



166



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 10  MEETING DATE: 11-22-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Public Hearing on the advisability of creating the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II 
Community Improvement District and the imposition of a CID Sales Tax in that District. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Hold a Public Hearing on the creation of the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II 
Community Improvement District and the imposition of a CID Sales Tax in that district 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners LP seeks incentives related to construction of an 
approximately 41,000 square foot Town Place Suites hotel featuring 80 rooms (+/-), to be 
located at the northeast corner of the intersection of I-70 and Vine Street (Highway 183), 
immediately east of the Best Western, north of the Hampton Inn, and south of the JT Travel 
Plaza that is currently under construction. The second CID would impose an additional 1% 
CID sales tax on the hotel property and JT Travel Plaza together. This public hearing allows 
for public comment as well as advisability of creating the CID. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Kim Rupp, Finance Director 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 
 

 
 
 

167



168



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 11  MEETING DATE: 11-22-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community Improvement District – Development 
Agreement and Ordinance  
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Ordinance No. 3925 for the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community 
Improvement District. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
In order to implement the requested CID, it is required that the Commission adopt the 
presented ordinance and development agreement. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 3925 
 

 
 
 

169



 1

ORDINANCE NO. 3925 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE HAYS 
EXTENDED STAY HOTEL PARTNERS II COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT IN THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS; AUTHORIZING THE MAKING 
OF CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS 
RELATING THERETO; APPROVING THE ESTIMATED COSTS OF SUCH 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS; PROVIDING 
FOR THE METHOD OF FINANCING THE SAME; AND APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq., as amended (the “Act”), cities are authorized to 
create community improvement districts as a method of financing economic development related 
improvements in a defined area within the city; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 11, 2016, a petition (the “Petition”) was filed with the City of Hays, 
Kansas (the “City”) requesting (a) that the community improvement district described therein (the 
“District”) be created, (b) that the City levy a community improvement district sales tax within the 
District in the amount of 1.0%, (c) and that the community improvement district project costs to be 
incurred within the District be financed on a pay-as-you-go basis, all in accordance with the Act. 

 
WHEREAS, said Petition was signed by the owners of record, whether resident or not, of all of 

the land area within the proposed District; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Act provides that prior to creating any community improvement district and 

imposing a community improvement district sales tax, the governing body shall, by resolution, direct and 
order a public hearing on the advisability of creating such community improvement district and the 
construction of such community improvement district projects therein, and to give notice of the hearing 
by publication at least once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in the official City newspaper and 
by certified mail to all property owners within the proposed community improvement district, the second 
publication to be at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing and such certified mail sent at least ten (10) 
days prior to such hearing; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body adopted Resolution No. 2016-006 on October 27, 2016 

directing that a public hearing on the proposed District within the City be held on November 22, 2016, 
declaring its intent to impose a community improvement district sales tax, and requiring that the city clerk 
provide for notice of such public hearing as set forth in the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Notice of Public Hearing containing the following information: (a) the time and 

place of the hearing; (b) the general nature of the proposed community improvement district projects; (c) 
the estimated Costs of the proposed community improvement district projects; (d) the proposed method of 
financing the Costs of the community improvement district projects; (e) the proposed amount of the 
community improvement district sales tax; and (f) the map or boundary description of the proposed 
District, was mailed (by certified mail) to all property owners within the proposed District on November 
1, 2016, and published once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in The Hays Daily News, the 
official City newspaper, on October 28, 2016 and November 4, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 22, 2016, the Governing Body conducted a public hearing on the 

proposed District, the proposed community improvement district projects, and maximum Costs thereof 
and the method of financing the same; and 

170



 2

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines it to be advisable to create the 

Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community Improvement District and set forth the boundaries 
thereof, authorize community improvement district projects relating thereto, approve the estimated Costs 
of such community improvement district projects and approve the method of financing the same, all in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Development Agreement between the City and the Hays Extended Stay Hotel 

Partners, L.P. (the “Development Agreement”) has been presented for consideration in connection with 
the District and the Projects. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF HAYS, KANSAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Creation of Community Improvement District; Boundaries.  That the 

Governing Body hereby finds and determines that it is advisable to create, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act, the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community Improvement District within 
the City to be referred to as the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community Improvement District.  
A legal description of the boundaries of the proposed Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community 
Improvement District is set forth on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, and 
is depicted on the map set forth on Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 

 
 SECTION 2.  Authorization of Community Improvement District Projects and Maximum 
Costs.    
 
 (a) The general nature of the projects (the “Projects”) to be constructed within the District 
includes but is not limited to an approximately 41,000 square foot, 80 room hotel and ancillary 
improvements.  The Projects may be more particularly described as the construction, maintenance, and 
procurement of certain improvements and costs within the proposed CID, including but not limited to: 
land acquisition, infrastructure related items, sidewalks, parking lots, drainage improvements, buildings, 
tenant improvements, utilities, landscaping, lighting, signage, soft costs of the Projects, and the City’s 
administrative costs in establishing and maintaining the CID, and other items permitted to be financed 
within the CID under the Act. 
 
 (b) The total estimated cost of the Projects is $9,640,925, of which approximately $1,733,318 
plus the City’s administrative costs (and plus actual costs of interest on any financing at a rate not to exceed 
7.00% per annum) shall be funded by the District.  The remainder of the costs of the Projects shall be paid 
by the Developer.  Subject to the terms and conditions of a development agreement to be entered into 
between the Developer and the City, the Developer shall be reimbursed in an amount up to $1,733,318 
(plus actual costs of interest on any financing at a rate not to exceed 7.00% per annum) for those Project 
costs that are capital expenditures related to construction of real property, including related architectural 
and engineering costs (“Reimbursable Project Costs”).   

 
SECTION 3.  Method of Financing. 
 
(a) In order to provide funds to finance the Reimbursable Project Costs, it is advisable to 

impose, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, a community improvement district sales tax within 
the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community Improvement District in an amount of 1.0% on the 
selling of tangible personal property at retail or rendering or furnishing services within the Hays Extended 
Stay Hotel Partners II Community Improvement District (the “CID Sales Tax”). 

 

171



 3

             (b) There will be no special assessments levied on property within the boundaries of the 
District to pay the Reimbursable Project Costs.     

 
(c) The proposed Community Improvement District Projects will be privately financed.  The 

Reimbursable Project Costs will be financed on a pay as you go basis, i.e., the Reimbursable Project 
Costs will be paid for by the Developer without the issuance of notes or bonds, and, subject to the terms 
and conditions of a development agreement to be entered into between the Developer and the City, the 
Developer will be reimbursed for the Reimbursable Project Costs as moneys are deposited in the District 
fund through the imposition of the CID Sales Tax. 

 
 SECTION 4.  Segregation of CID Sales Tax Revenues.  All revenues derived from the collection 
of the CID Sales Tax shall be deposited into a special fund of the City to be designated as the Hays 
Extended Stay Hotel Partners II Community Improvement District Revenue Fund.  Such revenues shall be 
used to pay the costs of the Project, including the City’s administrative fee of 0.5%.   
 
 SECTION 5.  Development Agreement.  The Development Agreement in substantially the form 
presented to the Governing Body of the City is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver the Development Agreement, contingent on approval of an Ordinance 
approving the Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners Community Improvement District.   

 
SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 

after its passage by the Governing Body of the City and publication once in the official City newspaper. 
 
 

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

172



 4

 PASSED by the Governing Body this 22nd day of November, 2016. 
 
 SIGNED by the Mayor this 22nd day of November, 2016. 
 
 
 
            
      SHAUN MUSIL 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
(Seal) 
 

173



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

 
 

Lots 4, 6 and 7 HOME DEPOT ADDITION, a subdivision in Hays, Ellis County, Kansas, according to 
the recorded plat thereof. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

174



EXHIBIT B 
Map 

 
 
 

175



176



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 12  MEETING DATE: 11-22-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Public Hearing on the advisability of creating the Hays Investors Community Improvement 
District and the imposition of a CID Sales Tax in that District. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Hold a Public Hearing on the creation of the Hays Investors Community Improvement District 
and the imposition of a CID Sales Tax in that district 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Hays Investors LLC has submitted a petition for the creation of a CID to construct 
approximately 73,000 square feet of retail space, to be located on approximately 9.1 acres at 
the northeast corner of I-70 and Vine Street (Highway 183), and directly north of the Home 
Depot.  This development is expected to consist of an approximately 50,000 square foot 
building to be used by a national retailer and another 23,000 square feet of retail space. The 
CID would impose a 1% CID sales tax on the property. This public hearing allows for public 
comment as well as advisability of creating the CID. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Kim Rupp, Finance Director 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Memo 
Map 
 
 

 
 
 

177



Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

From: Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 

Work Session: November 17, 2016 

Subject: Hays Investors LLC CID Request – Development Agreement 
and Adopting Ordinance 

Person(s) Responsible:  Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 

Summary
If the City Commission chooses to move forward with Hays Investors LLC’s request for 
the creation of a Community Improvement District (CID), the next step in the process 
would be to draft a Development Agreement.  City staff has a few suggested inclusions 
for the Development Agreement that include specific time constraints for completion of 
the proposed projects and detailed procedures that outline the process used to submit, 
review and reimburse for eligible project costs. City staff would also like to hear the 
Governing Body’s thoughts on what should be included in a Development Agreement.   

Background 
Hays Investors LLC has submitted a petition for the creation of a CID to construct 
approximately 73,000 square feet of retail space, to be located on approximately 9.1 acres 
at the northeast corner of I-70 and Vine Street (Highway 183), and directly north of the 
Home Depot.  This development is expected to consist of an approximately 50,000 
square foot building to be used by a national retailer and another 23,000 square feet of 
retail space. The CID would impose a 1% CID sales tax on the property. The first step in 
the statutorily-outlined process is for the City Commission to hold a public hearing on the 
matter which has been scheduled for November 22, 2016.  Should the Commission 
choose to move forward with the process, the next step involves negotiating a 
development agreement, and ultimately, adopting an ordinance creating the CID.   

Discussion 
As for the ordinance that creates the CID, it is a pretty straight forward document that 
authorizes the imposition of an additional sales tax on a specific piece of property.  With 
regard to Hays Investors LLC’s request, the details to be worked out are in the 
Development Agreement. 

Attached to this memo is a draft Development Agreement that has been reviewed by the 
City’s bond counsel.  In addition to the standard language, City staff has included: 

178



• Even if the CID sales tax revenues exceed expectations, the Developer will not be
reimbursed for CID-eligible expenses for more than $3,613,702.17 plus actual
costs of interest on any financing by the developer at a rate not to exceed 7%.

• In the event certificates of occupancy for 73,000 square feet of retail space are not
issued within 36 months of approval of the CID, then the CID will be dissolved.

• So long as the CID on the retail project property is in existence, the Developer
will not request, and the City will not approve, any additional economic
development incentives on the retail project property.

The City Commission will likely have thoughts and ideas of what should and should not 
be part of a Development Agreement, and City staff would like to hold discussion on the 
subject at the November 17, 2016 Work Session.  Once the City Commission determines, 
through consensus, what should be included in a Development Agreement, City staff will 
work with the attorney representing Hays Investors LLC to make sure both parties are 
accepting of the suggestions.   

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

Financial Consideration 
There are no financial implications in regard to what is being discussed.    

Action Requested 
City staff is requesting the City Commission determine if it wants to move forward with 
the CID process.  If the consensus is that they do want to move forward with the CID 
process, City staff is asking for input on the required Development Agreement.   

Supporting Documentation 
CID map 
Proposed Development Agreement 
Ordinance 

179



CID

I-70

I-Hop

41st St

Hampton

Home Depot

Butterfield

Christie

Townplace Suites

Travel Plaza

180



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 13  MEETING DATE: 11-22-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Hays Investors Community Improvement District – Development Agreement and Ordinance  
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Ordinance No. 3926 for the Hays Investors Community Improvement District. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
In order to implement the requested CID, it is required that the Commission adopt the 
presented ordinance and development agreement. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Development Agreement  
Ordinance No. 3926 
 

 
 
 

181



 

 1 
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 

AND 
 

HAYS INVESTORS, LLC 
 

FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HAYS INVESTORS COMMUNITY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
 

Dated November ___, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

182



 

 2 
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HAYS 
INVESTORS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

  
 This Development Agreement for Implementation of the Hays Investors Community 
Improvement District (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City of Hays, 
Kansas, a municipal corporation (the “City”) and Hays Investors, LLC, a Kansas limited liability 
company (the “Developer”) (collectively referred to as the “Parties”) and is dated and effective 
as of the date executed by both parties. In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Purpose. 
 

The Hays Investors Community Improvement District (the “District”) was formed on 
________, 2016, by virtue of Ordinance No. ______________ enacted by the governing body 
(the “Governing Body”) of the City pursuant to the Petition for the Creation of a Community 
Improvement District, as amended, (the “Petition”) initially filed with the City on 
_______________, 2016 in accordance with the Kansas Community Improvement District Act, 
K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq., as amended (the “Act”).   

 
The purpose of the District is to undertake and finance District projects to provide 

economic development related improvements including, but not limited to the construction of a 
retail center and related improvements including an approximately seventy-three thousand 
(73,000) square foot retail facility (collectively, the "Project"). 

 
Additionally, this Agreement intends to outline the rights and obligations of the 

Developer and City as they relate to the District and to provide for the reimbursement to the 
Developer of certain costs, which are eligible under the Act, of the development of the Project 
from a one percent (1%) sales tax imposed on the selling of tangible personal property at retail or 
rendering or furnishing of taxable services within the District in accordance with the Act (the 
“CID Sales Tax”).  Proceeds from the CID Sales Tax are hereafter referred to as "CID Sales Tax 
Revenue." 
 
 The legal description of the real property included within the District boundaries (the 
“Legal Description") is set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.   
    
Section 2.   The Parties. 
 

(A) The City is a municipal corporation and a city of the second class under the laws 
of the State of Kansas (the “State”), exercising governmental powers and organized and existing 
pursuant to K.S.A. 14-101 et seq. The principal office of the City is P.O. Box 490, Hays, Kansas, 
67601, Attention: City Manager.  

 
(B) The Developer is a limited liability company duly organized and existing under 

the laws of the State of Kansas. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Developer agrees to 
maintain its status as a limited liability company, in good standing and authorized to do business 

183



 

 3 
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

in the State of Kansas. The principal office and mailing office of the Developer is 7387 W. 162nd 
Street, Suite 200, Stilwell Kansas, 66085, Attention: David Christie. 
 
Section 3.   Project Costs and Development Schedule. 
 
 (A) Project Costs. The total estimated costs of the Projects (the "Project Costs") is 
$13,671,702.17, of which approximately $3,613,702.17, plus the City’s administrative costs (and 
plus actual costs of interest on any financing at a rate of not to exceed 7.00% per annum) is 
proposed to be funded by the District ("Reimbursable Project Costs"). An itemized list of the 
total estimated costs of the Project and an itemized list of the estimated Reimbursable Project 
Costs are set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 

The Reimbursable Project Costs shall be only those expenditures of the Developer related 
to the construction of the Project within the District, including related architectural and 
engineering costs.  The estimated Project Costs and Reimbursable Project Costs, set forth on 
Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein, have been prepared by the Developer. The 
Parties agree that the amounts of the Reimbursable Project Costs may be adjusted among any of 
the stated categories, except as provided herein, (or to pay additional Reimbursable Project Costs 
not specifically listed on Exhibit B, but which are otherwise reimbursable under the Act and 
City's Economic Development Policy) provided the total Reimbursable Project Costs to be 
reimbursed do not exceed $3,613,702.17 (the "Reimbursable Project Costs Cap"). 

  
The Project Costs will be privately financed.  The Reimbursable Project Costs will be 

financed on a pay as you go basis, i.e., the Reimbursable Project Costs will be paid for by the 
Developer without the issuance of notes or bonds, and the Developer will be reimbursed for the 
Reimbursable Project Costs up to the Reimbursable Project Costs Cap as moneys are deposited 
in the District fund through the imposition of the CID Sales Tax, after payment of the City 
Administrative Fee, all in accordance with Section 4 of this Agreement. 

 
(B) Development Schedule. Developer hereby agrees to develop and construct or 

cause the development and construction of the Project subject to the terms and conditions 
hereinafter provided.  

Developer shall use reasonable efforts to complete, or cause to be completed, the Project, 
including, but not necessarily limited to design, land preparation, environmental evaluation and 
remediation, construction, management, maintenance and procurement of financing in sufficient 
time to comply with the Development Schedule. If Developer seeks to amend the Development 
Schedule, Developer shall obtain the approval of City to such amendment, which approval shall 
not be unreasonably withheld.   

 
The parties hereto recognize and agree that market and other conditions may affect the 

Development Schedule.  Therefore, the Development Schedule is subject to change and/or 
modification, with the written approval of City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
delayed or conditioned, upon a showing by Developer of changed or adverse market or other 
conditions.   
 

184



 

 4 
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

Section 4.   Administration of CID Sales Tax. 
 
 (A) Subject to and as specified by the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the 
City agrees to perform or provide for the performance of the administration of the financing of 
the Reimbursable Project Costs up to the Reimbursable Project Costs Cap pursuant to the Act 
and this Agreement. The City shall provide notification to the Secretary of Revenue of the State 
of Kansas to commence the collection and reporting of the CID Sales Tax within the District, at 
the same time and in the same manner provided for the collection of Kansas State Retailers’ 
Sales Tax.   
 
 (B) Pursuant to K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq., the City shall establish a segregated trust fund 
to be designated the “Hays Investors Community Improvement District Sales Tax Fund” (the 
“Fund”), which shall be held and administered by the City in trust for the benefit of the District 
in accordance with this Agreement. The CID Sales Tax Revenue shall not be deemed to be City 
funds and shall not be commingled with any funds of the City.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
the City shall be entitled to withdraw 0.5% of each distribution of CID Sales Tax Revenue (the 
“City Administrative Fee”) as such revenues are received by the City from the State Department 
of Revenue, as payment for the City’s cost of administering the District.   
 
 (C) The Developer agrees to provide the City written notice of all current owners and 
occupants of the District in the Annual Report required by the City’s Economic Development 
Policy, and at all other times upon the written request of the City. Such Annual Report shall be 
submitted by each January 1 during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 (D) The Developer agrees to cause all assignees, purchasers, tenants, subtenants or any 
other entity acquiring property or occupancy rights in the District to be obligated by written contract 
to provide to the City, simultaneously with submission to the Kansas Department of Revenue, the 
monthly sales tax returns for their facilities in the District. The Developer also agrees to provide and 
agrees to cause all assignees, purchasers, tenants, subtenants or any other entity acquiring property 
or occupancy rights in the District to be obligated by written contract to provide to the City, 
annually by each January 1, a tax clearance letter. The obligations of this subparagraph shall be a 
covenant running with the land and shall be enforceable against all businesses operating in the 
District and shall only terminate upon the passage by the City of an ordinance terminating the 
District. The Developer hereby agrees that any written contract required under this subparagraph 
shall provide that the City is an intended third-party beneficiary of such provisions and has a 
separate and independent right to enforce such provisions directly against such tenant or purchaser.   
 
 (E) To the extent it may legally do so, information obtained pursuant to this Section 
shall be kept confidential by the City in accordance with K.S.A. 79-3657. In furtherance of 
maintaining the confidentiality of the information provided in this section, the City shall take all 
reasonable steps necessary to ensure that such information is kept confidential.   
 
Section 5.   Reimbursement Procedures. 
 
 The City’s agreement to fund Reimbursable Project Costs up to the Reimbursable Project 
Costs Cap is conditioned upon the following: 

185



 

 5 
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

 
 (A) All costs submitted for reimbursement shall be Reimbursable Project Costs under 
the Act. 
 
 (B) The Developer shall submit to the City Manager an invoice (in substantially the 
form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit C), signed by the Developer, with supporting 
documentation identifying the Reimbursable Project Costs for which the Developer seeks 
reimbursement.  
 

The supporting documentation shall include copies of invoices reflecting amounts billed, 
copies of checks, evidence of wire transfer or other payment of cash by the Developer for the 
Reimbursable Project Costs, lien waivers or other evidence that no mechanic’s liens exist with 
respect to the construction of the Project, and such other documentation as the City shall 
reasonably request.    

 
The invoice shall contain a certification by the Developer that the costs submitted for 

reimbursement are for Reimbursable Project Costs under this Agreement, and that such expense 
has been incurred by the Developer (or, when appropriate, by a third-party beneficiary) and has 
not been previously submitted for reimbursement hereunder.   

 
(C) The City Manager shall determine whether the cost submitted is for a 

Reimbursable Project Cost within twenty (20) business days of the date the invoice is submitted 
by the Developer.  If the City Manager does not provide a response within twenty (20) business 
days of the date the invoice is submitted, the cost submitted on the invoice shall be deemed 
approved; provided said cost is permitted under the Act and the City's Economic Development 
Policy.  If the City Manager determines that such cost is not for a Reimbursable Project Cost 
under this Agreement, the City Manager shall notify the Developer of such determination in 
writing, setting forth in detail the basis for such denial. The Developer may appeal such denial to 
the Governing Body by filing a written request to be heard by the Governing Body with the City 
Clerk within seven (7) business days of the receipt of the written denial. The Governing Body 
shall conduct a hearing within thirty (30) days of receipt of such request and render a decision 
immediately upon the conclusion of such hearing. 
 
 (D) If money is available in the Fund, after payment of the City Administrative Fee, 
the requested reimbursement shall be paid to the Developer within ten (10) days of the approval 
by the City Manager. 
 
 (E) If the invoices for Reimbursable Project Costs submitted and approved exceed the 
amounts then available in the Fund after payment of the City Administrative Fee, such invoices 
shall be paid as CID Sales Tax Revenue becomes available.  Provided such CID Sales Tax 
Revenues have been received by the City from the State of Kansas, the City will make quarterly 
payments on any outstanding Reimbursable Project Costs approved by the City for 
reimbursement as CID Sales Tax Revenue becomes available, such payments being due on 
_________, _____________, ________and _______ of each year as long as the CID Sales Tax 
remains in effect.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall have no obligation to make any 

186



 

 6 
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

payments to the Developer under this Agreement so long as the Developer is in default of any 
provision of this Agreement.  
 
Section 6.  City and Other Governmental Permits. 
 
 Before beginning construction of any aspect of the Project, the Developer shall, at its 
expense, obtain or cause to be obtained any necessary permits or licenses which may be required 
by the City, Ellis County or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction over the Project. 
The City agrees to provide all customary assistance to the Developer in obtaining construction 
permits issued by the City.  The Developer shall construct the Project in accordance with all 
applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Section 7.  Rights of Access. 
 
 For purposes of insuring compliance with this Agreement, representatives of the City 
shall have rights of access to the Project, without charges or fees, during normal construction 
hours during the period of construction. Representatives of the City shall have such access to 
inspect work performed or being performed in the construction of the Project. City 
representatives shall carry proper identification, insure their own safety and shall not interfere 
with construction activity unless such activity is apparently in violation of this Agreement, City 
codes, state or federal regulations, statutes or other law. The right of access granted by this 
Section shall be in addition to the City’s rights to access the Project in the exercise of its proper 
authority to regulate for and provide for public safety. 
 
Section 8. No Obligation to Build. 
 
 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall require Developer to construct the Project. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Developer shall fail to receive Certificates of 
Occupancy for one hundred percent (100%) of the Project on or before _______________, 2019, 
then the City may, but shall not be obligated to, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the 
Developer, terminate this Agreement and upon approval of an ordinance providing the same, 
terminate the District, at which time the Developer shall have no further rights in any existing 
CID Sales Tax Revenue hereunder. 
 
Section 9. Default and Remedies; Indemnification. 
 
 (A) The failure or delay by either of the Parties to this Agreement to perform any term 
or provision of this Agreement required of such party, shall be a default under this Agreement, 
subject to rights of cure, as specified below. 
 
 (B) Any party to this Agreement claiming a default (the “Claimant”) shall give 
written notice of such claimed default to the other party, describing such default. Such notices 
shall be given at the addresses of the Parties stated in this Agreement. 
 
 (C) A Claimant shall not institute legal proceedings against the other party nor be 
entitled to damages if, within thirty (30) days from the receipt of a notice of claimed default, the 

187



 

 7 
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

other party undertakes acts to cure, correct or remedy such claimed default, proceeds with due 
diligence to complete such cure, correction or remedy and such cure correction or remedy is 
completed within thirty (30) days of the date such party received a notice of default, provided, 
however, if such default requires more than thirty (30) days to correct, the nonperforming party 
shall not be deemed in default hereunder if such party commences curing the default within 
fourteen (14) days after receipt of written notice thereof and diligently prosecutes the cure to 
completion. 
 
 (D) Developer agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its respective officers, 
governing body members, employees, agents and independent contractors and consultants 
harmless from and against any and all suits, claims, costs of defense, damages, injuries, 
liabilities, judgments, costs and/or expenses, including court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, 
resulting from, arising out of, or in any way connected with: 
 

1. The Developer's actions and undertakings in connection with the Project 
or this Agreement; and 

 
2. The negligence or willful misconduct of Developer, its employees, agents 

or independent contractors and consultants in connection with the 
management, design, development, redevelopment and construction of the 
Project. 

 
Section 10. Governing Law, Jurisdiction. 
 
 (A) This Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted and enforced pursuant to the 
laws of the state of Kansas. 
 
 (B) The Parties agree that any legal actions arising out of this Agreement will be 
instituted in the District Court of Ellis County, Kansas or, in the case of federal jurisdiction, in 
the Federal District Court of the District of Kansas. 
 
Section 11. Rights and Remedies Cumulative, Waivers.  
 
 Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the 
Parties shall be cumulative, and the exercise by one party of one or more such rights shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other rights or remedies 
specified herein. Any failure or delay by either party in asserting any of its rights and remedies as 
to any default hereunder shall not operate as a waiver of such default or of any rights or remedies 
specified hereunder, or deprive either party of its right to assert and enforce any such right or 
remedy. 
 
Section 12. Amendments. 
 
 The Developer and the City agree to cooperate and consider reasonable requests for 
amendments to this Agreement, provided that, any such amendments must be approved by the 

188



 

 8 
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

Governing Body and the Developer, shall be in writing, and shall not substantially alter the basic 
business terms of this Agreement.  
 
Section 13. Term. 
 
 This Agreement shall commence on the effective date hereof and shall terminate on the 
earlier of twenty two (22) years from the date that the CID Sales Tax became effective or upon 
payment to the Developer in the amount of the Reimbursable Project Costs Cap, together with 
interest thereon, whichever is first to occur.  
 
Section 14. Transfer and Assignment. 
 
 This Developer may assign or pledge this Agreement and the rights, duties and 
obligations hereunder with the prior written consent of the City; provided however, City consent 
shall not be required for the Developer to collaterally assign its rights to reimbursement 
hereunder to its lender.   
 
Section 15. Notices, Demands, Communications Between Parties. 
 
 Written notices, demands and other communications between the City and Developer 
shall be deemed delivered under this Agreement if given by personal service, registered or 
certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, or by overnight courier, to the 
principal offices of the City and the Developer set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. 
 
Section 16. Entire Agreement. 
 
 This Agreement is executed in duplicate originals, each of which shall be considered an 
original. This Agreement includes pages 1 through 8, and Exhibits A, B, and C which constitutes 
the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties. 
 
 This Agreement supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parties 
or their predecessors in interest with respect to all of any part of the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 
 
Section 17. Severability. 
 
 The invalidity or inability to enforce any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or 
sections of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions 
of this Agreement. 
 
Section 18. No Liability of City Officials or Employees. 
 
 All liabilities under this Agreement on the part of the City are solely corporate liabilities 
of the City, and, no officer, employee, or agent of the City shall have any personal or individual 
liability under this Agreement for anything done or omitted to be done by the City hereunder. 
 

189



 

 9 
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

Section 19. No Further Incentives. 
 
 During the Term of this Agreement, the Developer shall not request any additional 
economic incentives from the City. 
 
Section 20.  Market/Economic Conditions. 
 
 The City hereby acknowledges and agrees that the development of the Project, including 
the Development schedule, may be adversely impacted by changing economic and market 
factors.  Accordingly, the City hereby agrees to reasonably consider amendments to this 
Agreement requested by the Developer as a result of economic and/or market conditions. 
 

 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.  Signature page follows.] 

 

190



 

 10
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on 
________, 2016 and represent that the individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
Parties have the express authority to do so. 
 
       
 
       CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

HAYS INVESTORS, LLC 
 
 
       By: ________________________________ 

David Christie, Manager 
 
Attest: 
 
___________________________ 
By: 
Title: 

 
 
 

191



 

 11
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

 
 
 

Lots 3 HOME DEPOT ADDITION, a subdivision in Hays, Ellis County, Kansas, 
according to the recorded plat thereof. 
 
 

192



 

 12
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

EXHIBIT B 
Project Costs 

 

 

193



 

 13
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

  
EXHIBIT C 

[Form of Developer’s Invoice for Reimbursement] 
 

INVOICE FOR REIMBURSEMENT 
FOR REIMBURSABLE PROJECT COSTS 

 
City of Hays, Kansas 
Attention: City Manager 
 
 You are hereby requested by the undersigned, the Authorized Developer Representative, 
acting on behalf of Hays Investors, LLC (the “Developer”) to disburse funds held by you in the 
Hays Investors Community Improvement District  Sales Tax Fund created pursuant the authority 
in K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq. and set forth in the Development Agreement Between the City of 
Hays, Kansas and Hays Investors, LLC, for Implementation of the Hays Investors Community 
Improvement District, dated ______________, 2016 (the “Agreement”) to reimburse 
expenditures made by the Developer for Reimbursable Project Costs (as defined in the 
Agreement) as described on and in the amounts set forth in the Reimbursement Schedules 
attached to this invoice and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Reimbursement 
Schedules”). 
 
 I hereby certify that the amounts requested in the attached Reimbursement Schedules 
have been paid by the Developer (or, when appropriate, a third-party beneficiary) in payment of 
Reimbursable Project Costs, as defined in the Agreement. 
 
 I further certify that no part of the amounts set forth in the Payment Schedules have been 
the basis for any previous withdrawal of any moneys from the Hays Investors Community 
Improvement District Sales Tax Fund. 
 
 I have attached to the Reimbursement Schedules copies of the contract, invoice or other 
billing for the Reimbursable Project Costs for which Developer seeks reimbursement, along with 
copies of the Developer’s check, evidence of wire transfers or other evidence of payment by the 
Developer of the costs of such Reimbursable Project Costs and hereby certify that such copies 
are true and accurate copies of the original documents. 
 
DATED ________________. 20____. 
 
      
 _______________________________________ 
 Developer  

194



 

 14
{30037 / 68378; 727329. }  

 Pursuant Section 5 of the Agreement, I hereby request reimbursement of the amounts 
specified below and I certify that the description of the purchase or nature of each payment is 
reasonable, accurate and complete and that Developer has previously paid such Reimbursable 
Project Costs: 
 

REIMBURSEMENT SCHEDULE 
 

Payee Name Date of Payment 
by Developer 

Purpose or Nature of Payment  Amount 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                              
Initials: Developer  
 
Note: Copies of bills, contracts, checks and other evidence reflecting the amounts shown above 
(as described in Section 5 of the Agreement) should be attached to this Reimbursement Schedule. 

195



 1

ORDINANCE NO. 3926 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE HAYS 
INVESTORS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT IN THE CITY OF 
HAYS, KANSAS; AUTHORIZING THE MAKING OF CERTAIN ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS RELATING THERETO; 
APPROVING THE ESTIMATED COSTS OF SUCH ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
METHOD OF FINANCING THE SAME; AND APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq., as amended (the “Act”), cities are authorized to 
create community improvement districts as a method of financing economic development related 
improvements in a defined area within the city; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 11, 2016, a petition (the “Petition”) was filed with the City of Hays, 
Kansas (the “City”) requesting (a) that the community improvement district described therein (the 
“District”) be created, (b) that the City levy a community improvement district sales tax within the 
District in the amount of 1.0%, (c) and that the community improvement district project costs to be 
incurred within the District be financed on a pay-as-you-go basis, all in accordance with the Act. 

 
WHEREAS, said Petition was signed by the owners of record, whether resident or not, of all of 

the land area within the proposed District; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Act provides that prior to creating any community improvement district and 

imposing a community improvement district sales tax, the governing body shall, by resolution, direct and 
order a public hearing on the advisability of creating such community improvement district and the 
construction of such community improvement district projects therein, and to give notice of the hearing 
by publication at least once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in the official City newspaper and 
by certified mail to all property owners within the proposed community improvement district, the second 
publication to be at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing and such certified mail sent at least ten (10) 
days prior to such hearing; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body adopted Resolution No. 2016-007 on October 27, 2016 

directing that a public hearing on the proposed District within the City be held on November 22, 2016, 
declaring its intent to impose a community improvement district sales tax, and requiring that the city clerk 
provide for notice of such public hearing as set forth in the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Notice of Public Hearing containing the following information: (a) the time and 

place of the hearing; (b) the general nature of the proposed community improvement district projects; (c) 
the estimated Costs of the proposed community improvement district projects; (d) the proposed method of 
financing the Costs of the community improvement district projects; (e) the proposed amount of the 
community improvement district sales tax; and (f) the map or boundary description of the proposed 
District, was mailed (by certified mail) to all property owners within the proposed District on November 
1, 2016, and published once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in The Hays Daily News, the 
official City newspaper, on November 3, 2016 and November 10, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 22, 2016, the Governing Body conducted a public hearing on the 

proposed District, the proposed community improvement district projects, and maximum Costs thereof 
and the method of financing the same; and 

196



 2

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines it to be advisable to create the 

Hays Investors Community Improvement District and set forth the boundaries thereof, authorize 
community improvement district projects relating thereto, approve the estimated Costs of such 
community improvement district projects and approve the method of financing the same, all in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Development Agreement between the City and the Hays Investors, LLC (the 

“Development Agreement”) has been presented for consideration in connection with the District and the 
Projects. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF HAYS, KANSAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Creation of Community Improvement District; Boundaries.  That the 

Governing Body hereby finds and determines that it is advisable to create, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act, the Hays Investors Community Improvement District within the City to be referred 
to as the Hays Investors Community Improvement District.  A legal description of the boundaries of the 
proposed Hays Investors Community Improvement District is set forth on Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference herein, and is depicted on the map set forth on Exhibit B, attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference herein. 

 
 SECTION 2.  Authorization of Community Improvement District Projects and Maximum 
Costs.    
 
 (a) The general nature of the projects (the “Projects”) to be constructed within the District 
includes but is not limited to an approximately 73,000 square foot retail project.  The Projects may be 
more particularly described as the construction, maintenance, and procurement of certain improvements 
and costs within the proposed CID, including but not limited to: land acquisition, infrastructure related 
items, sidewalks, parking lots, drainage improvements, buildings, tenant improvements, utilities, 
landscaping, lighting, signage, soft costs of the Projects, and the City’s administrative costs in 
establishing and maintaining the CID, and other items permitted to be financed within the CID under the 
Act. 
 
 (b) The total estimated cost of the Projects is $13,671,702.17, of which approximately 
$3,613,702.17 plus the City’s administrative costs (and plus actual costs of interest on any financing at a rate 
not to exceed 7.00% per annum) shall be funded by the District.  The remainder of the costs of the Projects 
shall be paid by the Developer.  Subject to the terms and conditions of a development agreement to be 
entered into between the Developer and the City, the Developer shall be reimbursed in an amount up to 
$3,613,702.17 (plus actual costs of interest on any financing at a rate not to exceed 7.00% per annum) for 
those Project costs that are capital expenditures related to construction of real property, including related 
architectural and engineering costs (“Reimbursable Project Costs”).   

 
SECTION 3.  Method of Financing. 
 
(a) In order to provide funds to finance the Reimbursable Project Costs, it is advisable to 

impose, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, a community improvement district sales tax within 
the Hays Investors Community Improvement District in an amount of 1.0% on the selling of tangible 
personal property at retail or rendering or furnishing services within the Hays Investors Community 
Improvement District (the “CID Sales Tax”). 

 

197



 3

             (b) There will be no special assessments levied on property within the boundaries of the 
District to pay the Reimbursable Project Costs.     

 
(c) The proposed Community Improvement District Projects will be privately financed.  The 

Reimbursable Project Costs will be financed on a pay as you go basis, i.e., the Reimbursable Project 
Costs will be paid for by the Developer without the issuance of notes or bonds, and, subject to the terms 
and conditions of a development agreement to be entered into between the Developer and the City, the 
Developer will be reimbursed for the Reimbursable Project Costs as moneys are deposited in the District 
fund through the imposition of the CID Sales Tax. 

 
 SECTION 4.  Segregation of CID Sales Tax Revenues.  All revenues derived from the collection 
of the CID Sales Tax shall be deposited into a special fund of the City to be designated as the Hays Investors 
Community Improvement District Revenue Fund.  Such revenues shall be used to pay the costs of the 
Project, including the City’s administrative fee of 0.5%.   
 
 SECTION 5.  Development Agreement.  The Development Agreement in substantially the form 
presented to the Governing Body of the City is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver the Development Agreement.   

 
SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 

after its passage by the Governing Body of the City and publication once in the official City newspaper. 
 
 

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

198



 4

 PASSED by the Governing Body this 22nd day of November, 2016. 
 
 SIGNED by the Mayor this 22nd day of November, 2016. 
 
 
 
            
      SHAUN MUSIL 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
(Seal) 
 

199



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

 
 

Lots 6 and 7 HOME DEPOT ADDITION, a subdivision in Hays, Ellis County, Kansas, according to the 
recorded plat thereof. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

200



EXHIBIT B 
Map 

 
 
 

201


	11-22-16 City Commission Meeting Agenda
	11-10-16 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	October 2016 Financial
	Appointments
	GO Bonds - 2016-A Ordinance
	GO Bonds 2016-A - Resolution
	Hays Extended Stay Public Hearing
	Hays Extended Stay - Devel Agreement and Ord
	Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II - Public Hearing
	Hays Extended Stay Hotel Partners II - Devel Agreement and Ord
	Hays Investors Public Hearing
	Hays Investors - Devel Agreement and Ord



